FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
(MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT)

TPTEA USA INC.
A Delaware Corporation
919 North Market Street, Suite 950
Wilmington, DE 19801
886-4-2389-6909#524
intl@tp-tea.com
https://tw.tp-tea.com/

The franchise offered is to operate a TPTEA tea-based beverage establishment offering gourmet
bubble tea, tea-based beverages, coffee-based beverage, complimentary food, accessories and gifts.
The total investment necessary to begin operation of a TPTEA Tea Shop is US$424,800 —
US$446,900, depending on the size of the Tea Shop. This includes US$193,600 — US$197,200
that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliate(s), as applicable. If you want development rights
for TPTEA Tea Shops and you sign the Multi-Unit Franchise Rider (a minimum of 2 TPTEA Tea
Shops), there is no development fee, but you must pay the franchisor the initial franchise fees for
each TPTEA Tea Shop you commit to develop at the time you sign the applicable franchise
agreement.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least fourteen (14) days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or making any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection
with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no government agency has verified the
information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Yu-Chi Chang, No. 36,
Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist., Taichung City 408, Taiwan (R.O.C.), 886-4-2389--6909 Ext. 524,
intl@tp-tea.com.

The term of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contracts carefully. Show your
contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help
you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to
Buying a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is
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available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or
by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also
visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or
visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

The Issuance Date: March 21, 2025
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try to
obtain this information from others, like current and
former franchisees. You can find their names and
contact information in Item 20.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit A includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Iltem 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
TPTEA Tea Shop business in
my area?

Iltem 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a TPTEA
Tea Shop franchisee?

Item 20 lists current and former franchisees. You
can contact them to ask about their experiences.

What else should | know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions.
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue
to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your
landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit C.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda.
See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.  Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation
only in Taiwan. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you
to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to
mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Taiwan than in your own
state.

2. Supplier_control. You must purchase all or nearly all of the inventory or
supplies that are necessary to operate your business from the franchisor, its
affiliates, or suppliers that the franchisor designates, at prices the franchisor or
they set. These prices may be higher than prices you could obtain elsewhere
for the same or similar goods. This may reduce the anticipated profit of your
franchise business.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the *“State Specific Addenda”
(if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS APPLY ONLY TO TRANSACTIONS GOVERNED
BY THE MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW

The state of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes in franchise
documents. If any of the following provisions are in these franchise documents, the provisions are
void and cannot be enforced against you:

(A) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(B) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver,
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall
not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all
claims.

(C)  Aprovision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration
of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply
with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given
written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days,
to cure such failure.

(D) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings.
Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not
subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than
5 years; and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing
to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name,
logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration
of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s
intent not to renew the franchise.

(E) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This
section does not require a renewal provision.

(F) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.
This shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration,
to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.

(G) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from
exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not
limited to:
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Q) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(i) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.

(iti)  The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply
with all lawful obligations.

(iv)  The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing
to the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the
proposed transfer.

(H) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants
to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in
subdivision (c).

()] A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign,
or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than
$100,000, the franchisor shall, at the request of a franchisee, arrange for the escrow of initial
investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations to provide real estate,
improvements, equipment, inventory, training, or other items included in the franchise offering are
fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney general does not constitute
approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the attorney general.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan Consumer Protection Division
Attn: Franchise
670 G. Mennen Williams Building
525 West Ottawa
Lansing, Michigan 48909
(517) 335-7567
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ITEM 1: THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND
AFFILIATES

The Franchisor is TPTEA USA Inc., which will be referred to as “TPTEA”, “we”, or “us”. The
term “you”, or “Franchisee” means the person, corporation, limited liability company, partnership
or other legal entity that is granted the franchise (as well as the direct and indirect owners of any
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other legal entity that becomes a franchisee).
We do not conduct any business activity other than franchising tea shops. We, our parent company
or affiliate currently do not operate company-owned tea shops under the TPTEA System in the
U.S. and internationally and franchised tea shops under the TPTEA System internationally.

Franchisor, Parent, Affiliates

We are a Delaware corporation, formed on February 27, 2018. Our principal place of business is
No. 36, Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist.,Taichung City 408, Taiwan (R.O.C.), 886-4-2389-6909. We
currently do business in the organizational name “TPTEA” and under the brand TPTEA. We do
not do business or intend to do business under any other names. We do not have any predecessors
during the 10-year period immediately before the close of our most recent fiscal year. We currently
do not operate any company-owned TPTEA tea shop. Our parent company, TPTEA Co., Ltd.
(“TPTEA Taiwan”), is a corporation formed under the laws of Taiwan in 2005, and continued as
a corporation under the laws of Taiwan. TPTEA Taiwan is our only affiliate required to be
disclosed. TPTEA Taiwan offers franchises for business offering gourmet bubble tea, tea-based
beverages, coffee-based beverage, complimentary food, accessories and gifts outside of the United
States under the brand TPTEA. As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, TPTEA
Taiwan and its affiliate have opened more than 190 tea shops worldwide. Currently, TPTEA
Taiwan does not have any other line of business or provide products or services to the franchisees
in the United States. We do not have a physical office or operations in Delaware. Our registered
address in Delaware is InCorp Services, Inc., 919 North Market Street, Suite 950, Wilmington, DE
19801. All communication and activities will be through our office in Taiwan, located at No. 36,
Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist., Taichung City 408, Taiwan (R.O.C.).

Agent for Service of Process

TPTEA does not have a physical office or operations in Delaware. Our address in Delaware is
InCorp Services, Inc., 919 North Market Street, Suite 950, Wilmington, DE 19801. All
communication and activities will be through TPTEA’s office in Taiwan. Our own agent for
service of process in New York is Secretary of the State of New York, 99 Washington Avenue,
Albany, New York 12231. Our own agent for service of process for Delaware is InCorp Services,
Inc., 919 North Market Street, Suite 950, Wilmington, DE 19801. The Directory of Administrative
Agencies is attached as Exhibit C to this Disclosure Document.

The Business We Offer

We possess advanced technology, management system, continuous and innovative product
development, and knowledge in relation to a unique and distinctive system relating to the
development and operation of “TPTEA” tea shop establishments (each a “Tea Shop”) with unique
product lines, distinctive fixtures, equipment, interior and exterior accessories, color scheme,
inventory and accounting system, of which may be changed, improved, and further developed by
us or our affiliates from time to time (the “TPTEA System”). The distinguishing characteristics of
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the TPTEA System include, for example, distinctive exterior and interior design, decor, color and
identification schemes and furnishings; special menu items; standards, specifications and
procedures for operations, manufacturing, distribution and delivery; quality of products and
services offered; management programs; training and assistance; and marketing, advertising and
promotional programs, all of which we may change, supplement, and further develop.

We offer franchises and, if applicable, multi-unit franchise rights, to qualified individuals to own
and operate Tea Shops within territories we approve (each a “Territory”), under the terms of our
standard franchise agreement, attached as Exhibit B (the “Franchise Agreement”). The franchise
agreement sets out the detailed terms and conditions of the relationship. You will need to sign the
Acknowledgment Addendum to Franchise Agreement, attached as Exhibit E, before the Franchise
Agreement is to be effective (together with the Franchise Agreement, the “Agreements”). Under
our Agreements, we grant our franchisees the right (and they accept the obligation) to operate a
single Tea Shop, selling gourmet bubble tea, tea-based beverages, coffee-based beverage,
complimentary food, accessories and gifts we approve under the TPTEA System within a territory
and this Tea Shop must be open and operational within 12 months after signing of the Agreements.
There are no subfranchising rights available to franchisees under the Agreements.

We also may grant multi-unit franchise rights to qualified franchisees, who then may develop a
specific number of TPTEA Tea Shops according to a pre-determined development schedule. If
you want to develop multiple TPTEA Tea Shops, and you meet our applicable criteria and
qualifications, then you will sign our Multi-Unit Franchise Rider to Franchise Agreement (the
current form of which is attached as Exhibit B-2 to this Disclosure Document), as well as all
Franchise Agreements for all TPTEA Tea Shops that you will develop, at the same time.

Your Tea Shop(s) will offer products and services to the general public throughout the year and
compete with other beverage and food product service business. The Tea Shop is not seasonal. The
market for your type of products and services generally is developed and very competitive in the
United States. You can expect to compete in your market with locally-owned businesses as well
as national and regional chains that sell similar products. The market for tea or coffee beverage as
well as related products is well-established and highly competitive. Tea Shops compete on the
basis of factors such as price, service, location, convenience and drink quality. Additionally, you
may find that there is competition for suitable locations. Principal factors that will vary but that
will impact our brand’s competitive position are name recognition (which is stronger in some
regions than in others), product quality, variety, presentation, location, and advertising. A Tea
Shop’s business may also be affected by other factors, such as changes in consumer taste,
economic conditions, population, and travel patterns.

Development Franchisee Program

We offer to qualified franchisees in certain states the opportunity to become a TPTEA®
development franchisee (a “Development Franchisee”) who will operate a TPTEA® Development
Franchisee business (a “Development Franchisee Business”) under a Development Franchisee
Rights Rider to the Franchise Agreement. The current form Development Franchisee Rights Rider
is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit B-1 (the “Development Franchisee Rights
Rider”). Development Franchisees are TPTEA Shop franchisees who recruit other individuals
interested in purchasing TPTEA Shop franchises and assist us in providing certain support and
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services to TPTEA Shop franchisees within a designated area. We do not charge any additional
fees for Development Franchisee Businesses. We will only grant Development Franchisee
Businesses to current TPTEA Shop franchisees who sign a Development Franchisee Rights Rider
to their Franchise Agreement. We do not grant standalone Development Franchisee Businesses.

If we have appointed, or appoint in the future, a Development Franchisee to operate a Development
Franchisee Business in the area in which your TPTEA Shop is located, that Development
Franchisee may provide training, support, marketing, and other services to you on our behalf and
will have the authority to exercise many of our rights and perform many of our obligations under
the Franchise Agreement. We may, without your consent, appoint a Development Franchisee or
a substitute for the Development Franchisee at any time. However, you are not required to order
products from or through any Development Franchisee, even if we appoint one in your area.

Applicable Regulations

You must comply with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations that apply to any business.
We urge you to inquiries about these laws and regulations, including health (nutrition, menu
labeling), sanitation, no smoking, EEOC, OSHA, discrimination, employment, data security and
privacy, tax, and sexual harassment laws. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 requires
readily accessible accommodations for individuals with disability and that may affect your
building construction, site design, entrance ramps, doors, seating, bathrooms, drinking facilities,
etc. You must also obtain real estate permits, licenses, and operational licenses. Federal, state and
local laws and regulations also regulate businesses handling food and food products, in particular
refrigerated and frozen food items, and these laws and regulations will apply to your business.
Please also note that local county health departments reserve the right to inspect Tea Shops to
ensure compliance with safe food handling practices and adequacy of kitchen facilities.

ITEM 2: BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer: Yen-Lin Liu

Ms. Liu serves as the Chief Executive Officer of TPTEA USA INC., located at 919 North Market
Street, Suite 950, Wilmington, DE 19801, since March 2025 to present. Ms. Liu also serves in
various positions in TPTEA Co., Ltd., located at No. 36, Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist.,Taichung City
408, Taiwan (R.O.C.): from 2011 to 2015 she served as Human Resources Manager; from 2015 to
present she has served as the Managing Director of the Administration Department; and from 2024,
she has concurrently served as the CEO.

Secretary: Chun-Han Chao

Mr. Chao serves as the Secretary of TPTEA USA INC., located at 919 North Market Street, Suite
950, Wilmington, DE 19801, since February 2018 to present. Mr. Chao also serves in various
positions in TPTEA Co., Ltd., located at No. 36, Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist.,Taichung City 408,
Taiwan (R.O.C.) since 2013 to present: from 2013 to 2018 he served as the assistance manager in
store development and engineering; from 2018 to 2020 he served as the manager in store
development and engineering; and from 2021 to present he served as the manager in operation and
Secretary.
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Manager of Franchise Operations: Yu-Chi Chang

Ms. Chang serves as Manager of Franchise Operations of TPTEA USA INC., located at 919 North
Market Street, Suite 950, Wilmington, DE 19801, since March 2025 to present. Ms. Chang also
serves in various positions in TPTEA Co., Ltd., located at No. 36, Xinfu Rd. Nantun
Dist., Taichung City 408, Taiwan (R.O.C.) since 2017 to present: from 2017 to 2020 she served
as the Manager of Operations; from 2021 to 2022 she served as the Manager of Strategy
Development; and from 2023 to present she has been the Manager of Brand Operation and
Franchise Management.

Development Franchisees: We may appoint Development Franchisees in certain geographic
areas to recruit and support franchisees in a designated area. We do not currently have any
Development Franchisees.

ITEM 3: LITIGATION

In The Matter of Determining Whether There Has Been a Violation of the Franchise
Investment Protection Act of Washington by TPTEA USA Inc. (Consent Order No. S-24-3712-
25-C0O01, Washington Department of Financial Institutions; Securities Division, complaint filed
June 9th, 2025). In this matter, the Washington Department of Financial Institutions (“WA DFI”)
filed a lawsuit against us alleging, among other things, that we offered and sold an unregistered
franchise in violation of RCW 19.100.010(6), (12) and (17). The WA DFI also alleged that we
violated RCW 19.100.170, because we did not disclose an alleged violation of California’s
franchise protection law (for the offer or sale of an unregistered franchise in that state). On July
7th, 2025, without admitting or denying the WA DFI’s allegations, we and the WA DFI entered
into a Consent Order to resolve the State’s complaint. Under the Consent Order, we agreed to pay
$2,500 in investigative costs and to cease and desist from: (1) offering or selling franchises in
violation of RCW 19.100.020, the registration section of Washington’s Franchise Investment
Protection Act, and (2) any violation of RCW 19.100.170, the anti-fraud section of Washington’s
Franchise Investment Protection Act.

Other than this action, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item for Development Franchisees.
ITEM 4: BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item for Development Franchisees.
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ITEM 5: INITIAL FEES

Non-Refundable and Fixed Fees

Initial Franchise Fee US$50,000
Technology Transfer Fee US$50,000
Design and Floor Plan Fee US$3,600~US$7,200

(Collectively, the “Non-Refundable and Fixed Fees”). The total amount of the Non-Refundable
and Fixed Fees is payable in lump sum within 3 business days following the signing date of the
Franchise Agreement. The Non-Refundable and Fixed Fees are not refundable and must be paid
in full without reduction or offset. Except for the Security Deposit, all fees listed in this Item are
non-refundable.

Refundable Security Deposit

You are also responsible for a refundable non-interest bearing interest Security Deposit of
US$50,000 (the “Refundable Security Deposit”), is payable in lump sum on the date of signing
the Franchise Agreement. Security Deposit will be returned to you at the expiration or termination
of the Franchise Agreement if you have not materially breached the Franchise Agreement.

Technology Transfer Fee

You must designate your personnel to attend the initial training session , which will take place on-
site at our designated training center located in Taiwan (Republic of China) for us to transfer
necessary technology, which may include unique and distinctive technology systems relating to
the development and operation of a TPTEA Tea Shop. You must pay us a technology transfer fee
in the amount of US$50,000. Following the signing of the Franchise Agreement, you will assign
five (5) of your staff to receive initial mandatory trainings for a minimum of twenty-five to thirty
(25~30) calendar days at a schedule agreed upon by both Parties. You will be solely responsible
for all of your staff’s incurred expenses including, but not limited to, wage, transportation,
accommodations and meal expenses.

Design and Floor Plan Fee

We will provide you our Store Development Guidelines including the corporation IDS, interior
decoration design, and other architectural element specifications. You will need to arrange for the
design of your authorized store according to the specifications and standards in our Store
Development Guidelines. You must submit the final proposed design layouts to us for our review
and approval one month before the construction begins.

Opening Inventory

Before you open your Tea Shop, we require you to purchase certain opening inventory from us,
our affiliates or third parties. This may include raw ingredients and products for resale, containers
and other paper, plastic or similar goods, maintenance and cleaning materials, office supplies and
miscellaneous materials and supplies. For the opening inventory that you might purchase from us
or our affiliates, we estimate that you will spend approximately $40,000. You must purchase
certain products from suppliers approved by us and these products may be subject to U.S. tariffs.
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You are not required to order products through any Development Franchisees. However, if you
choose to order products through a Development Franchisee, that Development Franchisee may
charge a service fee of up to 40% of the original purchase price. We expect that the service fee
would cover certain costs that the Development Franchisee might incur, for example, the costs
relating to: placing orders for franchisees, order consolidations, handling the importation of
products, warehousing services, and distribution of the products to the franchisees” TPTEA Tea
Shops

Multi-Unit Franchise Development
We do not charge any additional fees for franchisees who will operate multiple TPTEA Tea Shops
under a Multi-Unit Franchise Rider with us.

Development Franchisee Program
We do not charge any additional fees for franchisees who will operate a Development Franchisee

Business under a Development Franchisee Rights Rider with us.

ITEM 6: OTHER FEES

Type of fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(note 1)
Royalty Fees 6% of the Gross Monthly Sales | The royalty fee “Gross Monthly Sales” means the

for the previous
month is payable
before the 10th
of the next
month

aggregate amount of all sales of our
products, food, beverages and other
merchandise and products
approved by us and sold and
services rendered at Tea Shop per
month but excluding: (a) value-
added, sales or service taxes
collected from customers and paid
to the applicable governmental
taxing authority; and (b) all
customer refunds and adjustments
and promotional discounts,
including senior citizens discount.

Marketing Fund
Contributions

Currently not charged but we
have the right to collect up to
3% of the gross monthly sales.

The marketing
fund for the
previous month
is payable before
the 10th of the
next month

Applicable only when we have
established a Marketing Fund. See
Item 11 for details on Marketing
Fund

Our Expenses for
the On-Site
Training

Costs of lodging, board, air
tickets, transportation and work
permits/visa applications

When billed

We are responsible for training
staff salaries. This covers a one-
time training session. If you
request additional training, see Post
Opening Consultation Fees below
for costs.

Post-Opening
Consultation
Fees (note 2)

US$300 per person per day,
round trip airfare for the
business operation consultant(s)

Payable within 7
business days

These fees apply only if you
request additional consultation.
After the opening of the Tea Shop,
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Damages for

Confidential
Information
Upon Expiration

Failure to Return,
Delete or Destroy

Type of fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(note 1)
from our main training facility | following the in the event that you request
located in Taiwan (Republic of | invoice additional consultation service, you
China); and local will discuss and schedule with us in
transportation, meals, three advance. For all training sessions
stars or above hotel and conferences, you must pay for
accommodation of the business your trainees’ and representatives’
operation consultant(s), and salaries and benefits, and for their
other reasonable costs incur on travel, lodging, and meal expenses
behalf of you.
Supplier Testing | Varies but estimated to range When billed There is no administrative supplier
Fee between US$200 and US$300 testing fees, but you or the supplier
will be required to reimburse us for
all costs that we incur in the testing
and approval process whether the
supplier is approved or not.
Audit Fee Cost of audit but estimated to When billed Payable after an audit, which
range between US$4,000 and occurs only if we find that you
US$12,000 have understated any amount you
owe to us by more than 3%
Renewal Fees 10% of the relevant Initial When billed If the Franchise Agreement is
Franchise Fee renewed by us
Interest 16% per year or highest rate When billed You will owe us interest if you fail
allowed by law to pay us on time. Furthermore, if
you fail to make all required
payments within the period
provided, we may elect to terminate
our relationship by proving you
with a written notice.
Manual US$200 When billed If you request additional or
Replacement Fee replacement copies of the Manual
Liquidated The greater of US$100,000 or 5 | Per violation Franchisee is liable for all
Damages for times the amount of the total additional damages and losses
Buying from unauthorized purchases incurred by franchisor from
Unauthorized violation
Supplier
Liquidated US$1,000,000 Per violation We also have the right to terminate
Damages for the Franchise Agreement
Unapproved
Transfer
Liquidated US$300,000 Per Violation
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Type of fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(note 1)

Liquidated US$100,000 Per Violation See Chapter 6, Paragraph 3

Damages Upon Subparagraph (2) of the Franchise

Termination for Agreement

Enumerated

Breaches

Liquidated US$15,000 Per violation All gains that the Franchisee

Damages for All derives from the violations shall

Other Violation also be refunded to us

Cost and Will vary under circumstances | On demand If you default under the

Attorney Fees Agreements, you must reimburse
us for the expenses we incur (such
as attorney fees) in enforcing or
terminating the applicable
Agreements

Indemnification | Will vary under circumstances | On demand You must reimburse us for the
costs and damages we incur in for
any claims that arise from your Tea
Shop’s operation

Notes:

1. All fees as described in Item 6 are uniform, non-refundable and imposed by and are paid
to us. Except as otherwise indicated in the preceding chart, we impose all fees and expenses
listed and they must be paid in full. Unless otherwise stated above, fees will not increase.

2. The fee represents our cost of providing the training, including our administrative costs of
making personnel available for training purposes, and the cost of materials.

3. We do not charge any additional fees under the Multi-Unit Franchise Rider.

Development Franchisee Program
We do not charge any additional fees for franchisees who will operate a Development Franchisee

Business under a Development Franchisee Rights Rider with us.

ITEM 7: ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
To
. whom
Type of expenditure Amount Method of When due payment
(note 1) payment .
is to be
made
Initial Franchise Fee US$50,000 As arranged The total amount of the Us
Technology Transfer Non-Refundable and Us
Fee US$50,000 As arranged Fixed Fees is payable in
lump sum within three
. B (3) business days
Design aan Floor Plan %85576;(?0 As arranged following the signing Us
ee ’ date of the Franchise
Agreement.
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YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

To
. whom
Type of expenditure Amount Method of When due payment
(note 1) payment .
is to be
made
. payable on the date of
Refuntljjaglgssifcurlty US$50,000 As arranged signing Franchise Us
P Agreement.
Related Personnel Cost i Third
for Initial Training US$13,000 As arranged Before opening party
(note 2)
Equipment US$22,000 As arranged As incurred Third
(note 7) party
Utensils US$3,400 As arranged As incurred ;2::3
Rent fo(rnt:ti 'I?:t)ea Shop US$6,000 Be;‘;);er ;ﬂzr:(?g, As specified in lease gg:trsl
Rent for(::)(ie\/xirehouse US$0~ US$500 Be;‘;);er r(;[:r)]t;r:gg, As specified in lease 'ggrltrs
. US$35,000~ . .
Renovation ' Before opening, . Third
(note 5) US$50,000 as arranged As incurred party
US$70,000 Us, our
Opening Inventory . . affiliates,
(note 6) Before opening As incurred and Third
party
Licenses, Permlt_s, Fees US$3,500 Before opening Lump Sum Third
and Deposit party
Point ()(Lgsele?)s ystem US$3,000-5,000 Before opening As incurred ;2::3
Offlcesiggllf)gent & US$1,500 As arranged As incurred ;2::3
Uniforms US$300 Before Opening As incurred ;2::3
Insurance US$4,500 Before opening, As incurred Third
(note 8) as arranged party
Opening Advertising US$4,000 - $5,000 As arranged As incurred ;2::3
Additional Funds — 3 US$105,000 . Third
Months (note 9) As arranged As incurred Party
Total Cost US$424,800 — $446,900
Notes:

1. Your initial investment for a new Tea Shop depends primarily upon: (1) size; (2)
configuration; (3) location; (4) who develops the real estate for and/or constructs them;
and/or (5) the amount and terms of financing. The initial funds required must be
reevaluated since most costs are not within our control and may change at frequent intervals.
These figures are estimates only and we cannot and do not guarantee that your costs will
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fall within the stated ranges. These estimated ranges are based on our affiliate’s experience
operating Tea Shops outside of the U.S. Except as otherwise noted, all payments are non-
refundable. No separate initial investment is required if you sign a Multi-Unit Franchise
Rider with us.

2. Following the initial mandatory training -- which will occur in two phases and which will
take place (1) at our main training facility located in Taiwan (Republic of China), and (2)
at a tea shop in Taiwan (Republic of China) — prior to the Tea Shop opening, we will
provide the pre-opening support program that is part of the initial training program for 5 of
your employees at no cost at the Tea Shop. You will be responsible for the consultant’s
round trip airfares from Taiwan (Republic of China). For Additional Training, it is our
experience that none of our franchisee has requested additional training within the first
quarter following the opening of the Tea Shop, however, it is our experience that if the
franchisee takes more than 6 months from the completion of initial training to opening the
first store, it would often request additional training.

3. Depending on the structure of your lease, rental costs vary considerably according to the
type of Tea Shop, real estate values in your area, financing rate (leasehold or ownership),
location, size of the site, regulatory requirements and other factors such as labor. However,
we estimate that your pre-opening rental-related costs will be approximately $6,000.
Factors that typically affect your rental costs include your cost to negotiate your lease (or
buy the property), fair market lease values and lease terms in your area, how the costs to
renovate or develop the land, building and other site improvements are allocated between
landlord and tenant and interest costs, among others. Lease terms are individually
negotiated and may vary materially from one location or transaction to another.
Commercial leases are typically “triple net” leases, requiring you to pay rent, all taxes,
insurance, maintenance, repairs, common area maintenance costs, merchants’ association
fees and all other costs associated with the property. You may also have to pay percentage
rent.

4. You may need to rent a warehouse depending on (1) the location of the Tea Shop, (2) your
method in controlling your inventories or storing your equipment, or (3) how many Tea
Shop you wish to open. Factors similar to the Tea Shop rental cost also apply to warehouse
rental cost.

5. Renovation costs include, among others, architectural, engineering and legal fees. These
estimates do not include extraordinary costs due to extensive redesigning, permit fees,
variances, environmental issues, legal obstacles, etc.

6. Before opening a Tea Shop, you must purchase an initial inventory consisting of products
from suppliers approved by us and these products may be subject to U.S. tariffs. You are
not required to order products through any Development Franchisees. However, if you
choose to order products through a Development Franchisee, that Development Franchisee
may charge a service fee of up to 40% of the original purchase price. We expect that the
service fee would cover certain costs that the Development Franchisee might incur, for
example, the costs relating to: placing orders for franchisees, order consolidations,
handling the importation of products, warehousing services, and distribution of the
products to the franchisees’ TPTEA Tea Shops. The assortment and number of these items
will be based upon the size and configuration of your Tea Shop. The estimated cost for the
opening inventory of these products varies from location to location depending on seasons
and the storage capacity of the Tea Shop. Your initial inventory of merchandise and
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supplies needed for the operation of the Tea Shop will include raw ingredients and products
for resale, containers and other paper, plastic or similar goods, maintenance and cleaning
materials, office supplies and miscellaneous materials and supplies.

7. The price for the POS System reflects equipment configurations and solution costs, site
preparation and installation for one point of sale systems. We do not recommend more than
one point of sale systems unless the size and configuration of the Tea Shop requires it. The
estimate for the Equipment reflects the estimated cost that you may incur in purchasing or
leasing other equipment that you will need to operate the Tea Shop (other than the POS
System and the office equipment and supplies listed separately in this table).

8. You must provide commercial general liability coverage with minimum limits in the
amount of $2,000,000 per occurrence in accordance with our published standards, (subject
to change) and maintain other insurance in accordance with state law requirements. Some
property owners may require higher levels of commercial general liability insurance or
other insurance coverage under their leases. Initial premiums for commercial general
liability are subject to change due to market forces beyond our control, but usually range
between $1,000 and $5,000 per year. The cost of other coverage, including workers’
compensation coverage and your discretionary purchases, varies widely, but may range
from $3,500 to $10,000 per year. Your premium may be higher based upon your risk profile.
You should discuss with your insurance carrier/agent whether or not these costs need to be
paid in full before opening or whether they can be budgeted. Failure to maintain such
insurance may result in loss of your franchise and additional financial obligations.

9. Additional Funds is an estimate of the funds needed to cover business (not personal)
expenses during the first three (3) months of operating the Tea Shop and is based on our
affiliate’s experience operating Tea Shops outside the U.S. It includes estimated cost of
sales and operating expenses incurred during the initial three (3) months (such as estimated
payroll for approximately 5 personnel/key Principal Operators (see Item 11), utilities, taxes
and other expenses), although your actual cost may be higher. The Additional Funds
exclude owner’s salary/draw, non-Tea Shop management expenses, and the purchase of
the Tea Shop’s opening inventory.

We do not offer financing for any portion of your Estimated Initial Investment.

Development Franchisee Program

We do not charge any additional fees for franchisees who will operate a Development Franchisee
Business under a Development Franchisee Rights Rider with us and there is no separate initial
investment required when you sign a Development Franchisee Rights Rider.

ITEM 8: RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Required purchases

All the Tea Shop must be developed and operated to our specifications and standards. Uniformity
of products sold in Tea Shops is important, and you have no discretion in the products that you
sell. We may periodically make changes to the systems, menu, standards, and facility, signage,
equipment and fixture requirements. You may have to make additional investments in the
franchised business periodically during the term of the franchise if those kinds of changes are made
or if your tea shop’s equipment or facilities wear out or become obsolete, or for other reasons (for
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example, as may be needed to comply with a change in the system standards or code changes).
The Agreements may be limited to a single, specific location and we reserve the right to operate
or franchise or license others who may compete with you for the same customers.

We and our affiliates have spent considerable time, effort and money to develop the TPTEA
System. We have acquired experience and skill in developing the TPTEA System, which includes
producing, merchandizing and selling TPTEA bubble tea, coffee-based beverage, and other
products and merchandise that we approve. The distinguishing characteristics of our TPTEA
System include, among others, proprietary trademarks, distinctive exterior and interior design,
decor, color and identification schemes and furnishings; special menu items; standards,
specifications, requirements and procedures for operations, manufacturing, distribution and
delivery; quality and safety of products and services offered; management systems/programs;
training and assistance; and marketing, advertising and promotional programs. You must conform
to our high standards of consistency, quality, safety, cleanliness, appearance and service. We
anticipate that our standards will change over time. You are expected to adhere to these changes.

Required and approved suppliers

The reputation and goodwill of TPTEA System is based upon, and can be maintained only by, the
sale of high quality products. All products, including food supplies, utensils, cups, equipment and
materials and services from your Tea Shop must meet our specifications, standards, and
requirements. Your products must be sourced from suppliers that we approve (including
manufacturers, distributors and other providers of goods and services).

We do not have exclusive suppliers of our products, cups, teas, or equipment at this point, and we
will provide you with a list of suppliers that already meet our specifications. For your information,
we and our parent company, TPTEA Taiwan, are approved suppliers for the products and supplies
listed in the paragraph above, but we are not the only approved suppliers for the products and
equipment that you will need to operate the Tea Shop. You can expect that the items purchased
from approved suppliers in accordance with our specifications represent over 95% (in total number
of items), or 80% (in dollar amounts), of the total purchases for establishing and operating the
franchised business. Suppliers are required to share shipping, distribution and all other information
with us, and you will be required to cooperate. You are not required to order products through any
Development Franchisees. However, if you choose to order products through a Development
Franchisee, that Development Franchisee may charge a service fee of up to 40% of the original
purchase price. We expect that the service fee would cover certain costs that the Development
Franchisee might incur, for example, the costs relating to: placing orders for franchisees, order
consolidations, handling the importation of products, warehousing services, and distribution of the
products to the franchisees” TPTEA Tea Shops.

Approval of alternative suppliers

You may also suggest suppliers, but please note that every supplier must demonstrate, based on
our judgment, that it meets all specifications, standards, and requirements and has adequate
capacity to supply our franchisees’ quantity and delivery needs, which may mean, among other
things, the ability to supply all franchisees in the TPTEA System. Before approving any supplier,
we may take into consideration: a) consistency of products and/or name brands in (and between)
our TPTEA Systems, b) economies of scale achieved by larger volumes, and c) certain other
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benefits that a particular supplier may offer, such as new product development capability. When
approving a supplier, we take into consideration the TPTEA System as a whole, which means that
certain franchisees may pay higher prices than they could receive from another supplier that is not
approved. We reserve the right to withhold approval of a supplier at our discretion. A list of
approved suppliers is available on request.

Our criteria for approving alternative suppliers are not available to you or your proposed suppliers.
You and/or the supplier may request approval by submitting the request to us in writing. We may
require that samples from the supplier be delivered to us or to a designated independent testing
laboratory for testing prior to approval and use. All requests will be reviewed in accordance with
our then-current procedures and we will take into consideration our available resources, which
may affect the timing of our response. The supplier must meet our then-current specifications,
standards and requirements, which may include signing a non-disclosure agreement and a
guarantee of performance. We may change our specifications, standards and requirements at any
time. There is no limit on our right to do so. If the supplier that you propose is initially approved
or rejected, we will notify you and the supplier within three (3) months. We may withdraw our
approval at any time if the supplier’s performance does not meet our criteria, our specifications,
standards or requirements or other reasons. This is not administrative approval process fees, but
you or the supplier will be required to reimburse us for all costs that we incur in the testing and
approval process whether the supplier is approved or not.

We may limit the number of potential suppliers that we consider for approval and for some
categories of products we will designate a third party or ourselves as an exclusive supplier. We
may designate exclusive suppliers for some categories of products or services including purchasing,
distribution, fountain and packaged beverage products, point of sale equipment, integrated point
of sale back office, help desk support, and high speed internet access. Currently, you will have to
purchase beverage syrup and proprietary teas from our designated suppliers. We and our affiliate
are also approved suppliers, but we are not the only approved supplier of any product or service.

Revenue from franchisee purchases

We and our affiliate may derive revenue from required purchases, but not from leases by
franchisees. In 2024, our affiliate, TPTEA Taiwan received NTD60,995,000 (approximately
US$1,848,305 based on the NTD-USD exchange rate as of March 21, 2025) from franchisee
purchases in the United States. We did not receive any rebates from suppliers on account of
franchisee purchases in the United States in 2024 although we reserve the right to do so in the
future.

Except as described above, neither we nor our affiliates currently derive revenue or other material
consideration on account of our or their actual or prospective dealing with you and other
franchisees. However, we and our affiliates reserve the right to do so and to use all amounts that
we and our affiliates receive without restriction (unless we and our affiliate agree otherwise with
the supplier) for any purposes we and our affiliates deem appropriate.

To our knowledge, except for TPTEA, there are no approved suppliers in which any of our officers
or directors own an interest.
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Other Requirement

You must obtain and maintain, at your own expense, the insurance coverage that we periodically
require and satisfy other insurance-related obligations as provided in the Agreements. You must
provide commercial general liability coverage with minimum limits in the amount of $2,000,000
per occurrence. Premium depends on the insurance carrier’s charges, terms of payment, and your
history. All insurance policies must name us as an additional insured party.

You must send us for review samples of all advertising, promotional, and marketing materials that
we have not prepared or previously approved thirty (30) days before you use any such materials.
If you do not receive written disapproval within thirty (30) days after we receive the materials,
they are deemed to be rejected. You may not use any advertising, promotional, or marketing
materials that we have not approved.

Your proposed locations must be approved by us. We must receive and review a proposed lease
or purchase agreement in form for execution. We will use commercially reasonable effort to inform
you of our approval or disapproval within a reasonable time after our receipt of the proposed lease
or purchase agreement.

We require you to have a sufficient workstation (a computer, monitor, and printer) that can operate
reasonable version of Microsoft words and excel, and is capable of accessing the Internet. Please
refer to Item 11 for further details.

Cooperatives

There are currently no purchasing or distribution cooperatives. We may negotiate purchase
arrangements with supplier (including price terms), for the benefit of the TPTEA System. We do
not provide material benefits to you (for example, renewal or granting additional franchises) based
on your purchase of particular products or services or use of particular supplier.

Negotiated prices
We do not negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers, including price terms, for the benefit
of the franchisees.

Material benefits
Except as described above, we do not provide any material benefits to you if you buy from sources
we approve.

[Item 9 begins on next page]
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ITEM 9: FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in
other items of this Disclosure Document

Obligation Article in Franchise Agreement, Multi-Unit | Disclosure
Franchise Rider and Development Document
Franchisee Rights Rider Item
Site selection and Avrticle 3 in Franchise Agreement Items 1,11 &
acquisition/lease 12
Pre-opening purchase/lease Acrticles 3, 9, 10, 12,13, 14, and 19 in Items 1, 6, 7,
Franchise Agreement &11
Site development and other pre- Articles 3, 10, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19 in Franchise | ltems 1, 6, 7,
opening requirements Agreement & 11
Initial and ongoing training Acrticle 9 in Franchise Agreement; Section 5.B | Items5 & 11
in Development Franchisee Rights Rider
Opening Articles 1, 3, 9, 10 in Franchise Agreement Item 11
Fees Articles 1,6, 7, 8,9, 12, 13, 14, 16, 19 in Items5 & 6
Franchise Agreement; Section 4 in Multi-Unit
Franchise Rider
Compliance with standards and Articles 1, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 in Franchise | Item 11
policies/Operations Manual Agreement; Section 5 in Development
Franchisee Rights Rider
Trademarks and Proprietary Articles 1, 2, 4, 5, 10, 20, 21 in Franchise Items 13 &
information Agreement; Section 2 in Development 14
Franchisee Rights Rider
Restrictions on products/services | Articles 1, 2, 4, 5, 10, 16, 18, 20, 22 in Item 16
offered Franchise Agreement; Sections 2 and 7 in
Development Franchisee Rights Rider
Warranty and customer service Avrticles 8, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15 in Franchise Item 11
requirement Agreement
Territorial development and sales | Articles 1, 3, 33 in Franchise Agreement; Items 1 & 12
quotas Exhibit A to Multi-Unit Franchise Rider;
Section 6 in Development Franchisee Rights
Rider
Ongoing product/service Avrticles 12, 13, 19 in Franchise Agreement; Item 8
purchases Section 5.E in Development Franchisee
Rights Rider
. Maintenance, appearance and Articles 1, 13, 15 in Franchise Agreement Item 11
remodeling requirements
Insurance Avrticle 10 in Franchise Agreement; Section Items 7 & 8
5.H in Development Franchisee Rights Rider
Advertising Article 16 in Franchise Agreement Items 6 & 11
Indemnification Articles 4, 10, 12, 21, 24 in Franchise Item 6
Agreement
Owner’s Articles 1, 9, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 19, 23 | ltems 11 &
participation/management/staffing | in Franchise Agreement 15
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Obligation Avrticle in Franchise Agreement, Multi-Unit | Disclosure

Franchise Rider and Development Document
Franchisee Rights Rider Item
Records and reports Articles 7, 10, 17, 18, 19 in Franchise Item 6
Agreement
Inspections and audits Avrticles 7, 10, 13, 17 in Franchise Agreement | ltems6 & 11
Transfer Article 1 in Franchise Agreement; Section 6 Item 17

in Multi-Unit Franchise Rider; Section 12 in
Development Franchisee Rights Rider

Renewal Article 1 in Franchise Agreement Item 17
Post-termination obligations Articles 5, 21, 22, 23 in Franchise Agreement | Item 17
. Non-competition covenants Article 22 in Franchise Agreement Item 17
Dispute resolution Article 25 in Franchise Agreement Item 17
Other Not applicable None

ITEM 10: FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or obligation.

ITEM 11: FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

If we have appointed, or appoint in the future, a Development Franchisee to operate a Development
Franchisee Business in the area in which your TPTEA Shop is located, that Development
Franchisee may provide the training, support, marketing, and other services described in this Item
11 to you on our behalf and will have the authority to exercise many of our rights and perform
many of our obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

Pre-Opening Obligations

1.

We do not find locations for you. You will need to find your own location(s) and negotiate
your own real estate interest. If you are developing a new Tea Shop, we will approve the
location if it meets our standards. It is important to know that our written approval of a location
is not and should not be a guarantee of success at that location. Many factors, some known and
some unknown, may impact the success of a particular location. We will provide you with a
copy of our standard plans and specifications for the Tea Shop. You must conform the premises
to all codes and ordinances and obtain all required permits. You must construct or remodel the
location to our standards and subject to our written approval. (See Article 3 of the Franchise
Agreement).

We will provide you the standards for designing, constructing and equipping your Tea Shop.
(See Articles 13 of the Franchise Agreement).

If you are opening a new Tea Shop, we will make an initial training program available to you
and/or your designated representative. If you are purchasing an existing Tea Shop or need to
have additional individuals attend training, you will pay an additional fee. You (and/or your
designated representative) must successfully and timely complete the training program in order
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to become (or remain) a franchisee. (See Article 9 of the Franchise Agreement). If you sign a
Development Franchisee Rider with us, we may periodically conduct mandatory or optional
development franchisee training programs (including before you open a TPTEA Shop). (See
Section 5.B of the Development Franchisee Rights Rider)

On-site pre-opening assistance at the Tea Shop. (See Articles 3, 9, 10 & 13 of the Franchise
Agreement).

Advertising and promotional materials for use in the pre-opening promotion of the Tea Shop.
(See Articles 4, 5 & 16 of the Franchise Agreement).

We will provide you with a copy of our operations manual concerning techniques of managing
and operating the Tea Shop. (See Articles 1 of the Franchise Agreement). If you sign a
Development Franchisee Rider with us, we will also give you access to our Development
Franchisee Business Manual as part of our regular operations manual (See Section 5.A of the
Development Franchisee Rights Rider).

We will provide advice regarding authorized suppliers of equipment and materials used, and
inventory offered for sale, in connection with the Tea Shop. (See Articles 12 of the Franchise
Agreement).

We will make available for purchase by you, directly from us or through authorized suppliers,
the equipment, products, materials and inventory required by you to establish and operate the
Tea Shop in accordance with the Agreements. Specifically, we will provide you with
specification and details requirements of all necessary equipment, signs, fixtures, opening
inventory, and supplies. For advertising print and marketing materials (such as signs and
menus), we will provide you with templates, and you will need to locate local printers. For
equipment and certain key ingredients and raw materials, we will only provide the names of
approved suppliers. For items such as furniture and fixture, we will provide you with
specification and requirement for your conformation. We will not deliver or installs these items.
(See Article 10, 12 &16 of the Franchise Agreement).

Designate a specific number of TPTEA Tea Shops that you must develop and open (if you sign
a Multi-Unit Franchise Rider with us). (See Exhibit A of the Multi-Unit Franchise Rider)

Post-Opening Obligations
The following are our obligations during the operation of the franchise business:

1.

We will maintain a continuing advisory relationship with you, providing such assistance as we
deem appropriate regarding the development and operation of the Tea Shops. (See Article 3,
9, 10, 13 & 16 of the Franchise Agreement).

We will provide you with standards for the location, physical characteristics and operating
systems of Tea Shops and other concepts; the products that are sold; the qualifications of
suppliers; the qualifications, organization and training of franchisees and their personnel; the
marketing of products and our brand; and all other things affecting the experience of consumers
who patronize our TPTEA System. We make those standards available to you in our manuals
and in other forms of communication, which we may update from time to time. (See Article 1,
9, 10, 12, 13 & 15 of the Franchise Agreement). If you sign a Development Franchisee Rider
with us, we will also give you access to our Development Franchisee Business standards (See
Section 5.A of the Development Franchisee Rights Rider).

We shall continue our efforts to maintain high and uniform standards of quality, cleanliness,
appearance and service at all Tea Shops. (See Article 1, 12, 10, 15, 17 &18 of the Franchise
Agreement).

TPTEA USA

March 2025 FDD 17
1619321197.3



4. We will review advertising and promotional materials that you propose to use locally. (See
Article 16 of the Franchise Agreement).

5. We will update the operations manual, including new developments and improvements in
equipment, food products, packaging and preparation. (See Article 1, 15 & 18 of the Franchise
Agreement).

6. On-site post opening assistance at the Tea Shop as we find appropriate. (See Article 9 of the
Franchise Agreement).

7. Administration of the advertising fund, when and if it is created. (See Article 16 of the
Franchise Agreement).

Please note that it usually takes 6-8 months between (i) the earlier of the (a) singing of the
Franchise Agreement or (b) first payment of Fees; and (ii) the opening of the Tea Shop. The reason
may be due to factors such as the availability of a site, financing, building permits, zoning and
local ordinances. We typically do not experience shortages or delayed installation of equipment,
fixtures, and signs.

Advertising Expenditures

You must spend reasonable amount on advertising for the Tea Shop in local advertising at your
expense, and we estimate that an approximately 3% of the gross monthly sales of the Tea Shop
would be reasonable. The amount is not paid to us, but rather is spent by you. You may use your
own local advertising, including directory advertising, newspaper ads, flyers, brochures, coupons,
direct mail pieces, specialty and novelty items and radio and television advertising. All advertising
must comply with our brand guidelines and obtain our prior written approval of all your local
advertising and promotional plans and all materials you would like to use and it will be at your
expense.

We do not currently have a marketing fund, though we reserve the right to establish and administer
such a marketing fund in the future on a regional or national basis and which will be contributed
into only by our franchisees. We do not anticipate enacting the marketing fund during this calendar
year, or until we determine that a sufficient number of Tea Shops are open and operating so that
regional or national advertising provides a benefit to the TPTEA System. However, when we do
establish the marketing fund, you will have to participate and will have to contribute to the
marketing fund up to 3% of the gross monthly sales of the Tea Shop to be paid in the same manner
as the royalty payments. When and if established, the amount to be paid to the marketing fund is
certain percentage of gross monthly sales to be determined by both Parties in writing. The
marketing fund nor any funds for advertising and marketing will be used for advertisement that is
principally a solicitation for the sale of franchises for TPTEA System. If and when a market fund
is established, we have no obligation to spend any amount on advertising in the area or territory
where your Tea Shop is located. Once a marketing fund is established, financial statements will
be available to you upon written request, but we have no obligation to have the fund audited.

We do not currently have a franchisee advertising council that advises us on advertising policies,
though we reserve the right to establish such a council in the future. As of today, we did not collect
or spend any money from the marketing fund. We currently do not have a local or regional
advertising cooperative, and that we are not planning to set up one. If we do in the future, you are
not required to participate in one.
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We do not have an obligation to conduct advertising, such as advertise through our website, TV
ads, radio ads, promotional events, and local flyers. If we choose to conduct advertisement on
behalf of the TPTEA brand, the source of the advertising would be an in-house advertising
department. Currently we do not have a minimum amount on advertising in the area or territory
where you are located.

Please note that we may set minimum and/or maximum prices for the goods and services you sell
under the TPTEA System. We may also participate in any promotional pricing established by us.

Computer and Electronic Cash Register Systems

We require you to have a sufficient workstation (a computer, monitor, and printer) that meets our
minimum standards that can operate Microsoft words and excel, and is capable of accessing the
Internet. This workstation may also be used for any other software that you use to manage your
business. We do not have any obligation for maintenance, repairs, updates and upgrades of your
computerized system but we estimate that the cost of maintenance, repairs, updates and upgrades
of your computerized system will range from US$3,000 to US$3,500 annually.

We have independent access to the data generated by your computer system. We may require you
to upgrade or update your computer hardware or software during the term of the Agreements.
There are no contractual limitations on the frequency or cost of this obligation.

We require you to process and record all of your sales on a point of sale/back-office system (“POS
System”) that is approved by us. The approved POS systems are (1) capable of recording sales
data; (2) cannot modify or reset and they retain data in the event of power loss, (3) may be accessed
remotely for auditing purpose, (4) is connected online on an all-time basis to transfer data to our
designated site, and (5) grant us the highest level of managerial access to both the front house and
back of the house system. The cost of purchasing a POS System that fits our standard is estimated
to be US$3020, and there should not be any annual cost once the system is purchased.

Operations Manual

We will provide to you a copy of the Tea Shop operations management manual(s) for each TPTEA
System that you are franchised to operate. Each operations manual contains mandatory and
suggested standards, operating procedures and rules that we prescribe for the TPTEA System. The
operations manuals are confidential, copyrighted and are not to be reproduced or distributed to any
unauthorized person. We can change the terms of, and add to, the operations manuals whenever
we believe it is appropriate. If you sign a Development Franchisee Rider with us, we will also
give you access to our Development Franchisee Business Manual, which is part of our regular
manual.

Site and Lease Approval

For new Tea Shops, we may select the site, or we may approve a site that you select and bring to
us. Factors affecting our decision generally include location, occupancy costs, proximity to major
retail activity, traffic volume and speed, density of nearby population (resident or daytime),
competition and potential for encroachment on other Tea Shops of the same brand, site
configuration, parking, accessibility, visibility, signage permitted by the landlord and local
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governmental authorities and other factors. Each site is considered individually, as no two sites are
the same. Factors other than those listed above may be considered in evaluating a particular site.
We do not guarantee that any site will be successful.

If you submit a site for our approval, you must provide us with all required information about the
site. If you fail to identify and propose sites for our review and approval within 60 calendar days
from the execution of the Franchise Agreement, we reserve the right to terminate the Franchise
Agreement immediately without further notice, and the Fees will be forfeited. You must provide
a copy of the lease for our record. You may not begin any construction on a site until we have
approved it. We do not typically pay “finders’ fees” for sites. We also do not typically own or take
a lease a premise and then lease it to our franchisees. We are not required to provide you with
assistance in negotiating the purchase or lease of the site, but we may do so in some cases.

All sites must be approved by us, and must be developed by you in accordance with our
requirements. You cannot develop a site until we approve it. We will not reimburse you for any
costs you incur with respect to any location that you submit to us for approval. While we try to
promptly review nominated sites, we will respond within ten (10) business days upon receiving
such request. If ultimate the parties have failed to agree upon a site, and as a result you fail to open
your Tea Shop within 12 months after signing the Franchise Agreement, then we could terminate
the Franchise Agreement immediately.

If you will construct your Tea Shop, we will provide you standard, generic plans and specifications
for the improvements, furnishings, fixtures and decor of the type of Tea Shop approved for your
site. You must then, at your expense, have specific plans and specifications for construction or
conversion of the space for the Tea Shop (and conforming to local ordinances and building codes,
as well as obtaining the necessary permits) prepared by a licensed architect. Before you may begin
construction, these plans and specifications must be approved by us in writing. We must approve
any changes made during construction in writing. All construction will be at your sole expense.

You must ensure, prior to the opening of the Tea Shop, that the Tea Shop is accessible to and
usable by persons with disabilities and meets the Standards for Accessible Design for new
construction, as may be amended from time to time, or any more stringent accessibility standard
under federal, state or local law.

Hiring and Training

We do not provide any assistance in hiring your employees. The initial approximately 25 to 30
calendar days mandatory training is held only once per franchisee and it includes two phases: an
initial training at our main training facility as well as training tea shop in Taiwan (Republic of
China). We only offer initial training once, and it is scheduled in accordance with both parties’
convenience and availability, as long as it is completed prior to the opening of the first Tea Shop.
We do not, however, have a requirement on how soon after singing or before opening the initial
training must be completed.

Our training program includes but is not limited to the following: corporate overview, store
operational management, front of the house training, tea management, and counter operation. We
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may offer special training courses such as service staff training, special promotion training, other
pre-opening supports and continuous organizational supports.

If you sign a Development Franchisee Rider with us, we may periodically conduct mandatory or
optional development franchisee training programs for you or your employees at our office or
another location that we designate. There will be no charge for these training programs that you
(or your employees attend (and must satisfactorily complete). We may provide training in person
or via recorded media, teleconference, videoconference, the Internet, webinar, or any other means,
as we determine.

TRAINING PROGRAM

Subject Hours of Hours of On- Location
Classroom the-Job
Training Training

Corporate & Training 10 Designated Training Facility in
Overview and Taiwan or training store
Introduction
Store Operational 8 Training store
Management
Front of the house 72 Training store
training
Tea Management 40 Training store
Counter Operation 32 Training store
Actual On-Site Operation 64 Training store
Training
Store Opening Process 8 Designated Training Facility in
and Equipment Taiwan , Training store or
Maintenance Equipment Manufacturers

We have a dedicated team of instructors for the TPTEA training program. The lead trainer,
Ms. Ru-Chian Tsai, has decades of experience in the hospitality, training, and service industry,
and specifically 18 years of store operation, HR training, and retail sales experience with TPTEA
System. She is one of the senior operational managers and has trained people in tea shops in
Taiwan and oversea areas. Mr. Jen-Chih Wu has 20 years of store operation, HR training, and
retail sales experience with TPTEA System. He is one of the operational managers, and has trained
people in Tea Shops in Taiwan, U.S. and Canada. Hung-Chi Shih has 12 years of store operation,
HR training, and retail sales experience with TPTEA System.

The initial training is for five (5) of your key staff designated by you to assume primary
responsibility for the management of the Tea Shop(s) (the “Principal Operators”). The Principal
Operators must have a food and beverage operational experience or managerial experience. The
initial training program involves a minimum of 25 to 30 calendar days of instruction, and all five
(5) personnel will to be trained together at the same time. We may lengthen, shorten or restructure
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the content of this program. The initial training will be conducted at our designated training facility
and at an actual Tea Shop. Please note that our designated training facility may not be located in
the United States. For the second and each subsequent Tea Shop that you open, at least three (3)
of your employees must be trained by your certified trainers at your sole cost and expense.

The initial training program will mainly go over the Operating Manual (please see the Operating
Manual’s Table of Content as provided below) and the topic as describe in the table above. The
initial training program is mandatory for all franchisees. You or the Principal Operators, whichever
is applicable, must complete the program to our satisfaction. The program must be completed prior
to the opening of the Tea Shop. Scheduling of the program is based on your availability and the
projected opening date for your Tea Shop. The initial training program is designed to cover all
phases of the operation of a Tea Shop. We reserve the right to waive a portion of the initial training
program or alter the training schedule if, in our sole discretion, you or the Principal Operator has
sufficient prior experience or training. We will make the initial training program available to
replacement or additional Principal Operators during the term of the Franchise Agreement.

If the Principal Operators do not successfully and timely complete all training and certification
requirements, including all initial training requirements, you will not be granted a franchise (and
we will have the right to terminate the Agreement if it was signs anticipating that you (or your
team) would not successfully and timely complete initial training). You are required to complete
the initial training within a reasonable amount of time following the singing of the Franchise
Agreement.

You and your Tea Shop managers must have literacy and fluency in the English language, in our
good faith opinion, to satisfactorily complete our training program and to communicate with
employees, customers, and suppliers.

During the period of the Tea Shop opening under the Franchise Agreement, we pay the cost of
presenting the initial training program. If you sign a Development Franchisee Rights Rider with
us, we will also not charge you for the initial training program for Development Franchisees.
However, you must pay for you and your employees’ salaries, accommodations, travel expenses
and other reasonable expenses, if any. If you demand to conduct the initial training program in a
location other than your Tea Shop, then you may be charged certain additional costs such as your
portion of the costs for the meeting room. You must also pay for later training programs that we
may conduct or require.

Opening Support

We will send our opening support team in accordance with the followings:

1. For the first Tea Shop that you will operate:

a. The opening support team of one (1) to four (4) people will arrive for approximately seven

(7) days prior to the opening to assist the Principal Operators and to train the new staff. All
members will stay for a period of approximately seven (7) days to train the new staff, and
one of the opening support team will remain for approximately fourteen (14) to thirty (30)
days to ensure a smooth transition.
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2. If you will operate multiple Tea Shops, for the second and third Tea Shops that you will operate,
we will provide the opening support in any form that we deem appropriate, including sending
one staff member to your store, or providing support via telephone, video conferencing, written
communication and other methods.

3. You will be responsible for the lodging, food and beverage, air tickets, transportation, work
permits/visa, and other documents for the opening support team. We will be responsible for the
salaries of the opening support team.

Post-Opening Consultation

We may, at your request, provide additional technical and orientation personnel to assist you in
developing and launching additional Tea Shops. You shall pay for the expenditures accrued by the
said personnel. In the event we have advanced the cost of the said expenditures, you shall
reimburse the same amount in lump sum. You will be required to make payments towards the
following expenses within seven (7) business days upon receiving our written reimbursement
request. The said personnel expenditures may include a US$300 per person per day for each field
visit to pay for the technical and orientation personnel; round trip economic airfare for the business
operation consultant(s); the local traveling expenses, three stars or above lodging, food and
beverage, and other reasonable costs incur on behalf of you. Our training programs are regularly
reviewed and updated. As mentioned in Items 6 and 8, you may propose alternative supplier, and
there is no administrative supplier testing fees. But you or the supplier will be required to reimburse
us for all costs that we incur in the testing and approval process whether the supplier is approved
or not.

Operating Manual’s Table of Content
Below please find the table of content of our operating manual, which will be used as the
instructional handbook used during our initial training.

1. Company Regulation P 05~24
2. Administrative Regulation P25~35
3. Supervisor Manual P36~41
4. Inspection Sheet-Supervisor Standard P42 ~ 46
5. Certificate Qualification and Guidelines P.47 ~ 48
6. Evaluation Guidelines P. 49

7. Promotion Examination Question Samples P50 ~55
8. Sample Answer Keys P 56 ~ 82

ITEM 12: TERRITORY

Franchise Agreement

You have the right to develop and open one Tea Shop within a territory, which will be an area
within a 4-mile radius of the site of your Tea Shop (the “Territory”). Your right to operate one
Tea Shop and the Territorial Right pursuant to the Franchise Agreement is limited solely within
the Territory as set forth in the Franchise Agreement. You must obtain our prior written approval
of the site to be located in the Territory. As long as you open and operate the Tea Shop within 12
months after signing of the Franchise Agreement, continue to own and operate that Tea Shop at
all times during the term of the Franchise Agreement, and otherwise comply with the Franchise
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Agreement, we will not operate or grant another franchisee the right to operate a Tea Shop in the
Territory. Furthermore, the Franchise Agreement will further list various terms and conditions
that you will have to adhere to, such as adherence to the operational standard that we expect in
each Tea Shop, the compliance with local laws and regulations, respect and protection toward our
Trademarks, know-how, and other intellectual property rights; and timely payment of royalties
and other fees. Other than not granting another Tea Shop in your Territory, you will not receive
an exclusive territory.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees,
from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we
control.

You do not have the right to distribute products through alternative channels of distribution.
Specifically, you cannot solicit or accept orders from consumers outside of your Tea Shop, either
through Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing, to make sales outside of
the Tea Shop. You may not use alternative channels of distribution for our products and trademarks
and/or expand our sale of products the Territory, such as the right to distribute products identified
by our trademarks (or by any other name or trademark) anywhere and in any form (e.g., in
packaged form or otherwise), through any distribution methods or channels, as long as you have
obtained our prior written consent. We currently do not have existing plan of alternative channels
of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing, to make
sales within Tea Shops under a trademarks different from the TPTEA Trademarks. Other than the
Royalty Payment, we will not be compensated by you for soliciting or accepting orders from the
Tea Shop.

We also retain the sole right to use our trademarks on the Internet, including in connection with
websites, domain names, directory addresses, metatags, as graphic images on web pages, linking,
advertising, co-branding, and other arrangements. You may not maintain a TPTEA website. If we
do ever approve a website that you promote and develop, we have the right to condition our
approval on the terms that we determine are necessary, such as requiring that your domain name
and home page belong to us and be licensed to you for your use during the term of your agreement.

Under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, you do have the right to relocate your Tea Shop as
long as you have received our prior site approval. If you request relocation, you must obtain our
prior written approval for the site and meet our then-current criteria for relocation, which we will
grant based at our sole discretion. Our decision would be based on various factors, including but
not limited to, the past performance of the Tea Shop under your management, your relationship
with the existing staff and their ability to relocate with you, the relocation address, population, and
competition.

Unless you sign a Multi-Unit Franchise Rider with us (see below), you have no options, rights of
first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional franchises. In the event that we grant you the
relocation or additional franchised outlet, you must be current with all your obligations to us and
must sign our then-current Franchise Agreement, with all then-current on-going fees, for a term
equal to the term remaining on your Franchise Agreement for the previous or original location.
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You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other
channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. You have no rights relating to the
distribution channels referenced above in this Item 12. Furthermore, we reserve the right to modify
the Territory in an event of population changes, of which we will discuss with you in good faith
and reach a mutually agreeable consensus in writing. Except as described in this Item 12,
continuation of your territorial protection in the Territory does not depend on your achieving a
certain sales volume, market penetration, or other contingency.

We may compete with your location and that draw customers from the same area as your Tea Shop
through distribution and use or sale of TPTEA-trademarked products in a hotel room, an office or
a supermarket, or through vending machine, tea stall, or tea truck. Furthermore, you acknowledge
and agree that certain locations within and outside the Territory are by their nature unique and
separate in character from sites generally developed as a Tea Shop. Such locations include, but are
not limited to, public transportation facilities, sport facilities, university campuses, shopping mall,
business plaza, amusement and theme park. As a result, you agree that these locations are excluded
from the Territory and we have the right to develop or franchise such locations. Lastly, you may
not engage in catering or delivery service within or outside of the Territory without our prior
written approval.

We do not have any affiliate that operates, franchises, or has plans to operate or franchise a
business under a different trademark and that business sells or will sell goods or services similar
to the TPTEA system in the United States.

As part of your review of a particular trade area or territory, we may (but are not required to)
provide you with certain information such as (a) maps indicating existing Tea Shops and/or
competitor locations, and may highlight potential areas of interest to us, and (b) demographic
reports (including population and median household income) generated by third parties. It is
important you validate the information we provide to you. We do not draw any inferences
regarding Tea Shop performance from the map or demographic information we share with you,
and you may not draw any inferences from them either. We also do not represent or guarantee that
the existence of a certain level of demographics, maps or trade area characteristics will translate
to a certain level of financial performance, and you may not draw any such inferences based upon
any of the information we provide to you. The information is not provided for that purpose.

Multi-Unit Franchise Development

You may (if you qualify) develop and operate a number of Tea Shops under our Multi-Unit
Franchise Rider. We and you will identify the Territory for each Tea Shop in the applicable
Franchise Agreement for each Tea Shop listed in the Multi-Unit Franchise Rider. All of your
rights and obligations in the Territory are governed by the Franchise Agreement (see above).
Under the Multi-Unit Franchise Rider, you will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face
competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of
distribution or competitive brands that we control. Your rights under the Multi-Unit Franchise
Rider are not dependent on your achieving a certain sales volume, market penetration, or other
contingency.
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Development Franchisee Program

If you sign a Development Franchisee Rights Rider with us, then we will grant to you the right to
solicit and recruit prospective TPTEA Shop franchisees within a designated area (the “Area”). The
Area granted under the Development Franchisee Rights Rider is different from the Territory
granted under the Franchise Agreement and there is no overlap.

We and you will identify the Area in the Development Franchisee Rights Rider before signing it.
The Area typically is a state, region, or counties. We base the Area’s size primarily on the number
of prospective TPTEA Shops you agree will be developed in the Area, the demographics, and site
availability. We will determine the number of TPTEA Shops that must be developed in the Area,
and the deadlines for signing a Franchise Agreement and for development, to keep your
development franchisee rights. We and you then will complete the schedule in the Development
Franchisee Rights Rider before signing it. Under the Development Franchisee Rights Rider, we
first must accept each new prospect you propose. We have the right to terminate the Development
Franchisee Rights Rider if you do not satisfy your development obligations.

You have no right to solicit prospective TPTEA Shop franchisees outside the Area. In the Area,
you will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees,
from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we
control. However, as long as you are in compliance with the Development Franchisee Rights Rider
and the Franchise Agreement, we and our affiliates will not license a third party to operate a
Development Franchisee Business within your Area. We and our affiliates have the right to
conduct any business activities, under any name, in any geographic area (including within the
Area), and at any location, regardless of the proximity to or effect on your Development Franchisee
Business. For example, we have the right to:

@ solicit and recruit prospective franchisees in any manner and establish
TPTEA Shops anywhere, including inside the Area;

(b) engage the services of franchise brokers, lead referral sources, and other
organizations and facilities for the identification, evaluation, and referral of leads for
prospects;

(© establish, or license to third parties the right to establish, TPTEA Shops or
other facilities or businesses offering similar or identical products, services, and using the
TPTEA system or elements of the TPTEA system anywhere, including inside the Area;

(d) establish, or license to third parties the right to establish, Development
Franchisee Businesses anywhere outside of the Area;

(e) provide services and support to TPTEA Shops located anywhere, including
to franchisees located inside the Area;

()] sell or offer, or license others to sell or offer, any products or services using
the TPTEA trademarks or other marks through any alternative distribution channels,
including, without limitation, through e-commerce, including inside the Area;
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(0) advertise, or authorize others to advertise, using the TPTEA trademarks
anywhere, including inside the Area; and

(h) acquire, be acquired by, or merge with other companies with existing tea
shop and store and/or tea business anywhere (including inside the Area) and, even if those
businesses are located in the Area, (i) convert the other businesses to any TPTEA Shops,
(ii) permit the other businesses to continue to operate under another name and offer unit
franchises and development franchisee rights in that other system, and/or (iii) permit the
businesses to operate under another name and convert existing TPTEA Shops to that other
name.

Your rights under the Development Franchisee Rights Rider are dependent on you meeting your
development obligations designated in your Development Franchisee Rights Rider. Except as
described in this Item 12, continuation of your territorial protection in the Area does not depend
on your achieving a certain sales volume, market penetration, or other contingency. We do not
have the right to alter your Area during the Development Franchisee Rights Rider term.

ITEM 13: TRADEMARKS

The Franchise Agreement gives you the exclusive right to operate a Tea Shop under the “TPTEA®”

and/or * ®> and/or “  ®” trademark within the Territory under the terms and conditions
as stated in the Franchise Agreement. If you sign a Development Franchisee Rights Rider with us,
you will also have the right to operate your Development Franchisee Business under these same
trademarks within a designated Area. By trademark, we mean trade names, trademarks, service
marks, emblems, designs, merchandising devices and logos used to identify your Tea Shop
(collectively “TPTEA Trademarks”). You may also be authorized to use other current or future
trademarks to operate your Tea Shop.

You must follow our rules when you use our TPTEA Trademarks. You cannot use any of our
company names or TPTEA Trademarks as part of a corporate, limited liability company, other
entity name, e-mail address, electronic identifier, or Internet domain name. You cannot use any of
our company names or TPTEA Trademarks with modifying words, designs or symbols, except for
those we license to you. For example, your business name may not include any of our company
names or TPTEA Trademarks or any variation of them (like “TPTea,” “Tea Soup Meeting,” or
“Tea Gathering”) and you may not use your name in connection with our TPTEA Trademarks in
advertising your Tea Shop (such as “John Smith’s TPTEA”). You may not use any of our company
names or TPTEA Trademarks for the sale of any unauthorized product or service or in a manner
we have not authorized in writing. These TPTEA Trademarks may only be used by you for the
purpose of operating a Tea Shop and cannot be used for any purpose or in any manner not
authorized by us. You may only use our TPTEA Trademarks on vehicles if you first obtain our
written consent. We have a license from our parent, TPTEA, to use and to sublicense the use of
the TPTEA Trademarks. All rights in and goodwill from the use of the TPTEA Trademarks accrue
to us and our affiliates. No agreement limits our right to use or license the use of the TPTEA
Trademarks related to the franchise.
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The TPTEA Trademarks and service marks listed below are registered on the Principal Register
in the United States Patent and Trademark Office on the date shown and all affidavits required to
preserve and renew these Trademarks have been timely filed.

Federal Registration Registration No. Registration Date
5528608 July 31, 2018
5522683 July 24, 2018
TPTEA 5522682 July 24, 2018

The TPTEA Trademarks are owned by TPTEA Co., Ltd. TPTEA Co. Ltd. has entered into a license
agreement with us giving us the right and license to use and sublicense the use of the TPTEA
Trademarks in the United States. The term of the license agreement is 10 years. TPTEA Co. Ltd.
Has certain rights to terminate the license agreement if we fail to cure a default within the time
period specified in the license agreement. However, these rights will not affect your right to
operate your Tea Shops under the TPTEA Trademarks or use the TPTEA Trademarks under the
terms of the Franchise Agreement.

There are no material determinations, proceedings or litigation which would affect your right to
use the TPTEA Trademarks other than as may be stated in this Disclosure Document. We do not
know of any superior prior rights or any infringing use that could materially affect your use of our
TPTEA Trademarks other than as may be stated in this Disclosure Document. There are no
effective material determinations of the Patent and Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal
Board, or any state trademark administrator or any court. There is no pending infringement,
opposition or cancellation of the TPTEA Trademarks and no pending material litigation involving
the principal TPTEA Trademarks other than as may be stated in this Disclosure Document.

You must notify us immediately when you learn about an infringement of or challenge to your use
of our TPTEA Trademarks. We will take the action we think appropriate. We have the right to
control all administrative proceedings or litigation involving our TPTEA Trademarks. In the event
we undertake the defense or prosecution of any such proceeding or litigation, you agree to execute
any and all documents and do such acts and things as may be necessary, in the opinion of our
counsel, to carry out such defense or prosecution.

You must modify or discontinue the use of a TPTEA Trademark if we modify or discontinue it. If
this happens, we are not required to reimburse you for your tangible costs of compliance (for
example, changing signs). You must not directly or indirectly contest our right to our TPTEA
Trademarks, trade secrets or business techniques that are part of our business.

The Multi-Unit Franchise Rider does not grant you the right to use the TPTEA Trademarks. These
rights arise only under a signed Franchise Agreement or Development Franchisee Rights Rider
with us.
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ITEM 14: PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

No patents or registered copyrights are material to the franchise. We do, however, claim copyright
interests in our training manuals, magazines, posters, toys, pamphlets, brochures, television
advertisements and all other printed and pictorial materials that we produce, although these
materials have not been registered with the Copyright Office of the Library of Congress. These
materials are proprietary and confidential and are considered our property. They may be used by
you only as long as you are a franchisee, and only as provided in your Franchise Agreement (and,
if applicable, as provided in your Development Franchisee Rights Rider).

You do not receive the right to use an item covered by a patent or copyright unless it is expressly
incorporated as proprietary information in our operations manuals. You may use these materials,
in the manner we approve, in the operation of your Tea Shop during the term of your Franchise
Agreement. However, you may not use these materials in any other way for your own benefit, or
communicate or disclose them to, or use them for the benefit of, any other person or entity. These
materials include any trade secrets, knowledge or know-how, confidential information, advertising,
marketing, designs, plans, or methods of operation. This includes information about our sources
of supply, and our recommendations on pricing. You may disclose this information to your
employees, but only to the extent necessary to operate the business, and then only while your
Franchise Agreement is in effect. You must also promptly tell us when you learn about
unauthorized uses, or challenges to our uses, of this proprietary information. We are not obligated
to take any action, but will respond to this information as we think appropriate. There are no
infringing uses known to us, which could materially affect your use of the copyrights.

There is no effective decision, ruling or order of the United States Patent and Trademark Office,
Copyright Office of the Library of Congress or any court, which could materially affect the
ownership or use of any patents or copyrighted materials. Our right to use or license these patents
and copyrighted items is not materially limited by any agreement or known infringing use.

There are no agreements currently in effect, which significantly limit our rights to use, or license
the use of, such patents or copyrights in any manner material to you. We may use and incorporate
into any TPTEA System, changes and improvements that you or your employees or contractors
develop. We do not have an obligation to you or the developer of these changes or improvements
in connection with such use.

The Multi-Unit Franchise Rider does not grant you rights to use any intellectual property. These
rights arise only under a signed Franchise Agreement with us.

ITEM 15: OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You must devote your best efforts to operate and manage the Tea Shop(s) in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Agreements and to promoting and enhancing the sale of the Tea Shops.
If you are an individual, you must perform all obligations and conditions as stated in the
Agreements, or designate and retain at all times an individual, subject to our approval, to serve as
the Principal Operator under the Agreements. If you are a corporation, partnership, or limited
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liability company you must hire competent staff to assume primary responsibility for the
management of your Tea Shop(s), such individual is not required to have any designated amount
of equity interest in the Tea Shop. We will request you to honor the confidentiality and the non-
compete clauses as stated in the Franchise Agreement, and recommend that you have your manager
or staff sign a confidentiality agreement and a non-compete agreement that offer the same
protection as the confidentiality and the non-compete clause as stated in the Franchise Agreement.

At least five (5) of your staff (which includes an on-site supervisor) must complete our training
program to our satisfaction. Furthermore, the trained staff then must in turn supervise, train and
evaluate the performance of your employees so that they provide competent and efficient service
to customers.

You must devote continuous best efforts to the development, management and operation of your
business. This means devoting sufficient time and resources to ensure full and complete
compliance with your obligations to us, to your customers and to others. The business is a
challenging one. It requires and responds to personal attention. It is most important that you
personally be involved in all facets of the business. You must be able to organize the business so
that our standards of service, quality, and cleanliness are maintained, and you must set standards
for your employees to follow. The business requires a firm, personal commitment and, at least
initially, may require many long hours. In addition to production skills, you must also understand
and be able to perform all of the sales, operations, management and maintenance functions required
to ensure successful operation of the business.

ITEM 16: RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

We require you to confine your business to the operation of the Tea Shop. You may not conduct
any other business or activity at the Tea Shop without our prior written approval. You may only
offer or sell products approved by us and you must offer for sale the full menu prescribed by us.
We may add, delete or change approved products that you are required to offer from time to time.
There are no limits on our right to do so. In offering products for sale, you may only use products,
materials, ingredients, supplies, paper goods, uniforms, fixtures, furnishings, signs, equipment
approved by us and you must follow methods of product preparation and delivery that meet our
requirements.

We impose no customer restrictions on the sale of products at your Tea Shop. You are not
permitted to sell or distribute goods or services through the use of the Internet or other electronic
communications without our prior written approval.

[Item 17 begins on next page]
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ITEM 17: RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

THISTABLE LISTS CERTAIN IMPORTANT PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AND

RELATED AGREEMENTS. YOU SHOULD READ THESE PROVISIONS

IN THE

AGREEMENTS ATTACHED TO THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Provision

Articles in the
Franchise Agreement

Summary

a. Length of the franchise
term

Article 1 of the
Franchise Agreement;
Section 3 of the Multi-
Unit Franchise Rider;

Section 10 of the
Development
Franchisee Rights
Rider

For each Tea Shop, the operating term is 6 years,
unless renewed in accordance with the terms of
the Franchise Agreement.

Multi-Unit Franchise Rider term depends on
development obligations.

Development Franchisee Rights Rider term
depends on development obligations

b. Renewal or extension
of the term

Article 1

If you desire to renew the operating term for any
Tea Shop, you must notify us in writing no less
than six (6) months but no more than one year
before expiration of the relevant operating term.

c. Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Article 1

The operating term of a Tea Shop may be
renewed for 5 years if the franchisee is graded A
on its renewal assessment form and 3 years if the
franchisee is graded B on its renewal assessment
form. If franchisee is graded C, the operating
term shall not be extended. Specifically, we
have the right to enter into a new agreement
according to the then-current terms and
conditions, therefore the renewal may require
you to sign agreement with materially different
terms and conditions than your original
Franchise Agreement.

d. Termination by
franchisee

Not Applicable

You may terminate the agreement upon any
grounds available by law.

e. Termination by
franchisor without
cause

Not Applicable

We do not have the right to unilaterally terminate
the Agreements.

f.  Termination by
franchisor with “cause”

Articles 3,

10 and 24 of Franchise
Agreement; Section 7
of the Multi-Unit
Franchise Rider;
Section 11 of
Development
Franchisee Rights
Rider

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement by
providing a prior 30-days written notification if
you fail to timely cure a default that may be
cured under the Agreement or any agreements
with any of our affiliates.

We may terminate the Multi-Unit Franchise
Rider by providing written notice if you do not
meet your development obligations. While
termination of the Multi-Unit Franchise Rider
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Provision

Articles in the
Franchise Agreement

Summary

does not impact any then-effective franchise
agreement, termination of the Franchise
Agreement entitles us to terminate the Multi-
Unit Franchise Rider.

While termination of the Development
Franchisee Rights Rider does not impact any
then-effective franchise agreement, termination
of the Franchise Agreement entitles us to
terminate the Development Franchisee Rights
Rider.

g. “Cause” defined — Acrticle 24 of the Except where your state’s law may provide
curable defaults Franchise Agreement; | otherwise or, except as stated in section h of this
Section 7 of the Multi- | table and in the Franchise Agreement, all
Unit Franchise Rider; | defaults must be cured within 30 business days
Section 11 of the after notice. Cure periods may be extended or
Development provided if required by law.
Franchisee Rights
Rider We may terminate the Multi-Unit Franchise
Rider by providing written notice if you do not
meet your development obligations. While
termination of the Multi-Unit Franchise Rider
does not impact any then-effective franchise
agreement, termination of the Franchise
Agreement entitles us to terminate the Multi-
Unit Franchise Rider.
While termination of the Development
Franchisee Rights Rider does not impact any
then-effective franchise agreement, termination
of the Franchise Agreement entitles us to
terminate the Development Franchisee Rights
Rider.
h. “Cause” defined — non- Avrticle 3, The following defaults cannot be cured by you:
curable defaults 9, 10 and 24 of the you cease operation, close business, apply for
Franchise Agreement; | dissolution or liquidation, become insolvent, you
Section 7 of the Multi- | grant sublicenses without our consent; you
Unit Franchise Rider; | challenge the validity of the Trademarks, trade
Section 11 of the names, service logos, graphic configurations,
Development emblems, apparels and designs of the TPTEA
Franchisee Rights System,; violate confidentiality obligations; or
Rider repeated violations.
We have the right to terminate the Multi-Unit
Franchise Rider if you do not meet development
schedule or other obligations or if Franchise
Agreement or another franchise agreement
between us and you (or your affiliated entity) is
TPTEA USA
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Provision

Articles in the
Franchise Agreement

Summary

terminated by us for cause or by you for any or
no reason. However, termination of the Multi-
Unit Franchise Rider does not impact any then-
effective franchise agreement.

We have the right to terminate the Development
Franchisee Rights Rider if you do not meet
development schedule or other obligations or if
Franchise Agreement or another franchise
agreement between us and you (or your affiliated
entity) is terminated by us for cause or by you
for any or no reason. However, termination of
the Development Franchisee Rights Rider does
not impact any then-effective franchise
agreement.

Franchisee’s
obligations on
termination/nonrenewal

Articles 5,
6,
9,10
21 and 2

Upon expiration or termination of the
Agreements, you must immediately pay us all
unpaid Initial Franchise Fees or any amount due
(including applicable liquidated damages),
without reduction or offset, even if you did not
open any or all of the Tea Shops; all rights
granted pursuant to the Agreements shall cease
immediately without further notice; cease use of
all TPTEA Trademarks; you shall co-operate
with us in the cancellation of any licenses or
registrations registered with you or under your
name, if any, and shall execute such documents
and do all acts and things as may be necessary to
effect such cancellation; you shall return to us
promptly, at your sole expense, all records and
copies of promotional materials or objects in its
possession relating to the TPTEA System, and of
any information of a confidential nature
communicated to you by us or our affiliates
pursuant to, in connection with, or arising from
this Agreement.

Assignment of contract
by franchisor

Not Applicable

We do not have the right to assign the
Agreement.

k. “Transfer” by Avrticle 1 Without our prior written consent, none of your
franchisee — definition shareholders can transfer shares in the franchisee
to any third party. .
I.  Franchisor approval of Article 1 of the You do not have the right to transfer the
transfer by franchisee Franchise Agreement; | Agreement.
Section 6 of the Multi-
Unit Franchise Rider; | You do not have the right to transfer the Multi-
Section 12 of the Unit Franchise Rider.
Development
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Provision

Articles in the
Franchise Agreement

Summary

Franchisee Rights
Rider

You do not have the right to transfer the
Development Franchisee Rights Rider.

Conditions for
franchisor approval of
transfer

Not Applicable

Not Applicable.

Franchisor’s right of
first refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

0. Franchisor’s option to Not Applicable Not Applicable
purchase franchisee’s
business

p. Death or disability of Not Applicable Not Applicable

franchisee

Non-competition
covenants during the
term of the franchise

Article 22

You agree that during the term of this
Agreement, or during any Renewal Term, you
will not, either directly or indirectly, for yourself,
or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with
any person or entity, own, manage, operate,
maintain, engage in, consult with or have any
interest in any business that compete directly
with the Tea Shop.

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

Article 22

You agree that you will not, for a period of 2
years after the expiration or termination of this
Agreement, or after the expiration or termination
of any Renewal Term, regardless of the cause of
termination, or within 2 years of the sale of the
Tea Shop or any interest in you, either directly or
indirectly, for yourself, or through, on behalf of,
or in conjunction with any person or entity, own,
manage, operate, maintain, engage in, consult
with or have any interest in any business in the
Tea Shop’s Territory that compete directly with
the Tea Shop. The Agreements contain a
covenant not to compete which extends beyond
the termination of the franchise.

Modification of the
franchise agreement

Article 26

The Agreements may only be modified by the
parties in writing.

t. Integration/merger Article 32 of the Only the terms of the Franchise Agreements and
clause Franchise Agreement; | other related agreement are binding (subject to
Section 8 of the Multi- | applicable state law). Nothing in these
Unit Franchise Rider | agreements, however, is intended to disclaim the
representations we made in this franchise
Disclosure Document that we furnished to you.
u. Dispute resolution by Not Applicable Not Applicable.
arbitration or mediation
v. Choice of forum Article 24 Litigation must be in Taiwan.
w. Choice of law Article 24 Law of the Republic of China (Taiwan) applies
(subject to applicable state law).
TPTEA USA
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Note 1.  The provision of the Agreements that provides for termination upon your bankruptcy
may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Article 101 et seq.).
Note 2.  Any state specific disclosure, if any, appear in Exhibit D.

ITEM 18: PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise. Although the Franchise Agreement does
not prohibit you from using a public figure in promotion or advertising, we must approve any
public figure, media, time and text that you propose to use.

ITEM 19: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable
basis for the information, and if the information is included in the Franchise Disclosure Document.
Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if:
(1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2)
a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing
information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past
financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our
employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. 1f you
are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that
outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future
income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting Mr. Eric Chao,
Manager, at No. 36, Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist., Taichung City 408, Taiwan (R.O.C.), 886-4-2389-
6909 Ext. 524, intl@tp-tea.com, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state
regulatory agencies.

[Item 20 begins on next page]

TPTEA USA

March 2025 FDD 35
1619321197.3



ITEM 20: OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Systemwide Outlet Summary for Year 2022 to 2024

Table 1

Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Outlets at the Net
Start of the End of the Change
year Year
2022 6 9 +3
Franchised 2023 9 12 +3
2024 12 16 +4
Company- 2022 0 0 0
owned 2023 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0
2022 6 9 +3
Total Outlet 2023 9 12 +3
2024 12 16 +4
Table 2
Transfer of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners
(Other than the Franchisor) for Year 2022 to 2024
State Year Number of
Transfer
TOTAL 2022 0
2023 0
2024 0
Table 3
Status of Franchised Outlets for Year 2022 to 2024
State Year Outlets | Outlets | Termina Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened -tions | Renewals by Operations | at End
of Year Franchisors | — Other of the
Reasons Year
CA 2022 3 3 0 0 0 0 6
2023 6 1 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 3 0 0 0 0 10
WA 2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
TX 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
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State Year Outlets | OQutlets | Termina Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened -tions | Renewals by Operations | at End
of Year Franchisors | — Other of the

Reasons Year

NY 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Total 2022 6 3 0 0 0 0 9
2023 9 3 0 0 0 0 12
2024 12 4 0 0 0 0 16
Table 4
Status of Company-owned for Year 2022 to 2024

State Year Outlets | Outlets | Termina Non- Reacquired | Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened -tions | Renewals by Operations | at End
of Year Franchisor | — Other of the

s Reasons Year

Total 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Table 5
Projected New Franchised Outlets as of December 31, 2024
State Franchise Agreements Projected New Projected New
Signed but Outlets not | Franchised Outlets in Company-owned
Opened the Next Fiscal Year Outlets in the Next
Fiscal Year
California 0 2 0
Washington 0 1 0
New York 0 1 0
Total 0 4 0

The list of franchisees as of December 31, 2024 is included in Exhibit G. As of the date of this
Disclosure Document we do not have any Development Franchisees.

During the last 3 fiscal years, no current or former franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses
that restrict their ability from discussing with you their experience as a franchisee in the TPTEA
System. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when
you leave the franchise system.

There is no trademark specific franchise organization associated with the TPTEA System.
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ITEM 21: FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Attached as Exhibit A are the audited financial statements of TPTEA USA Inc. as of December 31,
2022, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024, and the unaudited financial statements of
TPTEA USA Inc. as of March 31, 2025.

ITEM 22: CONTRACT

The Following Agreements are exhibits to this Disclosure Documents:

Exhibit B Franchise Agreement

Exhibit B-1  Development Franchisee Rights Rider to Franchise Agreement

Exhibit B-2  Multi-Unit Franchise Rider to Franchise Agreement

Exhibit C Directory of Administrative Agencies

Exhibit D State-Specific Addenda to the Franchise Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement

Exhibit E Acknowledgment Addendum to Franchise Agreement

Exhibit F Form of General Release

ITEM 23: RECEIPT

Exhibit H contains detachable documents acknowledging your receipt of the Disclosure Document.
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Exhibit A

Financial Statements
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17506 Colima Road, Suite 101
Rowland Heights, CA 91748
Tel: +1 (626) 581-0818

Fax: +1 (626) 581-0809

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
TPTEA USA INC.
Taichung City, Taiwan (R.O.C.)

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of TPTEA USA INC. (the Company), which comprise the balance sheets

as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of income, changes in stockholder’s equity, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.



17506 Colima Road, Suite 101
Rowland Heights, CA 91748
Tel: +1 (626) 581-0818

Fax: +1 (626) 581-0809

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Simon & Edwand, LLP

Rowland Heights, California

March 21, 2025



TPTEA USA INC.

Balance Sheets
[

December 31, 2024 2023 2022
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 1,745,742 $ 1,176,919 $ 905,436
Accounts receivable 39,075 27,877 23,331
Prepaid expenses 1,725 40,414 16,934
Other current assets 29,622 32,860 27,826
Total current assets 1,816,164 1,278,070 973,527
Non-Current Assets:
Deferred tax assets 82,047 52,555 35,691
Other non-current assets 49,801 79,078 44,961
Total non-current assets 131,848 131,633 80,652
Total asset $ 1,948,012 $ 1,409,703 $ 1,054,179

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Other payable and accrued liabilities $ 23,661 $ 10,710 $ 32,285
Unearned revenue 96,451 98,588 70,838
Income tax payable 8,482 8,891 -
Total current liabilities 128,594 118,189 103,123
Non-current Liabilities:

Security deposit — non-current 200,000 150,000 100,000
Unearned revenue — non-current 348,563 187,329 134,312
Total non-current liabilities 548,563 337,329 234,312
Total liabilities 677,157 455,518 337,435
Stockholder’s Equity

Common stock, no par value; authorized, 400,000 400,000 400,000

issued and outstanding 40,000 shares

Retained earnings 870,855 554,185 316,744
Total stockholder’s equity 1,270,855 954,185 716,744
Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity $ 1,948,012 $ 1,409,703 $ 1,054,179

See accompanying notes to financial statements



TPTEA USA INC.

Statements of Income

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Revenue $ 534,794 $ 431,334 $ 292,383
Cost of revenue (32,770) (29,959) (23,610)
Gross profit 502,024 401,375 268,773
Selling, general and administrative expenses (75,681) (81,082) (55,093)
Operating income 426,343 320,293 213,680
Income before income tax 426,343 320,293 213,680
Income tax expenses (109,673) (82,852) (49,630)
Net Income $ 316,670 $ 237,441 $ 164,050

See accompanying notes to financial statements



TPTEA USA INC.

Statements of Changes in Stockholder’s Equity
|

Common Stock

Total
Shares Additional Retained Stockholder’s
Issued Amount Paid-in Capital Earnings Equity
Balance as of
December 31, 2021 40,000 $ 400,000 $ -$ 152,694 $ 552,694
Net income - - - 164,050 164,050
Balance as of
December 31, 2022 40,000 400,000 - 316,744 716,744
Net income - - - 237,441 237,441
Balance as of
December 31, 2023 40,000 400,000 - 554,185 954,185
Net income - - - 316,670 316,670
Balance as of
December 31, 2024 40,000 $ $400,000 $ -$ 870,855 $ 1,270,855

See accompanying notes to financial statements



TPTEA USA INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 316,670 $ 237,441 % 164,050
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating

activities:
Deferred income tax (29,492) (16,864 ) 7,611
Change in assets and liabilities:
Account receivable (11,198) (4,546) (8,822)
Prepaid expense 38,689 (23,480) 39,650
Other current assets 3,238 (5,034) (4,216)
Other non-current assets 29,277 (34,117) 23,611
Other payable 12,951 (21,575) 19,300
Other payable — related party - - (133,320)
Income tax payable (409) 8,891 -
Security Deposit 50,000 50,000 -
Unearned revenue 159,097 80,767 (70,900)
Net cash provided by operating activities 568,823 271,483 36,964
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net cash provided by investing activities - - -
Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities - - -
Net increase in cash 568,823 271,483 36,964
Cash — beginning of period 1,176,919 905,436 868,472
Cash — end of period $ 1,745,742  $ 1,176,919 $ 905,436
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow
information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes 100,945 $ 113,654 $ 6,584

© &H

Interest - $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to financial statements



TPTEA USA INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
[

1. PRESENTATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

TPTEA USA INC. (thereinafter “the Company”) is a Delaware corporation that was incorporated on February
27, 2018. The Company is 100% owned by a single shareholder, TPTEA Co., Ltd., a Taiwanese corporation (the
“Parent company”).

The Company’s principal operations are to grant franchises to operate TPTEA beverage retail stores, major in
selling tea-related beverages, and provide technical support, business strategy, marketing, and certain trademarks
to its franchisees. The Company plans to generate income through the margin on the initial franchise fees and
royalties collected from franchisees and service fees paid to the Parent Company. The trademarks of TPTEA
stores owned by the Parent company are granted to the Company’s use in the United States.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”), which is based on the accrual method of accounting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ materially
from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Topic 606"). ASU
2014-09 replaces substantially all existing revenue recognition guidance with a single, comprehensive revenue
recognition model that requires a company to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods and
services to customers at the amount to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring those goods or
services. On January 1, 2019, the Company adopted Topic 606 using the modified retrospective method applied
to those contracts which were not completed as of January 1, 2019. Results for reporting periods beginning on
January 1, 2019, are presented under Topic 606, while prior period amounts are not adjusted and continue to be
reported in accordance with our historic accounting under Topic 605. The adoption of ASC 606 did not impact
the Company’s previously reported financial statements in any prior period nor did it result in a cumulative-
effect adjustment to retained earnings.

Topic 606 changed the timing of recognition of initial franchise fee revenue from franchisees. Previously, the
Company's accounting policy was to recognize initial franchise fee revenue when earned, which is generally
when a new store opens. Under Topic 606, the initial franchise services are not considered distinct from the
continuing franchise services as they would not transfer a benefit to the franchisee directly without the use of the
franchise license and should be bundled with the franchise license as a single performance obligation. As a result,
the Company recognizes initial and renewal franchise fees on a straight-line basis over the term of the franchise
agreement, which is usually 6 years.



TPTEA USA INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
[

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Topic 606 also changed the presentation of certain fees charged to franchisees, primarily advertising fees.
Previously, there was diversity in practice and advertising fees charged to franchisees were recorded as a
reduction to advertising expense, which is classified within operating expenses in the statements of earnings.
Topic 606 resulted in the presentation of advertising fees charged to franchisees to be reported as franchise
royalties and fee revenue in the statements of earnings, instead of a reduction to advertising expense.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In September 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-04, "Liabilities — Supplier Finance Programs (Subtopic 405-50):
Disclosure of Supplier Finance Program Obligations,” which requires that an entity that uses a supplier finance
program in connection with the purchase of goods or services disclose information about the program’s nature,
activity during the period, changes from period to period, and potential magnitude. The Company adopted this
standard for annual periods on a retrospective basis beginning January 1, 2023. The Company also adopted the
amendment on rollforward information, which became effective prospectively for annual periods beginning
January 1, 2024. The adoption of this guidance modified the Company’s disclosures and will modify its annual
disclosures for the rollforward information in 2024, but did not have an impact on its financial position and
results of operations.

Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

ASUs issued but not yet adopted were assessed and determined to be not applicable or are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements or financial statement disclosures.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all cash accounts, which are not
subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties, and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under ASC topic 740, Income Taxes, ASC topic 740 defines an asset
and liability approach that requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s financial statements or tax returns. ASC
topic 740 further requires that a tax position must be more likely than not to be sustained before being recognized
in the financial statements, as well as the accrual of interest and penalties as applicable on unrecognized tax
positions.

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax
basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each period end, based on enacted tax laws
and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income.
Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be
realized. The provision for income taxes represents the tax payable for the period, if any, and the change during
the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that some portion or all the deferred income tax

assets will not be realized. Income tax expense is the tax payable or refundable for the period plus or minus the
change during the period in deferred income taxes.

10
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by taxing authorities. With few
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations for years before 2021 or
state income tax examinations for years before 2020.

INCOME TAXES

Income tax expenses consisted of the following for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Year ended December 31, 2024 Federal State Total
Current $ 113,736 $ 25429 % 139,165
Deferred (29,443) (49) (29,492)
Total income tax expense $ 84,293 $ 25380 $ 109,673
Year ended December 31, 2023 Federal State Total
Current 3 72,895 $ 26,821 % 99,716
Deferred (11,213) (5,651) (16,864)
Total income tax expense $ 61,682 $ 21,170  $ 82,852
Year ended December 31, 2022 Federal State Total
Current $ 32,570 $ 9,449 $ 42,019
Deferred 9,075 (1,464) 7,611
Total income tax expense $ 41,645 $ 7985 $ 49,630

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities for income taxes on December 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2024 Federal State Total
Non-current deferred tax assets
Prepaid Expense (362) (60) (422)
Prepaid Franchise Cost (27,782) (4,203) (31,985)
Unearned revenue 93,453 15,473 108,926
State taxes 5,528 - 5,528
Valuation allowance - - -
Total Deferred tax assets 70,837 11,210 82,047
December 31, 2023 Federal State Total
Non-current deferred tax assets
Prepaid Expense (375) (92) (467)
Prepaid Franchise Cost (23,467) (3,488) (26,955)
Unearned revenue 60,043 14,742 74,785
State taxes 5,192 - 5,192
Valuation allowance - - -
Total Deferred tax assets 41,393 11,162 52,555

11
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December 31, 2022 Federal State Total
Non-current deferred tax assets
Prepaid Expense $ (238) $ (38) % (276)
Prepaid Franchise Cost (14,361) (1,252) (15,613)
Unearned revenue 43,082 6,801 49,883
State taxes 1,697 - 1,697
Valuation allowance - - -
Total Deferred tax assets $ 30,180 $ 5511 $ 35,691

4. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Cash

The Company maintains cash in one account within a financial institution. The standard insurance amount is
$250,000 per depositor under the FDIC’s general deposit insurance rules. As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and

2022, uninsured cash balance was $1,495,742, $926,919, and $655,436.

Major customers

The Company has either three or four major customers, each of which represented 10% or more of the total sales
of the Company. Revenue and accounts receivable from the customers for the years ended and as of December

31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Year ended and as of Initial Royalty Total Accounts
December 31, Franchise Fee Fee Revenue Receivable
2024
Customer A $ - 276,484 276,484 26,326
Customer B 37,503 63,430 100,933 6,294
Customer C 40,900 54,873 95,773 3,599
Customer D 27,500 34,104 61,604 2,856
Total $ 105,903 428,891 534,794 39,075
2023
Customer A $ - 237,578 237,578 17,937
Customer B 30,000 43,538 73,538 3,962
Customer C 40,900 59,669 100,569 4,661
Total $ 70,900 340,785 411,685 26,560
2022
Customer A $ - 138,784 138,784 17,048
Customer B 30,000 21,054 51,054 2,161
Customer C 40,900 61,645 102,545 4,122
Total $ 70,900 221,483 292,383 23,331
5. EQUITY

On July 5, 2018, the Company issued 40,000 no par common shares for cash in an amount of $400,000.

12
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6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into a service agreement with its parent company, TPTEA CO. LTD. ("the Parent
Company"), on January 15, 2020. The initial term of the agreement was one year, with subsequent annual
renewals. Per the terms of the agreement, the Company is obligated to remit monthly service fees totaling $1,600,
amounting to an annual fee of $19,200 for 2022. On January 5, 2023, a revised agreement was executed,
adjusting the monthly service fees to $2,000, resulting in an annual fee of $24,000 for both 2024 and 2023.The
services include all kinds of relevant administrative fees for franchise business operations. These services are
provided by the Parent company which is a legally registered company in Taiwan. The service fee amounted to
$24,000, $24,000, and $19,200 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

On December 31, 2021, the Company entered into two training and store-opening support agreements with the
Parent Company, pertaining to different area franchise businesses. The duration of each agreement aligns with
the respective original franchise terms. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company incurred training and store-
opening support fees totaling $77,760 and $55,560. These fees amounted to $23,610, $23,610, and $23,610 for
the fiscal years ending December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

On April 24, 2023, the Company executed a training and store-opening support agreement for another area
franchise business with the Parent Company, following the terms stipulated in the original franchise agreement.
Under this agreement, the Company is obligated to remit training and store-opening support fees totaling
$42,768 and $30,558. For the fiscal years ending December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, these fees amounted to
$9,160, $6,349, and $ Nil, respectively.

Additionally, on December 30, 2024, the Company executed a training and store-opening support agreement for
another area franchise business with the Parent Company, following the terms stipulated in the original franchise
agreement. Under this agreement, the Company is obligated to remit training and store-opening support fees
totaling $33,429 and $19,887. For the fiscal years ending December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, these fees
amounted to $ Nil, $ Nil, and $ Nil, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Parent company entered into a franchise agreement
with TPLIN INC, granting the franchisee the right to use the trademarks, copyright, patents, slogans, signs, logos,
color designs, or other corporate symbols as well as the trade secret, techniques, and know-how initiatively
provided by the Parent company for the exclusive purpose of operating the franchise business in California (the
“Store”). Before the approval of the 2024 Franchise Disclosure Document (FDD), the Parent company internally
transferred the franchise operating rights to the Company without charging any royalty cost.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

ASC 855 “Subsequent Events” establishes management to evaluate events and transactions that may occur for
potential recognition and disclosure in the financial statement after the balance sheet date through the date the
financial statements are available to be issued and determines the circumstances under which such events or
transactions must be recognized in the financial statements.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial statements were available to be

issued. Management does not believe any subsequent events have occurred that would require further disclosure
or adjustment to the financial statements.
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TPTEA USA INC.

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2025

Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
Checking - 2153 1,834,876.15
Total Bank Accounts $ 1,834,876.15
Other Current Assets
Deferred Tax Asset 82,046.46
Deposits 444.00
Prepaid Expenses 924.08
Prepaid Franchise Cost - current 21,541.99
Total Other Current Assets $ 104,956.53
Total Current Assets $ 1,939,832.68
Other Assets
Prepaid Franchise Cost - non-current 49,356.99
Total Other Assets $ 49,356.99
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,989,189.67
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable (A/P) 10.00
Total Accounts Payable $ 10.00
Other Current Liabilities
Deposits Received 200,000.00
Income Tax Payable 8,482.31
Unearned Revenue - Current 69,352.37
Total Other Current Liabilities $ 277,834.68
Total Current Liabilities $ 277,844.68
Long-Term Liabilities
Unearned Revenue 348,564.32
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 348,564.32
Total Liabilities $ 626,409.00
Equity
Common Stock 400,000.00
Retained Earnings 870,854.37
Net Income 91,926.30
Total Equity $ 1,362,780.67
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 1,989,189.67

THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT. INVESTORS IN OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED THAT NO
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED HIS OPINION WITH REGARD TO THEIR CONTENTS OR FORM.



TPTEA USA INC.

Profit and Loss
January - March, 2025

Total

Income

Franchise Fee Income 27,098.91

Royalty Income 73,788.58
Total Income $ 100,887.49
Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of Sales 8,080.22
Total Cost of Goods Sold $ 8,080.22
Gross Profit $ 92,807.27
Expenses

Bank Charges & Fees 80.00

Rent & Lease 800.97
Total Expenses $ 880.97
Net Operating Income $ 91,926.30
Net Income $ 91,926.30

THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT. INVESTORS IN OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED THAT NO
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED HIS OPINION WITH REGARD TO THEIR CONTENTS OR FORM.
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Shop Number:

Shop Address:

RKizBEERNBIRATE
ISR S

TPTEA USA INC.

Franchise Agreement
AMNERZERA (KN [81Y] ) REAEREMNEZESRIZRDBIRAE
FKinDEBRNBIRAT, HEEEFEBES 919 North Market Street,
Suite 950 Wilmington, DE 19801 (LATH8 [#ZHEA] ) , &Kk EE
sz HEXFEEFEEREA (LA [REAl ) it
(LAT#8 [430H] ) Frgss].

This Franchise Agreement (hereinafter, this “Agreement”) is made and
entered into this date of ___ (hereinafter, the “Effective Date) by and between
TPTEA USA INC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
Delaware with a principal place of business at 919 North Market Street, Suite
950 Wilmington, DE 19801 (hereinafter, the “Franchisor”) and __, a company
organized and existing under the laws of ___ with a principal place of business
at__ (hereinafter, the “Franchisee”™).

RAZGF, REABKEEANENEAE—S, GHREN.

Franchisor and Franchisee are hereafter individually referred as “Party” and

collectively as “Parties”.

GIREAZBRE, REBROBRATCUTE 827] ), FFE
EREERRAEAXMER [URRE] . [UREER] Z26#, R
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2005 F 7 A=EEPRN [RFE] mhE. REARMSREE+F
ReVsAZRXNT, UBEXSERINTSR, REERKHIEREE [R5
FRRE,

Whereas, in the spirit of inheriting the culture of “Gathering with Tea” and
“Meeting Friends at Tea Party” in the Tang and Song dynasties, Franchisor’s
parent company, the TPTEA CO., LTD. (hereinafter, the “Parent Company”),
has established the brand of “TPTEA” in Taichung, Taiwan in July 2005.
Integrating decades of tea preparation technique, Franchisor has operated
under the “TPTEA” brand with an image of being a professional high-quality

brand in the Taiwan tea market.

g, EEATSRER, EEAES o o Begm
HER RS ERANBEE (LT [REERE] ) |

Whereas, being licensed by our Parent Company, the Franchisor owns the
right to use and sub-license the trademarks * ®n ®”,“®”

or other marks and logos (hereinafter, the “TPTEA Trademarks”);

&, REABEERENEERSSEXEHBISRRIERTIMN. &
ﬁ?%\ﬁ%éﬁﬁﬁ&@ﬂ%% LIS IBRIC S5 FER)E
MET\EE%@Z H, ®iE. EARINERIE. BRRRR. T8
TETRE, u&&EA&&EA%%miﬁULg%& RIBRRZ
%E BIERERE (LT [RS2RE%!] )
Whereas, the Franchisor possesses advanced technique, management system,
continuous and innovative product development, and knowledge in relation to
a unique and distinctive system relating to the development and operation of
TPTEA Store (defined below) establishment with unique product lines,
distinctive fixtures, equipment, interior and exterior accessories, color scheme,

inventory and accounting system, of which may be changed, improved, and

1619451768.1



further developed by Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates from time to time
(hereinafter, the “TPTEA System”);

&, REAKEREBRIENTFE=-ALIERE. EENEERSS
R 55, USKRELUER. RUNKSECHARGERERRZE
RpcExiE (LT %5 ﬁﬁ] ) BREERZRR, Btz
B, EARSEERRIRZEDE. BEEH. RBEE. BER
5. &35, IREZAC M.

Whereas, Franchisor is in the business of granting certain limited rights for
third parties to develop, manage and maintain the TPTEA System; and looks
for entities capable of developing, launching, and operating stores bearing the
TPTEA Trademarks using and under the TPTEA System (hereinafter, each a
“Store”); offering unique tea-based drinks, compatible food products,
accessories and gifts bearing the TPTEA Trademarks, trade names, service
logos, graphic configurations, emblems, apparels and designs of the TPTEA
System,;

&, BRI [R5E] ZmEREEE—LHBEEARI RS,
ELREESFINRSERATER

Whereas, in order to further promote the brand as well as the spirit of “TPTEA”
to the local tea market, both Parties intend to enter into a Franchise Business
relationship (defined below).

REFZLNTZHEERARRESUE, WiSLRAIEKRITEZY
' =1=S U

Now, Therefore, the Parties, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and
commitments set forth herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby

acknowledged, agree as follows:

1619451768.1



B EEIEE
Chapter 1 Grant of Area Franchise Rights
% REEN. FHEEREZAHARE
Articlel Subject, Scope, and Term
—. AENFERHEZEREEAFELE (LUTE [¥8EE] ) .,

WIREABRRERE, SRFRAREAREM, SUREAZEZ
HERRERC EERGENFREFEYRREREAREEE N
HecRm (LT [BmmlRl ) mftEgEEE (LIS [N
REX] ) ZHNSEEN, RESETAZFIIZEAGE
BT liRM e [mhEERRRRETREFM ENEERFEER
BRISEFSERETEARE. MY, B ERNERXE.
B ERSEEN) < RIRRYE, ERINAZEY (M4 1] iz
Rima e RHT D $858 43 S IR IR AR LAt E 2/
. FRERER (know-how) , #HIREANASEREREARTIEM
ZEF LR ERTE R TR T

1. This Agreement shall be effective from the Effective Date and expire
on the end of six (6) years after the Store opens for business to the
public (hereinafter, the “Initial Term”). During the Initial Term,
exclusively for the purpose to utilize equipment and machinery and
raw materials supplied by Franchisor, or suppliers approved by
Franchisor to prepare and provide beverage or foods (hereinafter, the
“Merchandises”) to customers of the Store located within the Territory
(hereinafter, the “Franchise Business”), subject to strict compliance of
this Agreement and the Brand Identity System and Design
Specification Manual (which content includes but not limited to the
corporate image standard, supporting coloring, images, related slogans,

and sample packaging) amended and provided by Franchisor from
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times to times, Franchisee may use the TPTEA Trademarks specified
in Appendix 1 of this Agreement in the services specified in the Class
43 of Nice Classification and other trade secrets, techniques, and
know-hows provided by Franchisor; and Franchisee may also adopt the
decoration design as well as the manner of space furnishings provided
by Franchisor for the Store.

T REARBERKEZHRAEEMIZENW, SHEIFEERSZER
BN (SRR RRETRRETFM] SiREARMCERNE.
RITIGRER (know-how) ZIREANBTKREE, EBEEZATITG
REOZZEFRINEE., HREABRKZEEAZSE (S8
FEME) BRNE7N(6)ER NS EaEEE, @}E{ BARBRICESE
B EEBRAOI. KR, SfERZRZERE. EF B
M. 1255, &S, BHEE=E. EE@TAEE‘JZH%JL%%@ [WysN
sAECELfl. BEF, LMESREALEESNEEZ L, AT
FERHUREASRE.

2. In compliance with the need of business operation or in response to
changes in the market, Franchisor may change the TPTEA Trademarks,
the content as described in the Brand Identity System and Design
Specification Manual, or the content and scope of the trade secrets,
techniques, and know-hows at any time. Any modification shall also be
considered part of the scope of the franchise herein granted under this
Agreement. Franchisor shall notify Franchisee of any change in writing
(including via email), and Franchisee shall accordingly modify or adjust
within six (6) months after receipt of notice thereof, including but not
limited to the manner of space furnishings of the Store, decoration,
TPTEA Trademarks, copyright, patents, slogans, signs, logos, color

designs, other corporate symbols, formula, mixing ratio or packaging in
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order to maintain the consistency of Franchisor’s corporate image and
quality. Franchisee shall be responsible for the costs in relation to the
abovementioned modification or adjustment.

=, HREAERERTARONREEMRSEZE, MERARLOZE
NEBEZEEIE=A, SFERRREFATSEEFRESR. W
REARERREALNDZRREGEENTBZRRE, SR
BEZRREA, EAZESEEENEMASGEMAZERAE,
WAL R SR RS REAG A EHEZ LHES
NEEMH., ERILIEE, REAGESHEBFEH)EMHEER
AMBIRIEARZY, REFRBEAFREHRS, BIREAZR
RANBEERIREAZRE, NEEENEINBZ B EARTRE
BREEANERCERH, REAGAESHIREARREERR
BARETE=A. IREEAZKRRKREREASLEHET,
IRIREARBPAREZE, NEERIREAZRETFE=A,
RIEABURIEARZY, BEREABRXIREAZEESER
J0(US$1,000,000) 2 &I MIEN S, WIIREASHEHMES, W
REANEBRRESE,

3. Franchisee shall by itself perform this Agreement, operate the Franchise

Business and shall not transfer the rights and obligations hereunder to
any third party, including but not limited to its subsidiaries or affiliates.
Franchisee warrants that the shareholders of its company are actual
holders of the shares who hold substantial and complete rights of
shareholders. None of the shareholders thereof is under control or is
required to follow orders of any other person or is a dummy/nominee
for another person. Franchisee also agrees to provide assistance so that
Franchisor may at any time and from time to time conduct inspection to

verify the substance and authenticity of the aforementioned information.
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In the event of breach by Franchisee, Franchisor shall be entitled to
notify the Franchisee in writing (including via e-mail) to terminate this
Agreement immediately. Without prior written consent of the
Franchisor, none of Franchisee’s shareholders may transfer any shares
of the Franchisee to any third party. If there is risk that Franchisor’s
trade secrets may be disclosed without authorization or Franchisor’s
rights and benefit may be compromised, Franchisor may disapprove
transfer of share of the Franchisee by Franchisee’s shareholders to any
third party. If without prior written consent of the Franchisor or under
disapproval of Franchisee, any shareholder of the Franchisee transfers
the Franchisee’s any share to any third party, the Franchisor may
immediately terminate this Agreement, and the Franchisee shall pay the
Franchisor one million United States Dollars (US$1,000,000) as
punitive damage, and Franchisee shall be responsible for any damages
and losses that suffered or incurred by Franchisor.

9. SN#IRE AR RNV EEmEENE, BRA2209)n
HEEm BRI DRSO EREAZR—)F, LIESEERRE
Ao

4. If Franchisee desires to renew the Agreement upon expiration of Initial
Term or Extended Term (if applicable), Franchisee shall notify
Franchisor in writing not less than six (6) months and not more than one
(1) year before the expiration date of Initial Term or Extended Term.

h. BONEORES: FENEBREBEASBREZFR, &ET
HIRELy (LA [BEAE] ) . REARKEIRIEMASH
BRE, ERAZEG [ 2] A2 B ZEE TR,
AERIRIBEAZ FRLREENRT, RIBENZBRE, wIRE
NEKBREAERCHERGEIRES 100 E0RES
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(AT [EORES] ) | BEERGHE, EORER:
A%k BT B)E,

B#k: EHU=0)F; LK

C#l: &Y.

5. Renewal and Renewal Fee: This Agreement may be renewed for the
period as described below in accordance with the level as determined by
Franchisor at its sole discretion (hereinafter, the “Renewal Term”).
After receiving Franchisee’s written notice as prescribed in the
preceding Paragraph, Franchisor will evaluate in accordance with the
requirements of Renewal Assessment specified in Appendix 2 of this
Agreement, and determine the level of Franchisee so as to decide
whether this Agreement is renewable or not. In the event this
Agreement is renewable, Franchisee shall duly pay 10% of Franchise
Fee as renewal fee (hereinafter, the “Renewal Fee”) in accordance with
the time and methods instructed by Franchisor; the renewal will be null
and void if Franchisee fails to pay the Renewal fee in time:

Grade A: five (b) years;
Grade B: three (3) years; and
Grade C: the Term shall not be renewed.
78 IRAZA, WREAE. EEHIEGIEER). LIRECHIR NS
EA)EBRNLLIHIMAE.,

6. Inthis Agreement, such Initial Term and Extended Term (if applicable)

and Renewal Term (if applicable) are collectively referred to herein as

the “Term”.
B IBREANZIE(REFS Article 2 Franchisor’s Warranty

REANBRRIMREZRZEHE. Z1F. B8, 558, 5.
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mEEZR. EeRREEMEESRE. MEHZEXIEHRTE.
EXRWE. BNKERE (know-how) IWREERUSIIAI&ARRE
FHRIZEAN, BEFREFEARKESLENERE, TMERES
ftt AZRER,

Franchisor shall warrant that all the granted TPTEA Trademarks,
copyright, patents, slogans, signs, logos, color designs or other
corporate symbols, Store designs provided as well as trade secrets,
techniques, and know-hows are legally obtained by Franchisor and can
be lawfully licensed to Franchisee. Franchisor shall also warrant that
there will be no infringement of any right of any third party if Franchisee

uses the aforementioned information within the scope of the franchise.

F=(% (Ri=rBEE Article 3 Protection of Store Area

—. RIEBEHER/EHEFE 4 18, REARSEREDE
HLEINKE 1 IFFIEETFHRIREARE, REARNMSBEMEA
R, (BRIRBEAERTES (DFRIEN 12ERNERHREERER
IS HRIEMTAE 75 DEA EE, LR (2) SRAUHAR M5 i
S H RS SR TZE 75 pEll EE, A rREFRES
BEE. kFeE, LEEREAZTHEEFEHENE, &
SR BEERIRER ], REASBSmEREAERE
B,

1. The “Territory” shall be the area within a radius of 4 miles from the
site of the Store. Franchisor agrees to grant Franchisee the franchise
as defined in Article 1 herein within the Territory and shall not grant
any third party the same subject. However, only if the Franchisee has

(1) established and continued to operate the Store within twelve (12)
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months following the signing of this Agreement and consistently
obtained equal or more than 75 points per annual evaluation of the
Renewal Assessment Report, and (2) consistent obtained equal or more
than 75 points per annual evaluation of the Renewal Assessment
Report within the Term. If any of the above conditions has not been
met, the right of franchise will be terminated upon Franchisor’s written
notice (including via email) and Franchisor may license the brand or
grant the franchise to any third party.

T RAZNHRA, SREANNBAHREIE IS, BIZEE
HELERIREALUMEHE, RN tEVEZ &,
WIREARRERHE—OHEOEERN A UREASE
NBF. REASERRIFIERRZEEIIXERENEZ T
(10)ELFHALSEBAFEEEAZ SR SR &AL,
EREARKRUSERSMELIRT, BIREARGR&EE
1TLIENE(F. EamlT, HRBEARBYBRERZARIZLGE T
(60)E HEH NIREIEELREA TR NEZ, WS
H+Z(12)EB AMRAAXREBEZ EXELTH, ERIMWIEER
AR AR A B S T8,

2. Once Franchisee becomes aware of an available site during the Term
of this Agreement, Franchisee shall submit the site for Franchisor’s
consideration immediately and provide Franchisor with all required
information about the site. Franchisee shall also meanwhile provide a
copy of the lease or purchase agreement for Franchisor’s review and
record. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with written notice of
approval or disapproval of the site within ten (10) business days upon
receiving all documentation and information related to the site.

Franchisee may not begin any construction on the site until Franchisor
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has approved such site in writing. In any event, Franchisee shall, within
sixty (60) calendar days from the execution of this Agreement, identify
and propose the site for the Store, and open the Store for business to the
public within twelve (12) months after the Effective Date. If
Franchisee fails to comply with either requirement, Franchisor shall be
entitled to terminate this Agreement immediately without further notice.

=. KIEREASIIEEERE, HREANMBEEEREHAML, K
LW ARRBEREATREAEMA U USRS ERESES R
[ SREER ST E B AR TS,

3. Franchisee will not relocate the Store without Franchisor’s prior written
consent. This Agreement does not grant Franchisee the right or license
to operate the Store or to offer or sell products or services at or from
any other location by utilizing TPTEA Trademarks.

4. #REARREBITEUSEE G AT EER S B E R
REZ BEFFE, SIREABEESREHEITaI, BYSHERTH,
LMBBLUSZE TR ESEEH. BRIZEANEX, BEA
AHEMESIERRE), BRIREAEESEMRAEHR.

4. Franchisee shall be responsible for obtaining all zoning classifications
and clearances which may be required by local laws, ordinances or
regulations or which may be necessary as a result of any restrictive
covenants relating to the Store’s site. Prior to the beginning of
construction of the Store, Franchisee shall obtain all permits, licenses
and certifications required for the lawful construction or remodeling
and operation of the Store. Franchisor will render reasonable assistance

as requested by Franchisee, at Franchisee’s costs and expenses.
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B=lFe— WIREABREMAZIRS

Article 3-1 Restriction on Sub-Franchise by Franchisee
—. HRBEABUEELNEERR, SREARNSAZLYSE—
IFREZIZEERN, BREEUB=AER, SFERRREIE
B BB FAEEEEFRERE. ERBIEEREAGESHEHE
B EH)BRBURE A A IEARZEA,

1. Franchisee shall establish direct operation Store only. In the event that
Franchisee intends to establish the Store through its affiliate, the shares
or capital in such affiliate shall be completely, one hundred percent
(100%) owned by Franchisee, and a prior written consent by Franchisor
for such establishment of the Store is required. Franchisee shall not
sub-license the franchise as stipulated in Article 1 of this Agreement to
any third party, including but not limited to its subsidiaries or affiliates
that are not wholly owned by Franchisee. In the event of breach by
Franchisee, Franchisor shall be entitled to notify Franchisee in writing

(including via e-mail) to terminate this Agreement immediately.

FEUUE HEFERE Article 4 Rights of the Parties

—. REARERREANERZEE. SFENE. 7. REk(know-
how), RHFEEIE. ZF. B, 555, . BEER. BF.
FEEEED. hEfR. RESEMEESE, RIFEAREHRZES
iR tE. BaO, BEENEE RV ERIYRBRITEA,
MAFERBRSHIREA.

1. Franchisor owns the rights or intellectual property rights in the
goodwill, trade secrets, techniques, know-hows, TPTEA Trademarks,
copyright, patents, slogans, signs, logos, graphs, color designs, melody,

taste, or other corporate symbols granted as well as the Store designs,
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the manner of furnishings provided by Franchisor for the use of
Franchisee. Franchisee does not own any of the aforementioned rights.

—. REARFHIRIZ i BEs BRI HEIREAZEE,
EIREARRS: RetE. HATTEERAEIIGRzF M. &5 &
HNE, NrELSHESEFERI I, BEEFENDRIRE
NGiE =

2. Franchisor owns the copyright in all works provided to Franchisee
during the negotiation process prior to execution of this Agreement or
during the performance of this Agreement, including but not limited to:
design layouts, technical guidance and manuals for education and
training, handouts or presentations, whether in writing or in electronic
format.

=, WIREANEERE. BENEMUNSREARRRZEAESE
W, 7. ARER(know-how), RSEEIE. HF. Bl FaE.
Fas. BHERE. B, EEEEE. e, WEsEMERSE
BHIELIRAGE SV EERIECEN, ’HIBZRBEESEE
i, BRERE R EENEMEERHBE R, #IRE
ANBERE, EBETHIEEEMEARERGESRE, SEITHEBA
AR B MR T IREA.

3. With regard to the trade secrets, techniques, know-hows, TPTEA
Trademarks, copyright, patents, slogans, signs, logos, graphs, color
designs, melody, taste, other corporate symbols or any information
provided by Franchisor which may become a subject of intellectual
property rights, Franchisee shall not directly or indirectly
apply/register for or assist any third party to apply/register for any
trademarks, patents, intellectual property rights or other exclusive

rights in any country. In the event of breach by Franchisee, Franchisee
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shall withdraw such application on its own or shall request and procure
the third party to withdraw the application, or Franchisee shall transfer
the rights on its own or request the third party to transfer the right
thereof to Franchisor unconditionally.

4. KRIEFEAFREEIY, SKREANMSEBEEEEMEFE
I, BIEERE, FERGEREESSREERIIRTS. KHE
AR ERSEREZ(HERERANRSESE RS A5
B ELAE RS ANE, DUIREMELRES. IEREAT
BERVERERIERRSERE, TEERREARGEER
EAAREE. Loh, REAGERERIREASEEHIHEIR
F&Ei, SRERRREENHERE, REREASIISERE,
WIREANMEREHEEEH A EIRF R,

4. Franchisee shall not use the TPTEA Trademarks to advertise or sell
products or render services through the mail or by any electronic or
other medium, including the Internet, without Franchisor’s prior
written approval. Franchisor’s right of approval of any Internet usage
of TPTEA Trademarks includes approval of the domain names and
Internet addresses, website materials and content, and all links to other
sites. Only Franchisor have the sole right to establish an Internet “home
page” using any of the TPTEA Trademarks, and to regulate the
establishment and use of linked home pages by franchisees.
Furthermore, Franchisor shall have the right to set up the social media
account name to Franchisee’s Store, including, without limitation, a
Facebook fan page. Franchisee shall not set up the social media
account name to Franchisee’s Store without Franchisor’s prior written

consent.
f. HIREAZILRER SRR SRS FEREEEN BRI
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BAEBFRE., SREANMETLUREENERENEREHSE
EEERE, BAMSEERSERERITENER, BERER
mEmia s FENEMERMERE, SRBANMBEREDER
B E R AR S S R ERI £ BRa—EREE T, EE*IHHH
ftE R G ERiRe e < BRI R, Ebaarst. BRIEARZZLY
BT, BIREABRIRE, HAIRHRERAT EEHE?%I%S
BIERIATERE, BEASEENEREREARNSETERE, &L
B AMILEERTABURE,

5. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that all copyrights and other
proprietary rights of the TPTEA Trademarks are exclusively owned by
Franchisor. Franchisee shall only use such rights for the operation of
the Store at the site and shall not change or modify the TPTEA
Trademarks or its derivatives, or claim any copyrights or other
proprietary rights for the TPTEA Trademarks or its derivatives.
Franchisee shall not register, in whole or in part, within the Territory
or in any other areas, the TPTEA Trademarks or other trademarks,
marks, logos, or designs similar or confusingly similar to the TPTEA
Trademarks. Unless stated otherwise in this Agreement, Franchisee
represents and warrants that it shall not, at any time, declare that it has
any rights or qualification over the TPTEA Trademarks, and shall not
cause any damage or infringement to the intellectual property rights of
Franchisor, nor shall Franchisee cause any third parties to do the same.

7N BAREAARS(ER TPTEA, TPTEA BERZE, SUHIIREAL
28, REERENHIERECENSHEREEBLE, 8§
[RE(E EIEEMABSZRE. SEMI. EFHR RS
EERE, B0, SIREARNCEESBAMSESREALTRBE
A —EMOE RSB DR E TR, WIREAENESHRIREA

15
1619451768.1



MR BER SR REAEESHRIREARIESREE (5170 John

Smith FIKRIBE) . QD%M‘EAE AT IR AR LIESRIZREARY

TCREARZSHIET, fAEER. BB, JE, KiRsiEL,

WIREAVESERPEIFEAZERD, MEIREALRKZEAR
FZEBEEFR.

6. Franchisee cannot use the names “TPTEA”, “TPTEA” or “RiaE",
any of Franchisor’s company names, TPTEA Trademarks, or anything
confusingly similar as part of a corporate, limited liability company,
other entity name, e-mail address, electronic identifier, or internet
domain name. For example, Franchisee’s business name may not
include any of Franchisor’s company names or TPTEA Trademarks or
any variation of them, and Franchisee may not use Franchisee’s name
in connection with TPTEA Trademarks in advertising Franchisee’s
Store (such as “John Smith’s TPTEA” or “John Smith’s TPTEA”). In
all approved uses of the TPTEA Trademarks on Franchisee’s business
forms such as Franchisee’s letterhead, invoices, order forms, receipts,
and contracts, Franchisee shall expressly identify itself as a franchisee
and specify Franchisee’s business as independently owned and
operated.

. IBHIBERR S EIEIERAEER, WIREARBZZRIER]
IREAN. NSRIFENRZRAN, SIREARSREREIREAR
FRRUELZ X, LMEAIRE AR LR,

7. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor promptly of any litigation relating
to the TPTEA Trademarks. In the event Franchisor undertake the
defense or prosecution of any such litigation, Franchisee shall execute
any and all documents and do such acts and things as may be necessary,

in the opinion of Franchisor’s counsel, to carry out such defense or
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prosecution.

I\, EEEREERSESRENEmMmER, SHREAREMERR
ARATERAR 3D MESREVERIEASTZ. e ARKREELY
XfEAREER. B ER. BEoigel. TiErE. BiRsES

(BFRERRRHER) SEEERRRMGREASERE.
LA EINEREA R ER, WAMRBEIREA ST SHEIER,
WIREANEHERLERTEERREMSEREZS. UEERZE
SZIE, EHEREABITAE.

8. Prior to the manufacturing of the Merchandise under the TPTEA
Trademarks, Franchisee shall provide the sample of design of such
Merchandise and the three-dimensional model thereof for Franchisee’s
approval. All containers, packages, labels, display materials,
promotional materials, catalogs and advertisements (including but not
limited to press release) which Franchisee intends to use under the
Agreement shall be provided to Franchisor for its written approval
prior to the use or utilization thereof. Franchisor’s approval or consent
does not guarantee that the abovementioned material or model as
provided by Franchisee is in compliance with the applicable laws.
Franchisee shall confirm and ensure that all Merchandises are in
compliance with applicable laws. In the event of violation of any

applicable law, Franchisee shall be solely responsible for all liabilities.

FR& ZHREPRTI Article 5 License Limitation

—. BIREANERIRENESEE X i BREE, 332y
HAEEmiE, B AL RIEE, BITaE MM AERESFIRR
BAMREZRZEEE. EF BF. 12538, & BEEXR.
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PR EECEEMEESRE. EXEHRETE. REAZRIMNEE
NE. UEHIRFMAS. EXWE. FIiMTEEREL (know-how),
I AN BB ANBRIEIBDIRIR. IR EEER ., NAZ2LY
[EimEAE LIRS, SIREARANESE CaE ANEERERER .
FTEREAFTRASHIREAMRRIZOSU T ENET (BFE(E
RERSERE. Bk 3D MESRE) EW/ERIEEFEA.

1. Franchisee shall not, personally or through any third party, use or
utilize the TPTEA Trademarks, copyright, patents, slogans, signs, logo
graphs and color designs granted by Franchisor, or other Franchisor’s
corporate symbols, design layouts, technical guidance and education
and training manuals, trade secrets, techniques or know-hows outside
the scope and purpose of operating Store in the Territory or after the
Agreement is expired or terminated. Franchisee shall dismantle,
remove or destroy all aforementioned information provided by
Franchisor upon receipt of Franchisor’s notice. Upon the expiration or
termination of this Agreement, Franchisee shall neither by itself nor
authorize others to manufacture or sell the licensed Merchandise. All
art designs (including but not limited to any diagrams, drawings or
three-dimensional models) provided by Franchisor or created by
Franchisee under this Agreement shall be returned to Franchisor.

Z. BREEREAFISEHREEI, HEEANBECEIEMA.
B SREARMBEZRSEBE. EF. Bf. &5,
T, AEER. RARERSEMERESE. SXEHRETE.
SR, PATEERER (know-how), FLAKREHIE, SHEER
PRAS: LAREARMNESAERTFUNRMELERMOKZ
. SREAZBREEFIUBEMEEZEF. WIREA
ERENGEMEECEN. TEZEFNNEEMERE, HAER
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EREEREAN, REABGZENRITEZENSEEME
1,

2. Unless otherwise agreed by Franchisor’s prior written consent,
Franchisee shall not personally or through any third party modify or
adapt, nor assist any third party to modify or adapt any of the TPTEA
Trademarks, copyright, patents, slogans, signs, logo graphs, color
designs granted by Franchisor, or other corporate symbols, design
layouts, trade secrets, techniques or know-hows of Franchisor,
including but not limited to: any drink flavor based on modification of
the formula provided by Franchisor, or any work created pursuant to
the adaptation of graphic designs provided by Franchisor. In the event
of any breach of terms hereof by Franchisee, all information,
derivative rights or intellectual property rights arising thereof are
deemed to be transferred to Franchisor. Franchisor is entitled to obtain
such information and all rights or intellectual property rights arising

therefrom.

B_EXES. BENENERZER
Chapter 2 Franchise Fee, Royalties and Expenses
F7NE IZHES Article 6 Initial Franchise Fees

—. SIRBABESIREAZE 8  JT($50,000 )2 [FEE]
NEE(hEIT($.50,000 )ZHNHEE, (618 [KEx] )E=R
BARBEZIRITIRE., MRHIREANENTMEREALIEARS
NE, FIREATNSENRRERESRIMBEESIPE—B.

1. Franchisee shall pay a Franchise Fee in the total amount of Fifty

Thousand($50,000) in United States Dollars, and an amount of Fifty
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Thousand ($50,000) in United States Dollars as Technology Transfer

Fee (Franchise Fee, Technology Transfer Fee are hereinafter refer as
the “Franchise Fee”) to the bank account designated by Franchisor. If
Franchisor terminates this Agreement because Franchisee breaches
this Agreement, Franchisee does not have any right to demand refund
of the Franchise Fee nor Technology Transfer Fee in whole or in part.
T HIEREARRAIZYRTE=QMEILERA, ST FREA
[ZEE] 28, NERREABRRBEANSRG IR,
WIREANEEREALRMGNSRB 2 EHRER . SREAR
WA RIEAZRESHRKEASIISIEERITRNMR, SIS
METEESNETEWE, UWERXTLR [REs] B#Z2=1
GOEHEHM, RHEEMNREETREAN. BESZHEMNT
IKIFEANIERE, FiBTEzFEEsHMNEREREASE.
M EELAEREECRE, BEAZHERERIFR, WREARR
BRREARHSIEZRE. NESREANENREMUDTEZE,
WIREANEEEREARLEEE RS,

2. Franchisee shall pay the whole amount of the Franchise Fees within
three (3) business days following the signing date of this Agreement.
In the event that Franchisee is required to withhold taxes on behalf of
Franchisor, Franchisee shall inform Franchisor and provide documents
relating to the withholding tax. Franchisee shall deduct the applicable
withholding taxes accordingly that are required by law and regulation
from the amount of Franchise Fee payable to Franchisor, pay such
withholding tax to applicable authorities, and provide relevant tax
payment certificate or equivalent proof of tax payment to Franchisor
within thirty (30) calendar days after paying the above mentioned

Franchise Fees each time. Franchisor will designate the method of
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paying the Franchise Fees, and Franchisee shall bear all transactional
charges and other expenses thereof. If there is an applicable tax
preference treaties between the two jurisdictions, Franchisee shall
provide reasonable assistance to Franchisor at Franchisee’s sole cost.
Franchisee shall indemnify Franchisor any and all damages incurred if
there is any dispute or incompliance due to Franchisee’s breach or
nonperformance.

. HAURMBHRAZASI FIREANER, BREAGEHGEHE
BAZERKAIAEERTENR, SHLSFIERETEERN
TEWES, WS Ex—YIEREZ=1TQC)EBERN, &
HAERRWREE FIREA. IBEIREABRREANSREZ
BIRE, SIEABERNREALRA NSRS ZEHRER.
MEREZEREECE, FEAZEREEIFRR, THXEARBEE
RIEEABRHESEZHE, BRZGHLIUKREAERE, A
BiTEzFEEaHIERRZREARRE, REREAEDY
HEMDEEER, WIREABREREARLEIEC—HEE.

3. For any and all payments of expenses and fees made under this

Agreement to Franchisor, Franchisee shall deduct the applicable
withholding taxes accordingly that are required by law and regulation
from the amount payable to Franchisor, pay such withholding tax to
applicable authorities, and provide relevant tax payment certificate or
equivalent prove of tax payment to Franchisor within thirty (30)
calendar days after paying the above mentioned payments. In the event
that Franchisee is required to withhold taxes on behalf of Franchisor,
Franchisee shall inform Franchisor and provide documents relating to
the withholding tax. If there is an applicable tax preference treaties

between the two jurisdictions, Franchisee shall provide reasonable
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assistance to Franchisor at Franchisee’s sole cost. Franchisor will
designate the method of paying the Franchise Fees, and Franchisee
shall bear all transactional charges and other expenses thereof.
Franchisee shall indemnify Franchisor any and all damages incurred if
there is any dispute or incompliance due to Franchisee’s breach or
nonperformance.

g, QD%JS'ZMEACL%T*EI%%;EE%Z%‘B‘JZ—:.B WIZIE AW /RLE1T

BEERANRAE, MRLURCSEEBERMHERFERLEE
FHEREDZT7N(16%)8GEA Rt &= RAR, LME
PREEAE., MIREAVRRGSZ(IRENMEWTEZER,
BESEZEMER.

4. If Franchisee is late in paying payments due, in whole or in part, to
Franchisor, Franchisee shall also pay Franchisor Franchisee’s then-
current late payment and interest on the unpaid amount calculated from
the date due until such late payment is paid-off at the annual rate of
sixteen percent (16%), or the highest rate allowed by law, whichever is
higher. Franchisee shall also pay all collection charges incurred by
Franchisor to collect fees that are due, including reasonable attorneys’

fees.

FEH(& FEFIE Article 7 Royalties

—. WIREAEREXERCBREXE (FEMBER)ZES
Z (%), IRXB+THQMBICBRBIELE), ZIERENE
TIREAN, BIZEIEEE, IBWREABREEANS
WMBZ BN, HIREARBRIEEATIRMINASRTS 186
&}, WIREABMGHREAZEN S FEIIRREEZERE,
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RERBKENEE 2B, SNEFTERETFEERNE
B, Wt ErENESEZ=TQC)EAEBHMA, =ZH
HENIRERE TIREA. IMERZEEEZHE, BEAZHE
MEBRIFR, HREABBERREARRSEZmRE)., B%
BABETAMEREEIR. BANEZGHAIVKEEARERE,
FrBITEZ FEEEMERREIREAGR. NEHRFEA
EBANEMOTEER, RIREABREREARLZEZ—]
BE. REANGEZEREIERN, SIREABKREAZE
KEHEETEZIRMAREFREA. BIREARES=T
INEEESEIER, BREE=SINEFaRET 224081, FER
BARHEE=FINEFEEIEZFERT (BRFEARRREE.
FEE. BHES) REORERREATZ, SREASH
FEE, HREARTESE=S7FE]EH, MIEEALRE
RESZ=ZFEaNFRIER=KN, REFEAZE=LGFE
ZERG.. B, FEE. REERSIIEER, 6K
REAIRIRENS. WRWALERE, RFEAZRIEMERE
il BIREALHEREASHREMES =S/NEFaE/EAT
EEZEXBETANRARENEZERE, MER TG
BLAGsIHREEARLZENE: (ERAKIIMNETSIHES
FEE-FHRESRZIER » *EFER DT,

1. Franchisee shall pay royalties to Franchisor in the amount of six
percent (6%) of the revenue (excludes local sales tax) of the Store in
a given month before the tenth (10™) day of the subsequent calendar
month (subjected to be postponed upon holiday), and the payment
shall be made in United States Dollars. In the event that Franchisee

IS required to withhold taxes on behalf of Franchisor, Franchisee

shall inform Franchisor and provide documents relating to the
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withholding tax. Franchisee shall pay the applicable withholding
taxes based on the subtotal royalty amounts including withholding
taxes to applicable authorities accordingly that are required by law
and regulation, and provide relevant tax payment certificate or
equivalent prove of tax payment to Franchisor within thirty (30)
calendar days after paying the above mentioned royalties. If there is
an applicable tax preference treaties between the two jurisdictions,
Franchisee shall provide reasonable assistance to Franchisor at
Franchisee’s sole cost. Franchisee shall be in compliance with local
applicable tax laws and regulations. Franchisor will designate the
method of paying the royalties, and Franchisee shall bear all
transactional charges and other expenses thereof. Franchisee shall
indemnify Franchisor any and all damages incurred if there is any
dispute or incompliance due to Franchisee’s breach or
nonperformance. Franchisor is entitled to verify the revenue of the
Store, and Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with the actual and
complete book records as well as all credential documents as
requested by Franchisor. In case Franchisee desires to cooperate
with any third party delivery platform, Franchisee shall provide
detail information related to the cooperation between Franchisee and
the third party delivery platform (include but not limited to
commission percentage, handling fees and service fees) and drafted
contract for Franchisor’s review. Only after Franchisor consents in
writing may Franchisee execute contracts with third party delivery
platform. Within three (3) days after Franchisee and third party
delivery platform execute contracts, Franchisee shall provide

Franchisor information related with method to verify statement of
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accounts, commission rate that Franchisee and third party delivery
platform have agreed, identification account name and password for
inquiry of backend statements and reports, and column description
of backend statements and reports, and other information required
by Franchisor. Sales generated by third party delivery platform that
Franchisor has agreed in writing will not be included in the
aforementioned assessment of Royalties, and Royalties for such
sales will be assessed by the following method instead:

¢ Monthly sales generated by third party delivery platform -
excluded amounts under Franchisor’s consent > *Percentage of
Royalties prescribed in this Agreement.

Z. RENSERREEABRRIEERE, BRIREABRERE
ANTHRZTEEN, SEERRINERIRMAERE, LINREEA
BRZBIEEM. HIREARMBREAZENNMEEARE. T
BaEmet, IHREASIREANENERNEARS LIRS
—IEREZLHE, #SIREARREEABNERGELIFEEN
HEEN | SR ESRE, WENESRESEERRD Z=0CB%)F,
TIREALEEEREAZCERER.

2. Franchisor may inspect monthly revenue of the Store of Franchisee, and
Franchisee shall provide Franchisor complete information that
Franchisor needs, which include but not limited to book records and
credential documents and any other information as requested by
Franchisor. Franchisee shall not provide any false, incomplete or
misleading information to Franchisor. If royalties paid by Franchisee is
less than the percentage prescribed in paragraph 1 of this Article 7,
Franchisee shall pay the shortage within five (5) working days after

Franchisor notifies, in case the shortage exceeds three percent (3%),
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Franchisee shall also pay any costs and expenses arising from the
inspection of Franchisor.

. IREABKBLZS R —REASHRARFERIRM, #RE
A B ERBIREANEREXRZ R E R DR FEEE IR,
AT R R (E R AT ERE/ IR E RS EHER T
RIRJEEME. HIREANRRFERESEE DR HRER M (2)
F,

3. Franchisee shall keep business records in the manner and for the time

required by law, and in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Franchisee shall keep any additional business records that
Franchisor may request from time to time, in the manner and for the
time as Franchisor may specify. All records shall be capable of being
reviewed by Franchisor without additional assistance of hardware or
software. Franchisee shall retain copies of each tax return for the
franchised business for a period of two (2) years.

0. #iREARRKEREAZKBRNENT0)EIEEA, WK%
BAZEE (IREEREAREEINNERA, BO)RFEARLL
EXAUMEL, RFHREAENFRRERRLBFRIALUMTEZ.

4. Within ten (10) business days after receiving Franchisor’s request notice
and at Franchisor’s option, Franchisee shall (a) provide Franchisor with
photocopy of those required records, or (b) at a location acceptable to
Franchisor, provide Franchisor access to any required records that
Franchisor specify for examination and photocopying by Franchisor.

h. REASRERFEARHGREEASEHEZENNER, ®E
SieErHAeWE, BE—RASSEZREAHENENR. B
RIENBTER M TPTEA RFRYETEIRBERF &I HRE
INBRERMEZZEARAGERIZZAR, WEBEEEAHEERRF
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BENZZA. EXEHNZEANATBRIZEAN, REAELES
AR A IEFERIBEIE LS.,

5. Franchisor will keep any records Franchisee provides to Franchisor that
contain confidential information of Franchisee’s confidential, provided
such records are marked confidential and, by their nature, would be
considered by a reasonable person to be confidential, but Franchisor
may release information to any person entitled to it under any lease, to
a prospective transferee of the Store, in connection with anonymous
general information disseminated to Franchisor’s franchisees and
prospective franchisees, in the formulation of plans and policies in the
interest of the TPTEA System, or if required by law or any legal

proceeding.

) \1& BLIREES Article 8 Security Deposit

WIREEA IR ANEIS4(IEE_ (B8 JT(US$50,000 )z

RE(UUTE [BOURES] )FEREAN, (FRITEAZURHEZ
HEEER, BEAREEEANENSABTHEREANEESX

H:.'L%ﬁﬁﬁv, S(EEERR)EHENRESIIR, WABNMREE
ARZEEERERIRES (BB JT(US$50.000 ), HHREEARLRIL

EIZEANBREZE=C)HAME. ﬁﬂ%&?ﬂ%)\,\ LENMEINIKZ B

2, (RESSIIEERNE RS LEERIR

Upon the execution of this Agreement, Franchisee shall provide a cash

security deposit in the amount of _Fifty Thousand United States Dollars
(US$ 50,000 ) (hereinafter, the “Security Deposit”) as an interest-free

guarantee for fulfilling the obligations of this Agreement. Franchisor

may (but not obligated) deduct the Security Deposit in the event of any
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damages or expenses suffered or incurred by Franchisor resulting from
or in connection with the breach or failure of performance by Franchisee;
and when the amount of Security Deposit is not enough for any
deduction or is less than Fifty Thousand United States Dollars (US$

50,000), Franchisee shall make up the deficiency within three (3) days

after receiving Franchisor’s notice. The Security Deposit will be
returned to Franchisee without interest upon the expiration or
termination of the Agreement if Franchisee has not breached the
Franchise Agreement that shall be payable by deducting the Security
Deposit.

FENI% #5314 F Article 9 Education and Training Expenses

—. B EEHRNER
EXEHEMRR, REASSTHAERREEETEHISH
BEERFZEARSNE RSO (LU [IHRE] ) .
AZXBEANRZEEEARBERFZEARE, HXEAEBERE
ZIREANTRZHE, EREEHZREREBEER. HIEEA
FERIREAERER, RBEHEMUHRERHIZHERRITIEZ
REIFIREASLEEEDR, EREAZRRABLUETLERAE
SRR,

1. Initial assistance prior to the Store preparation expense
Franchisor will arrange its representative(s) for on-site market research
and reviewing the site of the Store as proposed by Franchisee
(hereinafter, the "Location Proposal™) before Store’s preparation.
Franchisor shall be responsible for its representative's domestic

transportation in Taiwan, and Franchisee shall be responsible for air
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tickets, the local board and lodging and transportation. The Franchisee
shall, within the period as designated by Franchisor, provide Franchisor
the Location Proposal and the planning and schedule for the market
research and review for Franchisor's prior written confirmation, so that
the Franchisor's representative may conduct afore-mentioned on-site
market research and review for proposed sites of the Store.

—. iNTREREER
WIREANBEE—HEEXEHEEEPAGNET (YEGHEER
BEKER, BEAGWIREAREIKEIEERHBAE) B
AIiriEE B TIREREARERRATAIZEAESERHEL
BiESERER =) RE, misEEcmTan (M 3] ,
ISR EERBKIREARRE, EF0E, HIREASE
ITHEIKEEAR, BZE2HE S EMREARBEZIELIES.
IR TENIEEZ B THEAMINERIRFAYST Rk LIRS E | A 55
TERIEK, REABRIARIQ,

2. Technique Transfer Stage:
If this Store is the first Store to be operated by Franchisee, for the
operation of the Store, Franchisee shall designate at least five (5)
employees (all designated employees shall have experience in food
service industries, and shall be those that Franchisee plan to promote to
management positions), and afore-mentioned employees designated by
Franchisee shall, within the time frame specified by Franchisor,
complete all the training courses and pass thirteen (13) positions
evaluation held by Franchisor in Taiwan, and the methods of evaluation
are specified in Appendix 3 and all necessary expenses arising from
training and evaluation shall be borne by Franchisee. If an interpreter is

needed, Franchisee shall appoint such interpreter at its own expenses;
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however, the interpreter shall not be included as one of the employees
to be trained. If afore-mentioned employees designated by Franchisee
fail to successfully and timely complete all training and evaluation as
described above, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement.

. FIRRIEHEREER
REAERENERIEREABZAE. €8, #E. 8. T
PR ARG REERARRREARR, ABHFEHEEAB
1TEE, REARHXUHEHISMEA LR BN SIREAPIHIE
FEIE, aNREAGEMEEIIRERXR, REASSITHRE.
WIREATEEREAABEEMZ ABTE, SLDHUIRE
ANBZVEFK,

3. Training Period:

Franchisee shall be responsible for the expenses of local board and
lodging, air tickets, transportation, work permits/visa application, and
other documents for Franchisor’s staff to provide coaching for opening
of the Store in the Territory. Franchisor shall be responsible for its
training staff’s salary. Franchisor shall provide a one-time training
session to Franchisee to help Franchisee to operate the Store; and if
Franchisee has additional training needs, Franchisor will provide
additional quote. Franchisee shall be responsible for Franchisor’s
training staff’s personal safety, and provide necessary assistance.
9. BTz EREER

SXEIEHEFE, REAZRENEN 2T ZNIRIGHE
iR TIFE kAR R FERRRREARRS, HRERY
HREABITEE. RFEABEEREAREABEEZA
B%e, FBENHHREAREABZVEFTK, BRLOAGITET
Zoh, NEREARBRER SR, REASSITHRE. 0K
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REARBBREEAZTZE, REANGEREMERETHS
HIRERREABRAL, REAIIRABZHE. 168, €8,
WE B, LIFREMREMRGERER, YHRMREASR.
4. The Routine Evaluation and Counseling Stage:

After the Store begin operation, Franchisee shall be responsible for fees
arising from the work permits/visa and other documents application
needed for Franchisor’s coaching staff to conduct routine evaluation
and on-site coaching; and Franchisor shall be responsible for the
remaining expenses. Franchisee shall be responsible for Franchisor’s
coaching staff’s personal safety, and provide necessary assistance.
Other than the routine evaluation as mentioned above, if additional
coaching and/or education and training is required by Franchisor,
Franchisor will provide additional quote. If Franchisee fails the
evaluation, Franchisor may re-train Franchisee at Territory until the
Franchisee passes the evaluation, and, Franchisee shall be responsible
for Franchisor’s training staff’s salary, expenses of board and lodging,
air tickets, transportation, work permits/visa and other related
documents application.

f. Ex/ELIE
WIZEANR SRS EEIEHG, EHREANEREARES
s RIS, REARLBEIREANSEEX, REHERE.
REASSIER— (VS EREEE R ArREEESR. W%
BARSERERREAMERNECETFRAE M LUTE
F.

(1) SEEMENSRIMSEAZHESZ2/EIT(US$300),
(2) SERERIREISEAEME, &

3) TEHREER. BERR=ERULZREETEERANEMD
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FERIREARITKITERIGIERE.

5. After store start operations:

If Franchisee still requires Franchisors’ training and shop opening
support, Franchisor will provide additional quote upon Franchisee’s
written request. Franchisor may assign one (1) business operation
consultant to provide consultation service at the Store. Franchisee
agrees to make the following payments within seven (7) business days
upon receiving Franchisor’s written reimbursement request:

(1) The salary for business operation consultant(s) is Three Hundred

United State Dollars (US$300) per person per day.

(2) The round trip economic class airfare for the business operation

consultant(s); and

(3) The expenses of local transportation, meals, three stars or above

hotel accommodation for the business operation consultant(s), and
other reasonable costs incurred under request of Franchisee.
7N IREAEZESEENREAEE I SZ  HEBREATEEE
B EIEE 2 HEHE 2 S8 IHRE R B BEEE AR, &
RWREAREISE EEE R 5.

6. Franchisee must assign to the Store when Franchisee opens the
business such personnel who have been trained by Franchisor in
Taiwan or another location designated by Franchisor and certified
by Franchisor in various training courses.

T, BREANGRALIRER, IAIEEEREHEEAR, ®IRE
AZ EXEE RS R R S BRI EAGGRE N ZiEH 8RR
EREUBEBHABL=C)ATME, BiufEzz\an (K
31,

7. Franchisee shall set up training units to facilitate the operating the Store
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staff training. The Store opened by Franchisee should be equipped with
three (3) employees who are capable of handling seven (7) positions
and who have passed variety of training courses and certification. Test

for stations and standard of assessment are prescribed in Appendix 3.

F=E EXEHKEEHRA
Chapter 3 Management Principle for the Store
118 —RZREEBI Article 10 General Principle

—. RESEREACEESRARBZ M, €555 HEMN

BIREAZEKERETRA (BXKEREMETIEFEAZEETS

A BENANRET, XEREARR) | EXERAZHE. X

B, B, REEEmmEZEIL R EREAZEKREGE

T, BIREAREREREAMESREAFEEZ FIR A,

TIREARKENREXRG, BETREARRIRITTIEERHK

Bill#t, EXIEHMEECBRmENEERAS [MiH 4] &
REAZ R HE B mmIENERE,

1. In order to maintain the consistency of Franchisor’s corporate image

and quality, both Parties agree that the Store must comply with
Franchisor’s design principles (but Franchisee shall appoint a qualified
local professional technician to design layouts for utilities and fire
safety; and submit all information to Franchisor for reference). Layouts,
advertisement, traffic flow, equipment or display of Merchandise for
the Store must comply with Franchisor’s requests or instructions, and
Franchisee shall use the raw material and the equipment supplied or
designated by Franchisor. Franchisee shall also comply with the

technical guidance and education and training provided by Franchisor
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when operating the Franchise Business. All Merchandises of the Store
as well as the prices thereof shall be in compliance with the list of
Merchandises and price specified in Appendix 4.

. RREMEEM, HIREABESREARKRZREE, 85F
BERRNEmmERD. Bictthl. B8EE, WEFEHE
[EIREAZ BERTHEE S SRR SRR 2.

2. To cope with change of market, Franchisee shall conduct adjustment
required by Franchisor, which includes but is not limited to formula,
mixing ratio, packaging of Merchandise, etc.; and shall proactively or
under request of Franchisor arrange matters about acceptance of
training course in Taiwan.

=, HRBEAREHEIERESSETMRET, BRBRREA, TES
SEANASERBIREA. RIFEALGSEEHTHIE
FEHRAIRBRARMAGREA, HIRREANETEER, SR8
NZAg, WmniBRRE=x. IIREAZRRBRERESE, 5FK
WIREANRMEERECRF, REATMESRAZEREHET
BitER. HREANBLESHEREARGIREASERE
BIAESHREXRIEHET], MEEASEHFIHRHREREEA
WRRRIEIE T A4,

3. When completing the preparation of the Store, Franchisee shall firstly
notify Franchisor of the completion, date of trial operation and date of
operation of the Store. Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with photos
showing the interior of the Store so that Franchisor may inspect the
completed works. If Franchisor believes the photos are insufficient, it
may request Franchisee to provide photos showing a designated area of
the Store. Franchisor may also send personnel to conduct on-site

inspection. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that it shall not open
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the Store for business without Franchisor’s written authorization, and

such written authorization to open is conditioned upon Franchisee’s

strict compliance with this Agreement.

b, wWREABERERAREAZEEZZBRRZEREEENNHE
X, IRBAZ—IEFRBEIRREAZERTR, SHIRE
ABEREENBEXRE, BSHEEREAZERTERIFREE
EEZJRE:

4. Franchisee acknowledges that when operating the Franchise Business
under Franchisor’s name and TPTEA Trademarks, all of its action will
affect Franchisor’s corporate image. Thus, when operating the
Franchise Business, Franchisee agrees to regard maintenance of
Franchisor’s corporate image as its business management principle:

(—) HREABEREREN R 2EHENEOHERAE.
EZRRATEI S ZABTBEIZIESR, WRREARDTE.
IErEERIIS S, e NSEREIUEESHHETIREtZ
FYREERE et RmETeFmEMEOBRER. 187
R1TKmS, SIRERRE: ZLESRMBBEETFR
M2 EEF., MIRREAREZEREATE. HR. B
BitadrEf<RiE, EEREARRZFIHER SN
BMTeHENREORREARE. ERRTHGSE, WIRE
ABEREFEBEANEHBAETEBKREE, BRREREA
EIL AT Z i EERIER,

(1) Franchisee shall to thoroughly understand the relevant local laws,
regulations and administrative orders as well as any amendments
thereto with regard to food safety , hygiene and importation; and
submit a complete, accurate and timely report to the Franchisor,

and the content of the afore-mentioned reports shall be clear and
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sufficient so that both Parties may identify whether the raw
materials supplied is in compliance with the relevant local laws,
regulations and administrative orders for food safety and hygiene
as well as importation, including but not limited to: names of food
additives that are prohibited as well as the permissible amount of
food additive. In the event that Franchisee’s report is incomplete,
false, misleading, or not up-to-date, and resulted in Franchisor’s
supplied materials in breach of applicable local to food safety and
hygiene laws or import regulations or administrative orders,
Franchisee waives the right to claim Franchisor’s non-
performance or demand compensation on the resulting damages;
and Franchisee shall indemnify Franchisor any and all damages
and losses that Franchisor suffered or incurred.
WIREANMESREEZZITR, SFERRRE: ERER (B
B, XEER) . B4 B piETE BEREREER
B, R, BBE, SRMRENRFA. RBIIMEEEE,
MHERRE NI AZE BB ARG B ERAEA LS
X, EEEZEEFRNEE, ARERESTEMTEA
RUERSE. 1EthERET. AORE. FI. EERE. R FRINEUKER
B, HIREATVERISHEER. PR, MIEEH. Itit,
WHARARERECXREESYMRR, S EMNe
REmMER, EEAETWERREREANSZEE, ®
REANTEIR, EtEETEEMaEsEExRERE, L
RS RRET SR FRENEBERERE. SIREATR
RFEEHIREBEEESRMMAERNZITR, NMEERIEZI
a5 L. ETaUETIFEAEE LRI, MEIBZ B .
IMEIREATERIIMETERNERCBE, BEAGE
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HAPRMES IS, BHARUREANARYE, REARS®&ILEE
4, BRIREANGENRETAZESRENE, WIRE
AREEITRIEZEEEI, HEREREARHZHRR
&, FENZZER,

Franchisee shall not violate any applicable laws, including but not
limited to: health (nutrition, menu labeling), sanitation, no
smoking, equal opportunity employment, occupational safety and
health, discrimination, employment, data security and privacy, tax,
and sexual harassment laws. Applicable law related to disabilities
may require readily accessible accommodations for individuals
with disability and that may affect Franchisee’s building
construction, site design, entrance ramps, doors, seating,
bathrooms, drinking facilities, etc. Franchisee shall also obtain real
estate permits, licenses, and operational licenses. Local laws and
regulations also regulate businesses handling food and food
products, in particular refrigerated and frozen food items, and
these laws and regulations will apply to Franchisee’s business.
Franchisee shall also take note that local health departments may
inspect the Store to ensure compliance with safe food handling
practices and adequacy of kitchen facilities. In addition,
Franchisee shall not harm the rights of consumers or any third
party; employ illegal foreign workers, child labor or allow any
sexual discrimination or sexual harassment of any kind in the work
place. In the event of any breach of afore-mentioned applicable
laws by Franchisee, Franchisor may notify Franchisee to correct
the breach within a specified period. If Franchisee fails to correct

the breach within the period specified by Franchisor, Franchisor
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shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement and no refund for any
Franchise Fee and royalties; and Franchisee shall not only bear the
legal liabilities on its own but also compensate Franchisor for all
litigation costs and attorney fees incurred as well as all damages

arising therefrom.

(Z2) WBEHEBREIKEAZEEFERE, SREABRIE

3)

IFZEDERIREA, WIKERREAZIERTLRRE, 58
BREREZAE.

If there is any negative press coverage related to Franchisee,
Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor at the time of
awareness of such news. Franchisee shall respond in accordance
with Franchisor’s instructions and shall not respond without

Franchisor’s authorization.

(F0) #IREAMES = ARKEREBRF R TEESEATEEE,

(4)

[EEmEIRR BRI EF NS T AR REREF.

In the event that a third party claims against Franchisee or if
Franchisee is subject to administrative action or sanction by the
government, Franchisee shall take the initiative in investigating
the facts and appointing professional attorneys to carry out legal

remedial procedures.

(h) WBEF=ARFEBRESREAZHTE. S(FE. E7

1619451768.1

ENEXNESESNERS, REANGREZERIREA
ETRIAFENMEIER. MEGEHRITIER, SR M
WIRENETRIRREFREZ WM. NREFEARERE
HWIREA, RREABRAIZRESEREEEEABNE
TQOEITEEA, HEETHEFMBIEFEE TR, I
e R R E AT THRR AR BRFERAME TRIASE



()

1619451768.1

MMEIERs. MELGEEMTIER, =58R (B8&FEE

i< ER) HEREASE. ME=AMGHZEERES

BANFESIIFRANARAERE, EYFEDZ=03%) DEFE

A, HEPEDZNTEO7%) DB FHRIFEA.

If a third party infringes Franchisor’s intellectual property right

such as trademarks, copyright, patents, or trade secrets in the

Territory, Franchisor may authorize Franchisee to initiate remedial

proceedings such as litigation, settlement, and compulsory

enforcement, and may provide any assistance needed for

Franchisee to proceed with the proceedings. In the event that

Franchisor has authorized Franchisee, Franchisee shall initiate

remedial proceedings or work toward settlement after the

infringement becomes known to Franchisee or within ten (10)

business days after receipt of Franchisor’s notice of such

infringement. Franchisee shall actively handle and engage local
professional attorneys who are familiar with relevant areas to carry
out the remedial proceedings, settlement, and compulsory
enforcement. Franchisee shall bear all costs (including attorney’s
fees) arising therefrom. With regard to the compensation or
settlement paid by the third party, after deduction of the
aforementioned litigation expenses, Franchisor is entitled to three
percent (3%) of the deducted amount thereof, whereas Franchisee

IS entitled to the remaining ninety-seven percent (97%).

(77) EEXEHEEERE (WEEL) IEETa ®
REARBEL BFFETE AN EFHREARSERNRE,
NEESRMESFENEEHE. BEENAEMIFR. R
faRIEBEERMERRAREEB AT (UMEEA
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NEBTHMREA) JIRERIMURIEA. SIREALER
REARSRIRBATEERE. RIBATERIREAL
AEDIRAI=1 (30) RLIZSEFNBAIREABRI(ETM
REGHIEGH. NMEUSREXREE, WIREAYEEBREN
BEMEARDRT (10) RIRMIREARIRER BERE
AER, AIRZHRIEZEBRIBIA) |, LAERARTRAOIRIRE
=#0E, WHEIBEERE.

(6) Prior to opening or operating the Store for business, and prior to
constructing (if applicable) the Store in the event Franchisee is
developing the Store, Franchisee must procure and at all times
maintain such insurance covering the risks, in the amounts, and
with the deductibles, retentions and other provisions, as prescribed
by Franchisor from time to time. All insurance must by
endorsement specifically name Franchisor and its affiliates (and
Franchisor’s and their employees and agents) as additional insureds.
Franchisee must purchase each policy from an insurance company
reasonably acceptable to Franchisor. Either the insurer or
Franchisee must provide at least thirty (30) days’ prior written
notice to Franchisor of any insurance policy’s cancellation, non-
renewal or material change. Franchisee must deliver to Franchisor
a certificate of insurance (or certified copy of such insurance policy
iIf Franchisor requests) evidencing the required coverages and
setting forth the amount of any deductibles not less than ten (10)
days after their respective effective dates.

(1) WRREANERNFERRS, REAGRLEARIZY, NREA
FZEEHTEE, wIREARRRESE.

(7) Inthe event Franchise fails to perform the obligations prescribed in
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this Article, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement, and
Franchisee shall indemnify any and all damages incurred by
Franchisor resulting therefrom.

FE+—15% FEEEHFERET [ Article 11 Designated Contact
gL YRS s F AR EE RSB CE AR,
ABUNEHHEES), BRIEtnIiEkEE AR,
Both Parties shall appoint a contact person for each department or
appoint such contact personnel in a specific matter. In the event of any
change of the contact personnel, such Party shall immediately notify the

other Party and assign a replacement for the contact person.

BT IR EERB. SRENRFEIRH
Article 12 Equipment, Machinery and Raw Materials

—. WIREARKEEXEHAHZ —VIRANER, SEERR
0 EEEXEERER. KAk IE. KERSTE. Ajj;%i%
REBREREERBNAEMZER. KBEFRYNZER. BER
mEH (REEREER) MAEZIRES, WHEREABT
B, TEIANENFFESHFE CIFRZENEA.

1. All costs and expenses incurred during operation of the Store by
Franchisee, including but not limited to rental expenses for the Store,
decoration costs, costs of utility design, costs of manpower, expenses
for purchasing and replacing equipment and consumables, costs for
purchasing raw materials, fees for Halal Certification (including fees
for mutual certification) as well as all relevant taxes and duties, shall be
borne by Franchisee. All the aforementioned costs and expenses are not

included in the Franchise Fee or royalties as stipulated in Articles 6 and
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7 of this Agreement.

. REESRRHELERRESRENER. BIREATLIDRE
ABERRHZAIcHERRE, REAGERHERRZEAD
FEX, ZHNLHEMER, WIREAUSREKEI SR, 5%
BANSWHEETLSEMREARGE %, 8RR
BAEFEZ, REAGEEIHERNER, EHFIRER
EARERIE., HERBERREANSTEEKNIZE, 8F
(RFEAZRE)BZERE B NBLORE. REATLIEREZ
EREAEKRIREAED. REREKX, REHTRE, FREA
BREBERIRRFEENAR, EREIHFER=)ERAEXIH
i AHBZER. MRHERREATEREANFYG, SEFE
ANEEREAED. FRENEXGBEMREE, REATLEER
REHREAZ . FRExetEl, REARGREREX
BRI HAYRAS IR B Z SRR T A B IERT Z 1.

2. The reputation and goodwill of TPTEA System is based upon, and can
be maintained only by, the sale of high quality products. A list of
approved suppliers is available on request. Suppliers are required to
share shipping, distribution and all other information with Franchisor,
and Franchisee will be required to cooperate. Franchisee and/or the
supplier may request for approval by submitting the application to
Franchisor in writing. All requests will be reviewed in accordance with
Franchisor’s then-current procedures and Franchisor will take into
consideration of its available resources, which may affect the timing of
Franchisor’s response to Franchisee. The supplier shall meet
Franchisee’s then-current specifications, standards and requirements,
which may include signing a non-disclosure agreement and a guarantee

of performance as Franchisor thinks fit. Franchisor may change
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Franchisor’s specifications, standards and requirements at any time and
there is no limit on Franchisor’s right to do so. Franchisor will,
depending on the nature of the products or services and within three (3)
months, give notice to the applicant of the review result. Franchisor
may withdraw its approval at any time if the supplier’s performance
does not meet Franchisor’s criteria, or when Franchisor changes its
specifications, standards or requirements or other reasons. All costs and
expenses incurred by Franchisor in the testing and reviewing process
for supplier approval, no matter the supplier is approved or not, shall be
borne by the Franchisee or supplier which submits such application.
WMIREAREECEERBNEE, WREAEESHREADZ
REAEZHERRE, HRlE, BERES (M4 5] .
WIZTEAN BB TR A RIS AR, REASGRE
NZEHRERETFWIREAZEERENSER, BIREARSER
RESFER W EBNSEINRERAEEE,

Franchisee shall purchase the equipment and machinery designated by
Franchisor from Franchisor or Franchisor’s authorized supplier only.
The types, quantity as well as price of the equipment and machinery are
listed in Appendix 5. Franchisee shall not manufacture such equipment
and machinery by itself, mandate any third party to do so, or purchase
the equipment and machinery from others. Equipment and machinery
sold by Franchisor or Franchisor’s authorized supplier to Franchisee
shall not be used or resold by Franchisee beyond the purposes necessary
for operating the Store.

WIRBEAMBREAEEZEE, (EEMREANEREAR
HEZHERRE, HmBERES [FE 5] | wREALRE
TR R ARG A ALRES, RIEAEFHRIREAZIRR,
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WA BREEEEE RV EBHNEEY N ERAEEE.

4. Franchisee shall purchase the raw materials designated by Franchisor
from Franchisor or Franchisor’s authorized supplier only, and the types
and price of the raw materials are listed in Appendix 5. Franchisee shall
not manufacture such raw materials by itself, or mandate any third party
to do so, or purchase the raw materials from others. Raw materials sold
by Franchisor or Franchisor’s authorized supplier to Franchisee shall
not be used or resold by Franchisee beyond the purposes necessary for
operating the Store.

h. (K4 6] cEERE. BENFEYE, SREREABRITES,
EWIFEARUESREEBAZIEREEERE. SSERIFIH,
EVEMERENEREMESRERE, LIBEHREANSNKE
THEEAELEE BEESEEBEAZEFTSR. NHRIREAE
RAFRRE, RAEWREABEXENTERIREABGREAR
BN S XSS IRAETT(USS150,000) 5 BEESRE A E LLFT
ZBE.

5. As to equipment, machinery and raw materials listed in Appendix 6,
Franchisee may select and purchase on its own. However, Franchisee
shall exercise due care in choosing the equipment, machinery and raw
materials. All the purchased equipment, machinery and raw materials
shall at least meet the local applicable quality inspection standard to
avoid any damage or legal liability against Franchisor and to avoid harm
to Franchisor’s corporate image. In the event Franchisee breach this
section, it shall be deemed as material breach by Franchisee and
Franchisee shall pay Franchisor One Hundred and Fifty Thousand
United State Dollars (US$150,000) as punitive penalty shall be

responsible to Franchisor for any damages incurred resulting therefrom.
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N EIEEABUSREEAZISEE, ¥ER7F. EEEERY
PN, =R, RILCEREEBREFHRZ M.

6. Franchisee shall use its due care in preserving, managing and
maintaining raw materials, equipment, and machinery. Franchisee shall
not use expired raw materials.

T, FHIREARBKREAERZEESRENFREAEEH, BED
IREEALREE, REBEWRW (M4 5) Ao, (EREAZIERER
[EEREY, fNGERBEE EXREGERE, FAREERISTIE
REEPESEERBERE, MEBXMEEATRCEERAZR
B, BERBRRECEE—RERFRIERERER, W
BINLAERS R ESE.

7. Franchisee shall replace the outdated equipment and machinery in
accordance with the quantity specified by Franchisor. New equipment
and machinery shall be purchased from Franchisor and the prices
thereof are as specified in Appendix 5. However, the instruction of
Franchisor shall be justified and reasonable. For example, Franchisor
may require Franchisee to purchase spare equipment in advance to
avoid damage of important equipment and the delay of
repair/maintenance may cause business interruption or severe business
loss; or in the case that the equipment and machinery had been used for
longer than the usual prescribed years of use or according to actual
circumstances, and there is risk of danger if Franchisee continues to use
the equipment and machinery.

I\, BIREAMREANEREALEZHERTBEERB. /A
RIRIetEs, FEGERM (b4 5] <z HITUETIBEE, WLfERSE
BBt ELIFH ARREARE IS BERK.
MBEFARUIREANIEERECR, REAGEEFELEYEENRDT
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8. #fh. RIHINEDRE, HRERARRREARRE,
RENFHEEE L] BRI SENREE, BE=1T0)EILIE
H/=E+RS)ETIER, WERRE, REASREGIREAR
Bl e AL ERE,
L RERRTEENT:
BE
(1)20 IREME x 1 8% 40 IREHE x1: FZEEMBEREHTIE 60%, RS
BFEE %W, REJEERTEESRREEXEERETT
(US$10,000), FINKFEEEESERIRI/IT(USSL50),
(Q)fFHE(CFS) x 1: FTESFHEARERIEESSEIT (US$10,000),
I FEEE=E=AIRIGTT(US$150),
TiE:
3] EERRARERIESSHEIT (US$10,000), FIMIFEEE
E&=B(RIEIT(US$150),
SHHE:
METEFZOHBE, FREEEMELEZ HOBEIER (B!
SEEMER] JAREAXY, BIKERINKFESEE
E={B(RIEIT(US$150),

8. Franchisee shall submit the standard purchase order form as stated in
Appendix 5 when purchasing from Franchisor or Franchisor’s approved
supplier the equipment, machinery and raw materials and shall pay in
full the prices in accordance with the method designated by Franchisor
within seven (7) business days after the next day of confirmation of
purchase order. If payment is not made in accordance with the deadline
specified by Franchisor, Franchisor reserves the right to suspend
production and shipment. Franchisee shall bear any and all certification

fees if certification for equipment and raw materials are required.
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The delivery term shall be thirty (30) business days for sea freight
shipment or fifteen (15) business days for air freight shipment, starting
from confirmation of purchase order by both Parties as well as
completion of full payment thereof. If production line is overloaded,
Franchisor may negotiate with Franchisee and adjust delivery term.
Both Parties agree that the minimum order quantity shall be as follows:

Sea Freight Shipment :

(1) 20 ft. container x 1 and 40 ft. container x 1: Minimum loading is
sixty percent (60%) for dry cargo container and fifty percent (50%)
for refrigerated container. Extra handling fee of One Hundred Fifty
United States Dollars (US$150) will be charged for shipment less
than minimum order quantity or purchase order amount is less than
Ten Thousand United States Dollars (US$10,000).

(2) CFS x 1: Extra handling fee of One Hundred Fifty United States
Dollars (US$150) will be charged for purchase order amount less
than Ten Thousand United States Dollars (US$10,000).

Air Freight Shipment:
Extra handling fee of One Hundred Fifty United States Dollars

(US$150) will be charged for purchase order amount less than Ten
Thousand United States Dollars (US$10,000).
Partial Shipment:

If partial shipment is required, Franchisor will pay the domestic fee
incurred thereof for the first time (the “Taiwan local fee”). Extra
handling fee of One Hundred Fifty United States Dollars (US$150)

will be charged from the second time and beyond.
L. NMEZEEIYER FOB R, BFREARD OIS ESERI%R
Sohkig, REREACTTHAS, EEFEAMI R m N kR
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EHRZENRIE, BEERNMENMZ EEERIIBRIREAR
&, BERRENBSEEEIMIEIEREAZIZANELE.

9. For all purchases made under this Article, FOB (Intercom 2010) term
shall be applied under which delivery is deemed to be completed after
Franchisor has loaded the goods on board of a vessel at the place of
export and Franchisee shall bear the interests and risks of the goods
after completion of delivery. All costs of sea freight shipment and
inland transportation at the place of import shall be borne by Franchisee.
However, the forwarder appointed by Franchisee for the delivery of the
goods shall be submitted to Franchisor for approval.

+. #WIREARR SHABEFREEEENY, NRREAEREIR
i, BERHBHETAR, =1+@Q0)EHEHNEAIRERE AR
EEENZRRRR, LIEBEREEERE. MHEREAER
KNEFZE, REFERESZANY, NMEBEREATRIVIE.
10.Franchisee shall inspect the goods upon customs clearance. If after
inspection, Franchisee finds that there is any defect in the goods,
Franchisee shall notify Franchisor and submit the photo showing the
current status of the goods within thirty (30) business days from the
estimated date of arrival (ETA) of the shipment in order to clarify the
reasons of defectiveness. If Franchisee fails to notify Franchisor within
the aforementioned deadline, Franchisee shall be deemed as to have
accepted the goods and shall not claim against Franchisor for any defect.
+—. #SEEARBTEAREOBZEORR, HITEEER.
EWREANBERREAZFHEEEREATIE, &A%
WIRBATERRREANBESRESZTZHET (40%)
HIRBE, NHRREARTMREOMAVERFZEAMRE
M HE, REABSDRRMZ, BFRFFEENRME,
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HERBEASEZ., IRREARSZTENENEIEDE
WREMEEEIR, ARREARHERETPRIEER S,
St ERERYERWRENRE, SRZIRXESRTE
ANEEZ,
11.Franchisee shall complete the import procedures at the country of
import on its own and bear all the expenses thereof. If Franchisee orders
through a development franchisee of Franchisor, such development
franchisee may charge a service fee of up to forty percent (40%) of the
original purchase price. Franchisor shall use its best effort to assist in
providing any documents required for Franchisee to complete the
import procedures; provided, however, that Franchisee shall bear all the
required handling fees and costs. If the forwarder appointed by
Franchisee is incapable of confirming the local food hygiene regulation,
and requires Franchisor to provide product sample to the central
competent authority for inspection, Franchisee shall bear any expense
incurred thereof from the country of import and beyond. However,
Franchisor will bear the delivery charge of such product sample.
T BIREAERBIAFRMAZMNMR, IRFEEHREAS
1TEE.
12.Franchisee shall bear transaction charges when submitting payment

pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

FH=1% EHEiE SEREEEE
Article 13 Decoration and Maintenance of the Store

—. IREABESEREHZREHER. TERIERER. BRE
FIGsm Tiedcistin, MBIREABRIMEK, REARELMK
REAZRAREGIERE. REMESSERESEREERN
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BREAZERLIN, EXEEH TERRME. RETEERIZER
BWERSREABRRITENCIZRERGE, ATEMRABEER
BARE, —KREASHEX, HIREAYRRIFEIETESA
SXEERPHIRERR ARG EEEZRR. WNEIREARKE
FREREAREE T LIEMRE, REABERBIRENENEE
METEEERC TR, ERREREASR.

1. Franchisee shall arrange for the design, construction or remodeling of
the Store. If this Store is the first Store to be operated by Franchisee,
Franchisor agree to provide reasonable assistance to Franchisee as
additionally requested by Franchisee during the construction or
remodeling of the Store at Franchisee’s cost. Unless requested by local
laws or real estate owner to change the design, the Store must be
constructed and equipped, at Franchisee’s sole cost, to Franchisor’s
then-current standards and specifications and in accordance with the
requirements and rules set forth by Franchisor in its design drawings
and three-dimensional models. At Franchisor’s written request,
Franchisee shall promptly correct any unapproved deviations from
Franchisor’s standards in the decoration of the Store. If Franchisee fails
to construct in accordance with the aforementioned requirements and
rules, Franchisor may demand Franchisee to modify or reconstruct the
Store at Franchisee’s own cost.

T NEUREARRRZEFEH, SIREANEBZREEAZ [E
FEHITERFRE] | BITARRET, BFREI—ERA,
FIREREABTEIUERER T LRAREREAZEHER
R, BIXEABBITTHREMBIFESFICEE. fFER, &%
BANBEFIGNEER)ZEER, HEEEABITRERER
T, #EEALEBUEREEAZTIEEENREIR, SIREAR
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REEA LA—1)EEER, SFEARRR: SEE. FHEE.
DEREIRRER, FEREARRET, BREABITHRE.

2. Franchisee shall refer to the principles of Renovation Guideline made
by Franchisor and be responsible for the design of the Store; provided,
however, that one month prior to the beginning of the construction,
Franchisee shall submit the design layouts to Franchisor for the review
to confirm whether it complies with Franchisor’s corporate image.
Franchisee shall by itself complete all review and approval procedures
required by local government authority. After Franchisor and
governmental authorities (as applicable) approve the design layouts,
Franchisee is responsible for constructing according to design draft and
shall use its due care in supervising and inspecting. Franchisee shall
provide Franchisor with all required information, including but not
limited to: design layouts, floor plan, 3D rendering, and photos showing
the current status of the store. If Franchisee requests Franchisor’s
assistance, Franchisor shall provide additional quote.

. BEXIEHERNAEI IR, SIREAREREATRE, 8%
G KBIRENBENLIEZERD, BHEREAZRIESE
ZEEXEMEITRRET, BEEMEERCEEELRLEMER, &
REANSRIZETEEEE, REREEABITRESZEBZ
e L.

3. Franchisee shall place purchase order to Franchisor for the stainless

steel workbenches of the Store. Franchisee shall mandate a qualified
local professional technician to design layouts of the Store for utility
and fire safety, and all the designs shall comply with relevant building
and fire safety regulations. After Franchisor conducts formality

inspection and issues approval, Franchisee shall mandate a legitimate
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and qualified contractor to complete the construction.

N, EXIEHSENEE, ARREABTARE, REEHREEN
FIZANELE, RIREAEEHKESREHIEER, KE.
HBT A TR, SRERIFRMRIZ RN, MEEIREGHEE.
CEMBAIEERE, ERBEARRBIRREAS, BURE
N BME AR R R AL e paE S1EsE.

4. Franchisee is responsible for the repair and maintenance of the Store.
To safeguard the personal safety of customers and employees,
Franchisee shall regularly inspect the Store as to the building, utilities,
fire safety, all equipment and machinery used, and preservation of raw
materials. In the event of discovery of damaged or outdated equipment
or machinery that needs to be repaired or replaced, or if upon
notification to Franchisee by Franchisor after discovery by Franchisor,
Franchisee shall immediately repair and post a warning sign at a

prominent place.

FE1D9(% FFrT#N AR 2 BX48 Article 14 Acquiring of License
WIRBEARESEXREHFTRE(ABUFAREETRE. Bk
Rl RENRBECEO RS, BEREABTAENSE,
BRI ABRES BE=0Q)ELFEASSIRAR. 5=
B AR BFEERMEREATFE., XEABSEEHGE
S MERHEIRE ARG REGET A BFR<< &M, iHREHR
RWIREAGTE,

Franchisee is responsible for obtaining any government license or
permit, registration, and import permit for raw materials, equipment,

and machinery that are required for the operation of the Store.
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Franchisee shall also submit to Franchisor for reference copies and
electronic files of various license, permit, or registration no later than
three (3) business days after the acquiring thereof. Franchisor agrees to
use its reasonable efforts to assist in providing Franchisee with
necessary information for Franchisee to obtain the license or permits.

All related fees and expenses shall be borne by Franchisee.

F1+F & EEETE Article 15 Operation and Management

—. WIREARKEEEEEIEHE, BETARZNZ G RISEA
ARt FATIEE N M EH RN E.

1. When operating and managing the Store, Franchisee shall comply with
the content of Appendices of this Agreement and technical guidance
and education and training provided by Franchisor.

Z. REARBFRKEZIHEXRNAEDHRE. ErmnRFENzE
B, BERESEGEZSHENENAZAME RS, BRUE
EERIMBIREA.

2. Franchisor reserves the right to reasonably update and amend the
exhibits and appendices of this Agreement as dictated by business
operation, market requirement, and the need to increase brand
awareness and competitiveness; provided, however, Franchisor shall
notify Franchisee such change in writing.

=, REFEASFHSHREEN, HREAREREHARNMEESE
HhEZR, Su§EXEHEEN—aioisHabA.

3. Unless with prior written approval from Franchisor, Franchisee shall
not engage in other business in the Store, or sublet a portion of the Store

to others.
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F1T7N& BEEESEEE Article 16 Advertisement Review

—. UIHRFEADRSBYERER. EE FERER,. (HERETE
BRIEES, SHIREAHREHEHE, SIREARBR—Q)
[ER RIS ESESRHFEC N BREREATSE LT, BER
ISR FEC AR REE L RERE, 181517,

1. If Franchisee thinks it is necessary to publish or transmit
advertisements on TV, broadcast, internet, and social media, or if
Franchisee desires to conduct promotional activities, Franchisee shall
submit the content of advertisements or promotional activities to
Franchisor one (1) month before the publication or transmission of
advertisements or before such promotional activities to be taken place
for approval. In no event shall the advertisement and/or promotional
activities be conducted without the consent by both Parties.

Z. BIREAZITEANSHETREARMLE [mhEn R
BHFM] REETEHINNE. BMRETRE, RETTHRCASTE
S—)ERRIGIATREREATE, REARSKRSTAT
BIAAIHIT. MFREARERET, REAGSITHRE.

2. The Franchisee’s advertisement’s wording, packaging, and design
shall be in compliance with the scope as set forth in the Brand Identity
System and Design Specification Manual. The Franchisee shall submit
final product and content to Franchisor one (1) month before the
publication or transmission of advertisements or before such
promotional activities to be taken place for approval. If the Franchisee
requests Franchisor’s assistance, Franchisor shall provide additional

quote.
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=, UIRERBEARKEI ZIEREREESEHCHEE), SREAR
HIENARANEER, REABOREEAKRERAIERNEE,

3. If Franchisee fails to submit advertisements or promotional activities
under the preceding two paragraphs and does not cure after
Franchisor’s request within a specified time limit by Franchisor,
Franchisor may claim against Franchisee for costs and damages.

b, FEAELREITHES, (EREAGERSRERIIREDE
REEMZITIHES, BERFREEAZIRE (BaHURE
A) . REAREBRSERLTIHES, RIEREAZRREA
BHNEXEHAEREE, tEENESREEGZITiET S
¥} TPTEA R BFm. EREARMITIEHESE, NEE
(BEBIREAN) BRBRKRIESZIERNEZHI, BUSEAS
TEhlz EXIEREBREREE, THESRIUE, BXIEEA
FELLhIZ EXEREBREREE, tHRESLIEEZRE. 17
HENESITIHESERAZARESR TPTEA RRZINERE,
REABRLAREINETESZESUMSIRIEAZESECR,
EREAGERSRRENEZEER, REAWESRBHRIZEA
XOEEZEM, BIIRRBEASFRIGRILIEEZER, TME
BRIFEREIREA R TIHE S EEEIKILAIZ BT m. B
BAEK, REASRHEEZZITHEESKRNARSIHERR.
RIEHGTEINE— St FEEZER.

4. Franchisor does not currently have a marketing fund, though
Franchisor reserve the right to establish and administer such marketing
fund in the future on a regional or national basis and which will be
contributed into only by Franchisor’s franchisees (which the
Franchisee is included). Franchisor does not anticipate enacting the

marketing fund during this calendar year, unless Franchisor determines
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that a sufficient number of Stores are opened and operating so that
regional or national advertising provides a benefit to the TPTEA
System. However, when Franchisor does establish the marketing fund,
those franchisees(which the Franchisee is included) shall contribute to
the marketing fund a specified percentage of the monthly gross
revenue of the Store to be paid in the same manner as the royalty
payments. When and if established, the amount to be paid to the
marketing fund is a percentage of monthly gross revenue agreed upon
by the Parties in writing. Neither the marketing fund nor any funds for
advertising and marketing will be used for advertisement that is
principally a solicitation for the sale of franchises for TPTEA System.
Franchisor does not currently have a franchisee advertising council
that advises Franchisor on advertising policies, though Franchisor
reserves the right to establish such a council in the future. Franchisor
Is not obligated to make expenditures for Franchisee that are equivalent
or proportionate to Franchisee’s contributions to the marketing fund,
nor shall Franchisor be obligated to ensure that Franchisee benefit
directly or on a pro rata basis from the marketing fund’s activities.
Upon Franchisee’s request, Franchisor will provide Franchisee with an
audited statement of receipts and disbursements for the marketing fund
that is audited by an independent, certified public accountant, for each

fiscal year of the marketing fund.

HE+HiR BEIRRZ B Article 17 Audit of Operation Status
—. REAGEBIHIREAZRZ (BBHNEZABZHE)  RIE
HEEBEN, HESXEHEERE. REEE. BRZ

56
1619451768.1



mEREE. FRIBZRE. ABLIERRENSEEE R,
WSLAEER. wba. AREEREFEE, REATMSHERTE K
REARHEXERAZEGEERR, HIREAEER, W
REANDRBREAEE, GHERBIREARMKEERRZAD
R GEiRR. IREARMBEAZKNEZEE, FLK
1E.

1. After notifying Franchisee (including of the inspector’s name),
Franchisor shall be entitled to, during normal business hours, inspect
the Store’ hardware, environment and sanitation, quality and
sanitation of commaodities, preservation of raw materials, performance
of employees, and status of operation and management, and to take
samples, conduct examination, take photos or videos for records. In
addition, Franchisor may at any time request Franchisee to provide
instant images or photos of the Store for Franchisor’s inspection. If
Franchisor believes the photos are insufficient, it may request
Franchisee to provide instant images or photos showing a designated
area of the Store. Franchisee shall make any correction as requested
by Franchisor to make such correction.

. REASBNREEAR (BEBNEZABZHS)  RE
FEXRFENEZ, ERNENSFEXEHSERRIERE
#, BREERRREEE. EXREF, BREEARBIRKER
BIRUREABREZ &M,

2. After notifying Franchisee (including of the inspector’s name),
Franchisor shall be entitled to audit, inspect and make copies of
relevant data related to the operation of each Franchise Store during
normal business hours, including but not limited to sales and revenue;

Franchisee shall timely and completely provide all information as
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needed by Franchisor.

. BIZIERE, #IREAUNKKREARK, BiEkABREES
WigitimE), REAFRREZABEBRIIGRERS DEHT
WIRENZE S D, BENMEERIREAZ ESEERINE,

3. Under the circumstances prescribed in the preceding two Paragraphs,

Franchisee, if requested by Franchisor, shall dispatch personnel to be
present to accompany and assist in the audits. The auditor sent from
Franchisor shall provide identification documentation to Franchisee
for verification of identity upon arrival on-site. The auditor shall not
obstruct business operation of Franchisee.

MU, REEREASHEERER I EGER, REATMERBAIRE
BAE, maEliaREEEEREEE L EEE .

4. During Franchisee’s preparation of setting up the Store, Franchisor
may also inspect the status of decoration or refurbishment of the Store
and take photos after notifying Franchisee.

f. WIREABRMEZEA() A SRS SRR, (i)
AT EHENEREREEER ZSHEERZSZIEFIR
BB, Re(iii) DiR() R BEREERZEAN., TREA
BARERERIRHERRIL .

5. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor (i) copies of any customer
complaints relating to the Store; (ii) copies of any communications
from public authorities about actual or potential violations of laws or
regulations relating to the operation or occupancy of the Store; and (iii)
copies of the handling results of (i) and (ii) as stated above. Franchisor
will specify from time to time the manner of submission of this

information to Franchisor.
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FH/\F HIEEEERZEM

Avrticle 18 Provision of Market and Operation Information

—. WIREAEBRSEREAAESER, RUEREAREXRZHED
WwER (BFEERRR: REREZBRERENS) . &Y
B ®REEF, EREARETSGRESmmEBEZIABTREE.

1. Franchisee shall provide market analysis data (including but not
limited to information related to competitors’ merchandise),
information on raw material and equipment, requested by Franchisor
so that Franchisor may respond to the market and adjust the content
and prices of Merchandises.

. BRRAARBXRKEZFXRGRAFEHIBENL, FEENEERMm
Bc7s. sRECLLR. B%F, UEHREALEESREmEZ—
ik, WIREABPURESEEETREAZREZIER. W
REANGEEETEEmmRAENIN. thl. &h. 8%F
NENREE, I, EFREREFRE, NEXIEHRE,
FFANR L Fm, REREVBREASERSHREEMLE

& EEE‘EIHIE

2. Franchisor may adjust the formula, recipe, or packaging in order to
meet the needs of the business operation or in response to changes
in the market to maintain consistency of Franchisor’s corporate
identity and quality. Franchisee warrants and represent that it shall
strictly comply with Franchisor’s instruction in the amendment.
Franchisee may not unilaterally change the method of preparing the
products, formula, recipe, packaging, marketing content, and pricing.
Furthermore, both Parties agree to maintain quality, within six (6)
months following the opening of the Store, there shall be no new

menu items; during the term of the franchise, Franchisor has the total
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control over the menu item renewal schedule and item selection.
=, RFFEmZAE. 2. w2mE, sREEYHERLIEE R
ELBIEEEE, SEMRRERREBEMASKREAERIEIE, H
HEEITEERBBRREEAGE,
3. All cost incurred from the development, training, quality confirmation
of new product, or recipe adjustment due to the change of raw
materials, or any matter regarding product quality subject to the

confirmation by Franchisor, shall be borne by Franchisee.

FH115 BEEHELR Article 19 Computer Connections

—. BIRBEARREERRLZ POS(Point of sales) RAEEHE iR
(Cloud-based) &4, 45 1% ABI& (Front End) &2 1% & (Back
End) S EEERLUTERZE. SHREABREREHZE
BREXRFEN, MBNEEETFREAN, TEEEREAR
SREEREENIBE. AIaIERZ3zZ &R (transaction)
FERRAZ 7SRk E, BPZl(real-time) LEEEES, REERZRS
H (business day)i&4TB4EIRRT, STRE BRI LEIEE.

1. Franchisee shall use and provide the Cloud-based access to its Point
of Sales system (the “POS”) to Franchisor and grant Franchisor the
highest level of administrator access to both Front End and Back End
of the POS, to enable Franchisor to perform its audit right. Franchisee
shall timely transfer actual sales data of the Store to Franchisor. In no
event shall Franchisee make Franchisor misled by the POS
information nor shall Franchisee hide any sales data from Franchisor.
The transaction data from Front End of the POS shall be transmitted
in real-time to Back End of the POS right after the completion of the
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transaction; all transmission of sales data shall be uploaded no later
than the account closing of such business day.

. WIRBEANFRHRRIYEEIRETEH, BREEHITAIZN(G)
(&R SXHZEA.

2. If Franchisee needs to customize the POS, it shall give notice to

Franchisor six (6) months prior to the anticipated implementation date.

=. WIREAERBAREIER POS RFECRIER/IERE[ER, Iife
EBREAEBTOCEERT R, KISESIUNEFRIPHEER
BEREISET W (server), FIREERBHRIZEARIE.

3. Franchisee shall proactively maintain the POS to ensure that its Front
and Back End are in functional operation, and in conjunction with the
construction requirements of Franchisor’s data center, transfer
required details or summary data to specific server in a specific format,

and Franchisee shall be responsible for the related cost and expense.

B HF BMRGEREIELL
Avrticle 20 Prohibition of TPTEA Trademarks Free-Riding

[REREASREARSEI, WEREARNEREHIRIUEEE
BRI BREARRREASHISERERR—F%. £EEE
BEEZI1THR, BEERRR: & E@ﬁ ErREAZRZER

EELGHBIREAZSRE . FE. FERESLE, W
Tﬁﬂ‘%kﬁﬂﬂ%AZﬁ’fﬁ%ﬁEﬁ%&uJZi—a wsiﬁ ETEN = A e
Unless with Franchisor’s prior written consent, Franchisee shall not act
in any way that may mislead customers into believing that Franchisor
and Franchisee or any other business entities belong to the same
enterprise or group, or are affiliated companies, including but not

limited to: annotating the trademark, identifiable languages, symbols,
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slogans, images or melody of Franchisee or others on any TPTEA
Trademarks or documents, webpage, or audio/video advertisement that

are sufficient to be identified as the symbol of Franchisor.

BIUERERTS
Chapter 4 Confidentiality
BT+ (RZFFS Article 21 Confidentiality

—. RAZGOHENRN, SHREASEREEASAOEMBEECS
BRAEERNS. HEIIRFMAST. EXWE. RWTEEREK
(know-how), R¥IHIRERIGHEMEZE. SEEENH. ™
iBHEETEl. BRAE. FEMTE. ERRARETE. BE,
NEMM—REEH LARRREEARNBANZEN, UNRE
FIEZEXBRFUR. SarEM (LTS [HEER] ) | 8§
EREBAZTERERE R, SEERRK: RENREEE
e LARRBIE I AR ERS EVEZ B THZMEAZEE LHE
. AMEBERBGEEAEAA. EZA. 8BIBINZAERE. B
BT ZMEABIREREEEAZOBEE ZRE R, WKIRE
AZBETHZEARKZENREE, BIREARBREZE T
AEASREARETREZE.

1. During the Term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall exercise duty of
care of a good administrator to prevent the disclosure of information
provided by Franchisor either in writing or orally, including all
technical guidance, education and training manuals, trade secrets,
techniques or know-hows, lists of supplier of raw materials and
equipment, knowledge for operation and management, market

promotion plan, expansion plan, new market for products, product
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costs or property, customers, any other information that would be
normally and objectively considered as confidential, as well as
financial or accounting information of the Store such as revenue
(hereinafter referred to as “Confidential Information”). Franchisee
shall adopt protective measures, including but not limited to: adopting
segregation measures to prevent access by any person, employee, or
mandatary who are not required to know the aforementioned
information when performing his job duties, preventing disclosure to
any other natural person, juridical person, partnership, or offshore
juridical person, as well as signing a non-disclosure agreement with
the employee or mandatary requiring the same degree of
confidentiality as provided under this Agreement. In the event that
Franchisee’s employee or mandatary discloses Confidential
Information, Franchisee and its employee or mandatary shall be jointly

and severally liable for any and all damages suffered or incurred by

Franchisor.
. AENHERE ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁw—ﬁn\té IR A BB ERIE kM
fr. HEMWEEN, FEECHFMBARBHAZERIEE.

BBH. BT, wx SERAETERA. FA. AB
BONEABER, MRBEAERABOETIES ASRIBEA
I AEEMNEARE, RIEMABSEE AR

BHEES2IEETT(US$300,000) 0K B (EISE AR 18
=

[ =N}

2. Franchisee shall automatically return, delete or destroy the
Confidential Information upon the expiration, or either Party’s
termination of this Agreement. Franchisee shall not personally or ask

others to keep any of the copied files, photographs, photocopies, or
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transcriptions; nor shall Franchisee disclose the aforementioned
information to any other natural person, juridical person, partnership,
or offshore juridical person. If Franchisee breaches this provision so
that a third party steals, becomes aware of, or has access to
Confidential Information, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor in the
amount of Three Hundred Thousand United States Dollars
(US$300,000) as punitive damage, and Franchisee shall be responsible
for any and all damages suffered or incurred by Franchisor.

=, REASRBUREAZESRE. A, &R, BEREZE,

3. Franchisor shall keep Franchisee’s revenue, costs, and expenses
confidential.

b, —AKERZFENEBIEBUGHE. BlAHERmOmiBE
WEEM. HZ2EXMNERAZNOZATE, BREUE
EEANMhTT, LAGEthTT8E M BRHRENE fEfEhE.

4. If either Party is required by law or by government agency or judicial
body to disclose the Confidential Information, trade secrets of the
other Party, or the content of this Agreement, the disclosing Party shall
notify the other Party in writing so that the other Party may timely take
responsive measures.

h. BFERARYZEHEE. NS, RIFRRESRE. F51+H—%
ATERERBRAZNPEERENE—TTELERE, EEF3.

5. Both Parties shall keep the execution, content, and terms and
conditions of this Agreement confidential. The confidentiality
obligation under this Article 21 shall survive after the expiration, or

either Party’s termination of this Agreement.
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BhERERIE
Chapter 5 Anti-Competition
FET+ & FREEZELE Article 22 Anti-Competition

WAL R, SIREAEZ 7 EEE IR EEN,
M8 SR M B AVER IR A MR SRR I IR R E UL
RS, SIREABREHMTETES TPTEA RARHVEF]. EL
WIREARRIA TR LGS

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee receives valuable
training and Confidential Information that Franchisee otherwise would
not receive or have access to but for the rights licensed to Franchisee
under this Agreement, and meanwhile Franchisee have received the
right to operate a TPTEA system. Franchisee therefore agrees to the
following noncompetition covenants:

—. BRELRELEN, [HWIREA] BERER. KRR, REA.
KA. 55, 58 A IEERNEEEAGEEZARA
BN KREKRE. REABEXRFREANETEAENR LXA
BRE—MHEERLRER, FPiIEEIREARS, A5Y
IR NMFFMARIBRREELEATRE,

1. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, the term “Franchisee” as used
In this Article includes, collectively and individually, all spouses and
family members of any shareholders, members, principal owners,
guarantors, officers, directors, managers, partners, as the case may be,
and holders of any ownership interest in Franchisee. Franchisor may
require Franchisee to obtain from Franchisee’s manager and other
individuals identified in the preceding sentence a signed non-compete

agreement in a form satisfactory to Franchisor that contains the non-
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compete provisions of this Acrticle.

Z. IREARBEAZGHEERERILEZQ)FN, HHES
EERHHISIREANFNTEZQ)FA (FELRLREESM) |
FEEEEEEERNESSHEE = ARBIREA TSR
REAMUMEAKSE. SEREHTAKLS. S, BB, &
8. ZME. RUHERHEE. KFEEEASIERNHRFS
X (MLUTER)  BRIEREARZAsEMIRE ARBIREA
Za) NERAIFARETZA. DMEATEZ [HFSEE] 2isEMEiH
EEEMEFEEREEGEARRZ EFXMETD 2T (50%)LA £
==

2. Franchisee agrees that Franchisee will not, during the term of this
Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after the expiration or
termination of this Agreement, regardless of the cause of termination,
or within two (2) years of the sale of the Store or any of Franchisee’s
interest, Franchisee will not in the Territory, either directly or
indirectly, for Franchisee’s self, or through, on behalf of, or in
conjunction with any person or entity, own, manage, operate, maintain,
engage in, consult with or have any interest in any Competitive
Business (as defined below) other than one authorized by this
Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee.
For purposes of this Article, a “Competitive Business” includes any
business where 50% or more of its sales include the sale of gourmet
coffees and teas, coffee or tea-based beverages, bubble tea.

. WIREARRARRYUMOUENZIRIE, ERIZEABENE

IR AR PITIERERN SRS EEIF LT E. ELRER
R EINEGERHS A A E AR E R GERTFR,

3. Franchisee agree that the length of time in this Article will be tolled
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for any period during which Franchisee is in breach of the covenants

or any other period during which Franchisor seek to enforce this

Agreement. The Parties agree that each of the foregoing covenants will

be construed as independent of any other covenant or provision of this

Agreement.

SHINEIELIRER
Chapter 6 Breach of the Agreement

FTH=1R  #IERERERIEER Article 23 Termination and Rescission
—. AR EIEEme HEEARIE,

1. This Agreement shall be terminated automatically on the day of

expiration.
Z. RELOEEREARKREASHRERL.

2. This Agreement may be terminated upon the written consents of

Franchisor and Franchisee.
=. REHOE B2 —IFE&ILEZ:

3. This Agreement may be terminated in the event of any one of the

following:

(—) WIREABER. 8. B, 858, BHEMN. EEK

(1)

1619451768.1

E. REFEEEE. BtASH. o8l BEETESEE
EHERREAZFENERHMNEE. SMiREAZRR
EHIESEEE, REASENBSREARLERIZG,

In the event that Franchisee ceases operation, closes business,
applies for dissolution or liquidation, becomes insolvent, declares
bankruptcy, conducts investment structure reorganization,

merges with another entity, divides into separate entities,

67



(=)

transfers main businesses, transfers all or an important part of
assets of Franchisee, or variation in the control rights of
shareholder of Franchisee, Franchisor may terminate this

Agreement by giving notice to Franchisee.

WIREANERALZNE= Gz —. BOUFR. ERNFE B
. B/I\F. ERFHEFE=IE. FT+IHFFE=IE. EM
IEN/EERIEA. ERET=ZIFEEEABRLCHIEXRES.
EREBTNIFZREHBEREREARGESREE. E
& Z+—IFE B EEREAENMEHREABERZE
. BZEMNRAEE, BEXEYN, REABBNW
RN IEARERL,

(2) In the event of Franchisee’s breach of Article 3-1, Article 4,

(=)

3)

1619451768.1

Article 6, Article 7, Article 8 of this Agreement, Paragraph 3 of
Avrticle 10 or Paragraphs 3, 4 and/or 5 of Article 12, breach of
Article 13 causing death or serious personal injury, breach of
Article 19 or concealment or inducement of Franchisor to
mistakenly believe the revenue, breach of Article 21 or other
breaches of the Agreement by Franchisee causing Franchisor to
be subject to investigation conducted by government authority or
judicial agency, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement by
giving notice to Franchisee.
WIRBEAERDZYOE—NENEHBAET, SREALU
SHBEAHEIREALNE, BEIREANEENZE=1(30)H
NARTFEER, REASBEARREARIEARSLY,

In the event of breach or non-performance of any of the provision

of this Agreement and Franchisee’s failure to correct the breach
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and do not cure the default within thirty (30) days from the date

Franchisee received Franchisor’s written notice to cure,

Franchisor may terminate this Agreement by giving notice to
Franchisee.

() #REABBFREEN(FHEEERMEIE)XERTE=

QVXE, REASERBIZEARLARIL,

(4) If Franchisee breaches any provision of this Agreement

(regardless of whether such breach is remedied or not) for a total

of three (3) times during a calendar year, Franchisor may

terminate this Agreement by giving notice to Franchisee.

(fr) MRFEAN (BREIAMBAT) EEIREA (B
HIEOMBAE) ZMEAIINERIZOSHRILE, FEATLL
BERRHZTE AR LEARINERZZAE,

(5) If any other Franchise Agreement between Franchisor (or any of
its affiliate) and Franchisee (or any of its affiliates) is terminated,
Franchisor may terminate this Agreement by giving notice to
Franchisee.

M. #REABRE=IER(OMZBEZ—E, BEAGERER
BAGHREMENSXE TR EIT(US$100,000) R imKESERE
BARLATR 2 HAEER/RANZH L EANE. RSB,

4. In the event of breach by Franchisee as stipulated in Subparagraph (2)
of the preceding Paragraph 3, Franchisor may claim against
Franchisee for punitive damages in the amount of One Hundred
Thousand United States Dollars (US$100,000) as well as any damages,

losses, attorney fees, and litigation expenses incurred by Franchisor.

f. WIREABSSZIERCO)MLVINZIENRR, EREASH (8
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BFEMG) IREINEMANEE, REAGBREGRENGN
RBEIENE, BXREESRMATIT(USSI5,0005t (F—3F
HBIRRRR) KBEKRBERBEARLMZZHTEZEARN
XHZEANE. SRELER,

5. If Franchisee breaches any provision of this Agreement other than
Subparagraph (2) of Paragraph 3 and fails to correct within the time
specified by Franchisor in writing (including via e-mail), Franchisor
may each time claim against Franchisee for punitive damages in the
amount of Fifteen Thousand United States Dollars (US$15,000)
(Punitive damages may be accumulated for the same breach for each
time the breach has failed to be corrected) as well as any damages,
losses, attorney fees, and litigation expenses incurred by Franchisor.

7N WETHEIE: O)EITHRERWEREASHERESEEARE,
B QREWBEABRER. EHEAETEREAMESAET,
HAZLLIRAIAR LR, REABRKAEZOE ) IR BLIRE
Sl KEBEREARLAZ ZHHEFBRN X HZ2EME.
sREAEEF.

6. Franchisor may confiscate Security Deposit as stated in Article 8
herein and request all litigation costs and attorney fees incurred as well
as all damages arising therefrom due to (1) the event that the
Franchisee is responsible for and without Franchisor’s consent; or (2)
the Franchisee’s breach or failure of performance in payment after
Franchisor’s previous notification for correction and result in the
termination of this Agreement before the expiration date.

t. FTERRESEREEARRZE LS EREEES AUFTAER
SARDLE MR IEITE, BEEH.

7. The expiration or termination of this Agreement will not affect any
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provision of this Agreement that expressly or by implication is
intended to come into or continue in force on or after termination or
expiry of this Agreement, and will remain in full force and effect.

I\, BREHZEIEEmATEE S ML SERICEENTE
ﬁi‘azﬂaﬁﬂ‘mﬁzm , BREEARZNE RS LLRIEEER
BN ES RS

8. Termination or expiration of this Agreement will not affect any rights,
remedies, obligations or liabilities of the Parties that have accrued up
to the date of termination or expiration, including the right to claim
liquidated damages in respect of any breach of the Agreement which
existed at or before the date of termination or expiration.

L. %)3'2&4‘%)\1@(‘ #&IERE=(30)H Wﬁﬁ%}?ﬂﬁ@ W Z—1)

B, SREERRREM—IIHENRER. REHENS.
TE%E\E‘E ik, REEERE, LUINBIABERRBREER,

9. Franchisee shall be liable to pay within thirty (30) days of the
termination date all payments subject to this Agreement, including, but
not limited to, any and all education training expenses, punitive
damage, compensation, fines, travel fees of consultants and assisting
personnel and examination fees.

. RAZORIEE, REAZRERENRY. BRIFFE0EE
B, ERRXZEHE, HEMEENESEEZIEIE, WiRE
NEAK 7R EHEE :

10.Upon the termination of this Agreement, all rights authorized by
Franchisor shall cease to be effective. Unless otherwise agreed in this
Agreement, with regard to the TPTEA Trademarks and another
matters relevant to Franchise Business, Franchisee shall act, in

accordance with the following provisions:
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(1)

(=)

(2)

(=)

1619451768.1

WIREAEBEFLERRSEREUNENBEEXZEEE
TRAETS. HREANSEESAEAREBEIREAR
RipGMBEXZRELRERE, TAEEENEEAL
HEREEEARRSESINREZETARER. REAR
FHISREAZ —IRERIII SRR,

Franchisee shall cease the usage of TPTEA Trademarks, and any
marks and logos related to Franchise Business. Franchisee shall
not declare to the public directly or indirectly that Franchisee is
incumbent or former member of TPTEA’s Franchise Business or
that there is any relationship between Franchisee and TPTEA’s
Franchise Business or Franchisor. All rights granted by

Franchisor to Franchisee shall cease to be effective.

WIS A AL IR —1-(20) HNIRIZFFEEENEESE
A, UNRBEREARRNER, SEERRRFAIEF
fit. SeERERH SRR, LAREERIAR, AR, #ERE,

Franchisee shall return all materials or information which are
related to the Franchise Business and are provided by Franchisor
including, but not limited to all manuals, visual discs and
education and training materials and their counterparts, copies
and duplicates within twenty (20) days upon termination of this

Agreement.

BARZLIRIEE T BN, HIREARESXEEHEZRA
EREASMEBMRE. FAD. B, BE. Hm. BRTRE. &
R, ikeT. EXEH. MEMH DRESEREEREME
EEINBRERZEREER, WIAEESIUINLAEER, MR
HIREANBERRR S 2R EMERINEE R TR
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+=.

3)

HAES, BREABEITETLE=ETRR, MmERAR
ARIERH TIEN—E RIS ERREEASE.

Within seven (7) days upon the termination of this Agreement,
Franchisee and the Store shall remove all TPTEA Trademarks
and marks and logos related to Franchise Business from internal
and external adornment, decorations, furniture, invoices, samples,
models, layout, design and other materials in its Store and
destroy them in an appropriate manner. In the event that
Franchisee overdue to dismantle TPTEA Trademarks or marks
or logos related to Franchise Business, Franchisor shall be
entitled to remove by itself or its authorized third party and all
expenses incurred from or related to such removal shall be borne

by Franchisee.

RAZRLIER IR, WIREASEIBER = ASERRETRER
SR —EEET, RIREABBE AL IEFRERZIAS
FrEREXERTERM —IEMNHER, BEERRRE
FIEiHE TaEEERIEN, RHGEIREA.

11.Upon the termination of this Agreement, in the event that Franchisor

or its designated third party is going to continue the operations of

the Store in the Territory, Franchisee shall immediately after the

termination of this Agreement, provide all information or files

related to the operations of the Store, including but not limited to

information of Store’s employee and customers information to

Franchisor.
IRARZREIAR LR, REAGEATIREANREESEEHEETE
%, HISEANBESEEHENNSEZEREATSESE

1619451768.1
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FFEAUSEENBAERREA R EREALL.
12.Upon the termination of this Agreement, Franchisor shall be entitled
to conduct an inspection on the Franchisee and its Store and
Franchisee and its Store shall cooperate fully with Franchisor for
such inspection until Franchisor has notified Franchisee of the

completion of the inspection in written form.
=AY
Chapter 7 Miscellaneous
BT IUR ERE N EEEIRX
Article 24 Choice of Law and Jurisdiction
RENZ RN AR E 5 2 ERRENRHBRIERIES
KPERE (2E) JFE

1. This Agreement and any of the Parties’ rights and obligations not
stipulated in this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the Republic of China (Taiwan).

Z. EEHARGmITEZ A, BRUSEKZESLAGER
% AEKREERERE, REHEEEFHG ERAEEE—F
5k, RITFRARR, BRERUEEZEEEGEHIRINS
&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ TR,

2. The Parties shall use best efforts solve any dispute arising out of or in
relation to this Agreement in good faith through negotiation between
the Parties. If the Parties fail to resolve the dispute, both Parties agree
to refer the dispute to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Taiwan
Taichung District Court and agree that final judgments issued by
Taiwan courts as to relevant areas of laws is the basis of compulsory

execution.
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=. ANz, BYAEHWEBRFZIAFEN, M. BXHA
eEERE, LI RE,

3. This Agreement is to be executed in both English and Chinese
language, both of which are with the same legal validity. In case of
any discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions, the

Chinese version shall prevail.

ET+AE&  BENHEE Article 25 Notice

ATABEMER ARG HttE R BT E R Z WS LARARFIER
ROEABNIIXE: @QWARE, REEER, O)WMUEF
Lz, RUE ?ﬂ#TH%HTEEﬁWWUZE,mm
NMARGEEZRAREZ BERERGSE, REXEENS
—ET{ER, S(d)IMLTRAGEE 2 ASREMFFIE, LAMERIE!
Z B FHFRENEAC)ELEHUSNRERSE). BREHZEZ
N B F B IR A RO R ETR, — KB EEXE
UEVEFENMY, RESEER S AERI.

All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be deemed duly given and delivered (a) on the date of
delivery if sent personally, (b) if by e-mail, on the date upon written
confirmation of receipt by e-mail or otherwise, (c) on the first business
day following the date of dispatch if sent utilizing a next-day service
by a reputable next-day courier or (d) on the earlier of confirmed
receipt or the fifth (5th) Business Day following the date of mailing if
sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid. The address and
email for such notices and communications shall be as set forth on the

signature pages attached hereto. Any change in notice address or email
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shall have no effect without duly giving a written notice to the other

Party.

B_NME L ZIEIE Article 26 Amendment
AENETRBAKE AR SHIREEHE, BREAS
RBEEKEZHFXRKEEHIBEL. BFrmERFENZER,
RIEESEZHENEERZLOZMEFANS.

This Agreement may only be modified by the Parties in writing,
provided, however, that Franchisor reserves the right to reasonably
update and amend the exhibits and appendices of this Agreement as
dictated by business operation, market requirement, and the need to

increase brand awareness and competitiveness.

FT % ZLMDEN Article 27 Copies
RELO— "5, ERHZH—D,
This Agreement shall be executed in two counterparts, each of which

Is kept by each Party.

F_1/)\&  EFHE Article 28 Waiver
— T IER 2GR BREUERIE BBz IR N &5
TEIENSH,
The waiver by either Party of a breach of any provision of this
Agreement applies only to that one breach and only to that one

provision.
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FTHE&  EF3E Article 29 Conflict
NREHYRE AR ZOZ HAIFRER EREEERAIEREN
BERIRFASEER, HRMFKEBNHELBRRA, BHE

“AIEEEESERZIFRANRE RIFAR IO —8R M.
If, for any reason, any provision of this Agreement is determined by
competent court to be invalid or to conflict with applicable laws, then
the remaining provisions will continue to bind the Parties and the
invalid or conflicting provision will be deemed not to be a part of this

Agreement.

FE=HE R Article 30 Remedies
ISTENZERN KRB BfE,

Franchisee’s rights and remedies are cumulative.

B=1—f 5SEEZLA Article 31 Entirety
RO g T 2 XA B EN A RZNTRIRTEMENER,
WESCRIFR BRI,
This Agreement and the documents referred to herein will be the entire,
full and complete agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor
concerning the subject matter of this Agreement, which supersedes all

prior agreements.

F=1+T{% MBI Article 32 Independent Entity
REARWSEASREEIICEE. PIREAEERESRER
REANBHIMERITE, BEABAHBIREANESEIBEZ(E
BEAMER. ERBHMBFAE, IREAEBIREAZEE

7
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REHAR. BEIREAREEIBR A FREAMER. SERHE
HhRHMXEEE, WREABREREANEBEE N LS
IBpASER, BEEARREENEME, SREATEASE
R ERTRE, WHREXEEEGRIHEIREANBIIAEERRE
NEEFZXRTIBES . REANMREREARRA 2L LUEE]
—EZ EWEFIE. MNRFEARMRRIE. ADFTER
B EMMEEHRIREAN, REANMREZER 2 TEM, ERM
NEREREMER., RRALRZPHEIREATAKEESHIHE
BRI AR LGB SRR, WA RAIREREEREA
WA AR B PR HIRYZ BB RE B R TEE B IR R E S
FIEFHRIRT AR —ENTI. LU TEBNARBIREAZRER
B RERSERANIBERZEREZARLN,

Franchisor and Franchisee are independent entities. Franchisee is not
entitled to conduct any legal act on behalf of Franchisor, and
Franchisor is not liable for any intentional or negligent act or omission,
duties or liabilities of Franchisee. If Franchisor is damaged due to any
unauthorized act, intentional or negligent act or omission of
Franchisee, Franchise shall defend and hold Franchisor harmless, and
be responsible for any damages, cost or expenses suffered or incurred
by Franchisor, which including but not limited to reasonable attorney
fee. Franchisee’s success in this business is speculative and depends,
to an important extent, upon Franchisee’s ability as an independent
business owner. Franchisor does not represent or warrant that
locations Franchisor approves will achieve a certain level of sales or
be profitable. If Franchisor provides maps, demographics or other
information to Franchisee in connection with the Site, Franchisor does

so without any representation or warranty that the information is
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complete, accurate or current. Franchisor does not represent that
Franchisee will be able to find or secure appropriate location or that
Franchisee will be able to develop the Store. Franchisee further
acknowledge and understand that Franchisor make no representation,
promise, warranty, or guarantee, express or limed, that the Store
operates at the approved Site will be profitable or otherwise successful.
By Franchisee’s signature below, Franchisee acknowledge that
Franchisee have entered into this Agreement after making an

independent investigation of the TPTEA System and the Site.

F=1=1& Ar[H154 Article 33 Force Majeure

A AOSHHRIEERER L. (EEEE IER A BT AT
A—3PipzEH, HugeEEL. 1. B&EMHp. RARKE.
RZRFE. FEND. FRUBHEZRIISENSERR, SEBA
e, LEENEL. KKEHEMENR, sEMREAREESRY
EHE. IBATRAE M, REANRBEETAZONAE
TR EE.

An event of Force Majeure will mean an event where Franchisor is
unable to perform any portion this Agreement by any prevention,
delay, or stoppage caused by strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, acts of
God, inability to obtain services, labor, or materials or reasonable
substitutes for those items, government actions, civil commotions, fire
or other casualty, or other causes beyond Franchisor’s reasonable
control. During any event of Force Majeure, Franchisor is not liable

for delay of performance or non-performance hereunder.
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F=1TIF EFREMNAERNENEERER Article 34 No

Waiver or Disclaimer of Reliance in Certain States

LATREEERARINM,. BN, FERFEMN. DB,
AN, ZFRMN. BHEENEM. BN, JLERMbIMN, &
BEM. FEERMMN. 5B, EREM. SEETREMN:
The following provision applies only to franchisees and franchises that
are subject to state franchise registration/disclosure laws in California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York,
North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, or
Wisconsin:

WIREA R E A SRR SRR R A,
B MEEERSIIAEBLUT: () BERETERRME
ISR FIEIREE, SEFSPRIEEH TR, i) EiRE
A HIETFEEEB D SRREEATSEIETEARTER
FABRIAREHRRE. MEEE ST E BRIV
AYERTEAEIRER.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to
by Franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or
(i) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by Franchisor, any
franchise seller, or any other person acting on behalf of
Franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any

document executed in connection with the franchise.

80
1619451768.1



ELYERMIZONE, WEEREZFORRARTIESR.

In Witness Whereof, the Parties have been given full understanding as to the
extent of the Agreement and do so by acknowledging with due signature and
endorsement by authorized signatories from the parties as provided below.

FZHE AJFranchisor: TPTEA USA INC.
EE24mEE/Unified Business Number: 32-0561838
ETE(CIE A/Authorized Representative: ZIZ#B/Yen-Pang Liu

& &C Fr {E it /Registered Address : 919 North Market Street, Suite 950
Wilmington, DE 19801

EFERY ((XFRIESE) /Official Email: intl@tp-tea.com
HER/Date:

WASHE A/Franchisee:
EEC4mER/Unified Business Number :

7 EECIR A/Authorized Representative::
B ECR{E/Registered Address:
BFEMYE (LFRIRSR) /Official Email:
HER/Date:
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Bfg14 1 Appendix 1
R FIE TPTEA Trademarks
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Bfg14 2 Appendix 2
B E TPTEA Renewal Assessment Report
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B4 3 Appendix 3
B TEIE H BTz & Test of stations and standard of assessment
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Bf¥{4 4 Appendix 4

SHEETR R R IE R [E#EZR Menu Item and Recommended Price
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BfJ14 5 Appendix 5
EEERREARNREEAREHETRBECMIERNERTE
Designated Items that Franchisee shall purchase from Franchisor or suppliers
approved by Franchisor and Purchase Order
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B4 6Appendix 6
BRI ISHE A B1TER B FRIEZR Allowance of Local Purchasing
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Exhibit B-1

Development Franchisee Rights Rider to Franchise Agreement

TPTEA USA

March 2025 FDD
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DEVELOPMENT FRANCHISEE RIGHTS RIDER
TO THE TPTEA USA INC. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Fmg (KE) RISAIRAEMBROE
FIEEIRISE A RRGRE

1. Background. This Development Franchisee Rights Rider (the “Rider”) is made between
TPTEA USA INC. (“Franchisor”) and (“Franchisee”). This
Rider is attached to, and intended to be a part of, the Franchise Agreement between Franchisor and
Franchisee dated | | (the “Franchise Agreement”) for the development and operation of
a TPTEA Store at locations to be specified within a Territory (as defined in the Franchise
Agreement). All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the definitions given to
them in the Franchise Agreement. Franchisor and Franchisee is signing this Rider because
Franchisee wishes to establish and operate a TPTEA development franchisee business (the
“Development Franchisee Business™) in a designated area described in Exhibit A (the “Area”)
in which Franchisee, as a TPTEA development franchisee (“Development Franchisee”), will
have the right to use the TPTEA Trademarks and the TPTEA System to recruit and screen
individuals interested in becoming franchisees to operate Stores (“Prospects”) and to assist
Franchisor in providing certain support and supervisory services to franchisees in the Area (“Area
Franchisees”). For the avoidance of doubt, the Territory granted under the Franchise Agreement
(and Franchisee’s rights and Franchisor’s restrictions in the Territory) are different from the Area
granted under this Rider (and Franchisee’s rights and Franchisor’s restrictions in the Area) and
there is no overlap. Franchisor is willing to grant to Franchisee the right to establish and operate
a Development Franchisee Business on the terms and conditions of this Rider.

—. BR FRABVEREAMTHE (UTHEAR [H:#R] ) BExEe (XE) RhE

fRAS) (IXTH [REA] ) & (AT [HIRIEAN] ) FERET. Ak
R BRI AE AL F A A RN RGBSR ZMBAROE(

T8 [MBERNE] )z—8r, EEREREEENEEERMEROEPNE)RER
KEFGEEXETH. NpRERERBERMEEREHA BREMBEZNER
EH. REANAEREAZZAN DR RRERREARTEERG AfSEZEE (UTH
[BiE] ) WRUAGEERZEMBERWIREANES (UTH [FAEUGEEAZER] ) .
HZEEHN, WREANMEARSERBERWIREAN (UTHE [RREEEAN] ) A
FERRZEFHEEEEGES, UBSTHEAFRMANEERSEEEEMZMER
(AT [BEmEF] )  UHBEEARBRENZINER (UTH [EEnEm] )

REFEIEEAEERY. flttx MEARNEIRERE (B2RFEARZES
NZ BT REEARZESNZRE) BAGRZZERE (BREEEARZEFRNZ
AN EBEEARZEBENZRE) AR, BEAFEEHEE. REABBRKEBENGREZ %
R, BRTHEEARLUEESHEBEINEIREANEB R,

2. Grant of Development Franchisee Rights. Subject to Franchisee’s strict compliance with

this Rider, and as part of Franchisee’s Development Franchisee Business, Franchisor grant
Franchisee the following rights:
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= BREGREAEZRT AEREARBETABRIRET, BESTEIREAR
TR AW A RN —a0D, RN THRIREA I TERN:

@ to actively and continually solicit Prospects to become franchisees to
operate Stores to be located in the Area in accordance with the Development Schedule (as
defined in Section 6); and

@ FERAFEBBEEENER, FRREREFE(EEEEAHES
NEF), ARERENRRERER X

(b) to assist Franchisor in providing the Support Services and Supervisory
Services specified and defined below to Area Franchisees in your Area; and

(b) HEREARREREN EENEFRETRAFEERERZ R
BHEEERE &

(©) to use the TPTEA Trademarks and the TPTEA System solely in connection
with the rights described in clauses (a) and (b) above (in addition to Franchisee’s rights
relating to Franchisee’s use of the TPTEA Trademarks and TPTEA System to develop and
operate Stores under the Franchise Agreement).

© ERFZFEFEERZFERGANRLR @) 8 (b) FFATRZHER
(BRUELSN, BOREAMRBINRERZAOZ A ENERRSERERRTGER G IR
REEEEKERARMERN) .

Franchisee has no right to (i) sublicense the TPTEA Trademarks or the TPTEA System to
any other person or entity, (ii) use the TPTEA Trademarks or the TPTEA System at any location
outside of the Area (other than as otherwise provided in the Franchise Agreement), or (iii) to use
the TPTEA Trademarks or the TPTEA System in any wholesale, e-commerce, or other channel of
distribution.

WIRBARE: () FX52EARGERGERETEAEMEASER ()
AREEHMIMIEFERARSERENRGERGEGMBERGS AEAEIN), = (i) #
HIALE. EFaHsi o HREERARSEFEIRGTER 4.

3. Limited Territorial Protection in the Area. Except as provided in this Section 3, as long
as Franchisee is in compliance with this Rider and the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor and
Franchisor’s affiliates will not license a third party to operate a Development Franchisee Business
within Franchisee’s Area for the time period beginning on the Start Date (defined in Section 10
below) and ending on the Recruitment Rights End Date (defined in Section 10 below). Except for
the foregoing sentence, Franchisor and Franchisor’s affiliates have the right to conduct any
business activities, under any name, in any geographic area, and at any location, regardless of the
proximity to or effect on Franchisee’s Development Franchisee Business. For example, without
limitation, Franchisor has the right to:
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=, FEBZzEREHRE GRABZRE=FAEAEN REERENBTXIGRRIMN
HRNE, REARREANBRERSASRES=TTEEREY (ERRAHRET
%) ZRFENEREY (EXRAMRS %) PEEREEAZEENESFHENY
RIEAX. BRGSO, REARHARBERLXFREETMHEESLBE, NETH
BEEEEURREY, TRECREAMBRREGCIREAXRBZERMITE, GIMERRE,
RIEANFE:

@ solicit and recruit Prospects in any manner to establish Stores anywhere,
including inside the Area;

@ REERXEENZEEHE, WEEAHTRIEE. BEEanEs, o
EavA—E RSN

(b) engage the services of franchise brokers, lead referral sources, and other
organizations and facilities for the identification, evaluation, and referral of leads for
Prospects (collectively, “Brokers”);

(b) FBBMBALLAN. BERFHEBREREMASSEE HLEETE
BRI, FHERHER (&8 (KAl ) .

(c) establish, or license to third parties the right to establish, Stores or other
facilities or businesses offering similar or identical products, services, and using the
TPTEA System or elements of the TPTEA System anywhere, including inside the Area;

() HRERREFNZEMHE, BITRUIIREE=T., ERXGER
B HTE, RUSHEHIAAMRMBUSIERER. RFBZREHFH.

(d) establish, or license to third parties the right to establish, Development
Franchisee Businesses anywhere outside of the Area;

d)  HEREEINIEEHRE, BITRIIIEE=TEEMAENEIREA
E

(e) provide services and support to Stores located anywhere, including to Area
Franchisees located inside the Area;

(€) EEEHEASXERHRERESREIE SRAERRNEESNER.

()] sell or offer, or license others to sell or offer, any products or services using
the TPTEA Trademarks or other marks through any alternative distribution channels,
including, without limitation, through e-commerce, including inside the Area;

N REEXEBNZETHE, BTHESRBEMSURT, SUXEM
ABBEIERZFEERR SREARRETEH, EAXZEHRNEMIRS
HE SR M E mBURTS .
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4.

(9) advertise, or authorize others to advertise, using the TPTEA Trademarks
anywhere, including inside the Area; and

(9) REFRAERGNZTEMHE FAXZERHEETESIIREMAE
=

(h) acquire, be acquired by, or merge with other companies with existing tea
shops and stores and/or tea businesses anywhere (including inside the Area) and, even if
such businesses are located in the Area, (i) convert the other businesses to TPTEA Stores,
(ii) permit the other businesses to continue to operate under another name and offer unit
franchises and development franchisee rights in such other system, and/or (iii) permit the
businesses to operate under another name and convert existing Stores to such other name.

() B wHAASKE, SEEMEGRE RREHRR/HRRES
MAB(ERMNRER, BRAREM)ETEH REZXFBURARERN, M5
(i) Iz A mRERBRARGEERKEW, () AFraHMEREE N H MRS
CE, WEZHAMRFRMEEMBARRBEGIREAE, R/ (i) RFZEH
MHMb R EEE, WKREAEXEHERAZAMBME.

Compensation to Franchisee.

M. HEREA Z #Hh

A. Initial Franchise Compensation and Royalty Compensation. For the avoidance of

doubt, Franchisor will not charge Franchisee any fees for the development franchisee rights that
Franchisor grants to Franchisee under this Rider. Franchisor will pay to Franchisee the following:

A ERESHRMRETISEEL ABRRER, REATERAGRRTHR

A Z BRI IR A BB T E R, KA A RIREA T RIE:

@) Initial Franchise Compensation. For the time period beginning on the Start
Date (defined in Section 10 below) and ending on the Recruitment Rights End Date
(defined in Section 10 below), Franchisor will pay to Franchisee Twenty Thousand U.S.
Dollars (US$20,000) for each new Area Franchisee recruited by Franchisee and approved
by Franchisor (the “Franchise Compensation”), after such Area Franchisee pays the
Franchise Fee (as defined in the applicable Franchise Agreement) to Franchisor. For the
avoidance of doubt, Franchisor will not pay to Franchisee any Franchise Compensation for
Stores located in the Area, but operated by franchisees identified or recruited by someone
(or some entity) other than Franchisee such as a franchise broker, lead referral source, or
other organization or facility for the identification, evaluation, and referral of leads, or
franchisees who approach Franchisor directly for the franchise opportunity.

@ EEESEE BEKRE (ERXRAMRETR) £ ZRSEN

H (ERREAWEFETF) HEN, SMRERENES T EREAEZ
ER, REABRBEREAZMNEE BT (US$20,000) (IXTH [##

n

&1k
& 35
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SR ) REZESMARCSHFEEAMNEES (ERRBRAZINERZY
2) . AEERR, HRARBEWAEREAMSNZ AGAR), mERMBLL
A BEFFHEBRERSEMERRA. FHEZIERBE MR ® A AAMSHEERTR
AISESZ AR, HEZERREANGHANBEREZMARRESNEREH, &
ARG RN A HEIIRE SR,

(b) Royalty Compensation. For the time period beginning on the Start Date
(defined in Section 10 below) and ending on the Services and Support Obligations End
Date (defined in Section 10 below), Franchisor will pay to Franchisee a monthly amount
equal to 40% of the total amount of Royalties (as defined in the applicable Franchise
Agreement) that Franchisor receives from each Area Franchisee during the previous month
(the “Royalty Compensation”), to the extent that Franchisee provides such Area
Franchisee with Support Services for that month. For the avoidance of doubt, Franchisor
will not pay to Franchisee any Royalty Compensation for Stores located in the Area, but
operated by franchisees to whom Franchisee is not providing Support Services.

(b) HIEHEE BB (ERRAXBREHR) £ ERFBEIES
BB (ERRAmRSEHR) LNHERN, REASABRI—EARENE
HMEWARRZENE (ERREAZMBERNE) HERN 0%, A THIRE
A (TR [HENESWEE] ) | AIRERREARZA N AZESINEFRMEE
BT, RERER, HRABSNEIREIBREAERBZMEFECENE
XKIEH, REATSEBIREASHEIET SR,

B. Payment Date. Franchisor will pay Franchisee the Royalty Compensation by the
10th day of each month (or on the next business day if the 10th day falls on a weekend or public
holiday) (the “Payment Date”). Franchisor may change the Payment Date in the manuals.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, and pursuant to Section 8.B below, Franchisor may require
Franchisee to collect Franchise Fees and Royalties from Area Franchisees, deduct the Franchise
Compensation and Royalty Compensation, and then remit to Franchisor the balance in such
manner and at such time as Franchisor designates. Regardless of the method of payment used,
Franchisee shall be solely responsible for any fees charged by its bank for any remittance or
conversion of payments.

B. AMXEH: FEAEREA+THN (BEXRNEERE RIEEET—EZ
#8) (UTHE IMIRBH] ) IAENEWBETHIREAN. REASRTFREEMNKE
#, BERIROE, WIEAHRE/N\FBE, REASERUHREARSDEEMER
WIS ZEN S, IIBRIRES WA REN EMAAE, AGREATEE T N REFE MR
BYREN. BERBRBAECSTRAIN, SIIREANBRKIERRITEH B E R ATE A
=R
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5. Operation of Development Franchisee Business.

I, EARBEEREARHZES

A. Development Franchisee Business Manual. If and when available, Franchisor will
provide Franchisee with access to Franchisor’s manual for operating Development Franchisee
Businesses (the “Development Franchisee Business Manual”). Franchisee must comply with
and abide by each TPTEA System standard contained in the Development Franchisee Business
Manual as they may be amended, modified, or supplemented periodically and such other written
or electronically transmitted TPTEA System standards that Franchisor may issue periodically.
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates may amend, modify, or
supplement the Development Franchisee Business Manual at any time, so long as such
amendments, modifications, or supplements will, in Franchisor’s or their good faith opinion,
benefit existing and future development franchisees, the TPTEA brand, or the TPTEA System.
Franchisee must promptly comply with any revised TPTEA System standards.

A FEEREEREAEGTHR WEEEEYAR, REARREEREALS
FREBIREAXB TR (UTHE [FHEREREAXRTTR] ) . SEARETIT
WRRBRAWHREAXGTFRAR AR5 R1RRE, ZTFMIRERERT. X
L, BEEFREANSALET ANER. REFERERA, BAARERTERK
FRZRAEIREART. X5ERMBRSERSE, REAIEBRLEFTERERT. BX
Iﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ&%k%%%%o%&%A%4%%ﬁﬁ%%¥%§%%z%+

B. Training and Assistance. Franchisor may periodically conduct mandatory or
optional development franchisee training programs for Franchisee and/or Franchisee’s employees
at Franchisor’s office or another location that Franchisor designates. There will be no charge for
training programs that Franchisor requires Franchisee or Franchisee’s employees to attend (and to
satisfactorily complete). Franchisor may provide training in person or via recorded media,
teleconference, videoconference, the Internet, webinar, or any other means, as Franchisor
determines.

B. XIlMmRY: REABSEHRREARAZTHHMIEEHE, SEIREAR
/&HEI%%%%&& RIEFMN 2 FRBWREAZIRE. HRREAZKEIREAL
EEI%ﬂ(IEL )ZXN%& REATSWREETER. REABBTRE
M. R S%\ AEE. BN, MU e EMmT IR

C. Location. At all times during the Term, Franchisee must maintain Franchisee’s
primary residence within the boundaries of Franchisee’s Area or Territory (as that term is defined
in the Franchise Agreement). Franchisee must maintain Franchisee’s Development Franchisee
Business’s office within the boundaries of Franchisee’s Area (or Territory) at Franchisee’s
residence, one of Franchisee’s Stores, or any other suitable commercial space.

C. ihE HWREARNBEZNEZOHE, BREETESMEFREEREAZ
EFFRELE (ZEERATERMBERGE) W, #REATREHEREREAR
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BAERERPHREAZES (SUREHRE) N, ZWATTNUREREAZER. &
XI5, FHMEENHEEE.

D. Staffing.  Franchisee must devote Franchisee’s best efforts towards the
management of Franchisee’s Development Franchisee Business. Franchisee must at all times
employ sufficient trained staff in Franchisee’s office to fully support the Development Franchisee
Business. Franchisee is solely responsible for all labor and employment-related matters and
decisions related to Franchisee’s Development Franchisee Business, including hiring, firing,
promoting, demoting, and compensating (including through wages, bonuses, or benefits)
Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee must ensure that Franchisee’s employees are qualified to
perform their duties in accordance with Franchisor’s TPTEA System standards. Franchisor does
not require Franchisee to implement any employment-related policies or procedures that
Franchisor (at Franchisor’s option) may make available to Franchisee in the Development
Franchisee Business Manual or otherwise for Franchisee’s optional use. Franchisee will determine
to what extent, if any, these policies and procedures may be applicable to Franchisee’s operations
at the Development Franchisee Business.

D. ABERE #HREABENRAHRBAEGCIREAXHTZEE. S0REAR
RERAERAZHEZBIEZANE, NREDFHFHBBIEANET . HIREAHR
HARAWHRKEAZHZMASEEMAARSERAR, BHER. BE. 8. BEREX
HM(BEHE. BEHENTF), RESHEE. BREAREFREEIAHRRR KR
REAZRZEFREERTHRE. REANSBEREREARPTAREN (BEE
THiRf) TRMFAERGIREAZBTRIHAMITRNIER, (EARRENRELERZE
FAEBBRIIEF. #REASBTREZFEREEFRARBUEREAEFTEX
BRI

E. Products and Supplies. Franchisor may provide Franchisee in Franchisor’s
Development Franchisee Business Manual or otherwise in writing with specifications and other
requirements for products, supplies, equipment, and suppliers that Franchisee must use in
Franchisee’s Development Franchisee Business, including specifying a specific item or supplier,
which may be Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Franchisee agrees that if Franchisee arranges order consolidation and/or delivery
management for its Area Franchisees, Franchisee shall not charge a service fee that exceeds 40%
of the value of each order. Franchisor and Franchisor’s affiliates may negotiate purchasing
arrangements under which suppliers agree to make equipment, products, supplies, and services
available to Franchisee. Franchisor and Franchisor’s affiliates may earn income on direct sales of
products, supplies, and equipment to Franchisee or Area Franchisees. If Franchisor or Franchisor’s
affiliates receive any rebates, commissions, or other payments from third-party suppliers based on
Franchisee’s or Franchisee’s Area Franchisees purchases from them, Franchisor may use the
rebates, commissions, or other payments for any purpose and has no obligation to share such
rebates, commissions, or other payments from third-party suppliers with Franchisee.

E. EmifE REASKAZEGREAZSTH SIMEMEETR, &

HEREAER. fER. EXHEFNREEAAEMER, EfEEEASEEHRER
(BRI AREASFEAZMERELR)  SHEEANRERZSFRECIFHERR
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RIEANXT . EAZENRGRN—RMIRT, RRXEARE, ZEAEESMNERZH
BT ER/FREEE, HREANSODESMEFKREBBESETESRE 0% R
&, REAREBERELXSHER G, mEREARERE. DRREMERS. &
BARHBFRLESRERORIREASESNERHEERE. DREEMMERN. 5%
BASEBRLEREHREASEGSMAFTF R, @E=THEFRERE. WREFEM,
MBSO, MEHAMNE, FEAGKZETON. BEHEMRERRETE,
BERBHEREEAXLZREE=JHEFNEN. AEIEMKIE.

F. Compliance with Laws and Good Business Practices. Franchisee must comply with
all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances (“Applicable
Laws”). Franchisee will obtain and maintain in good standing any and all licenses, permits, and
consents necessary for Franchisee to lawfully operate the Development Franchisee Business.
Franchisee has sole responsibility for such compliance despite any information or advice that
Franchisor may provide. Franchisee must in all dealings with Franchisor’s franchisees, Prospects,
Franchisee’s suppliers, Franchisor, and the public adhere to the highest standards of honesty,
integrity, fair dealing, and ethical conduct. Franchisee agree to refrain from any business or
advertising practice which might injure Franchisor’s business or the goodwill associated with the
TPTEA Trademarks or other Development Franchisee Businesses or Stores.

F. BREECHEEE: HEEALRETHREEANEI. MNIEHERE.
MBI R EGG (U THE [BRZEE] ) . SEREANRRESLRFIELRAHE,
AUHERX B, NRFRESECEMBMTIREAXT. BEREATRRHRE
AEER WREADEETRETEREEZEE. HIREATCLAREAZMER. &
AMED. EHREAZMER. REARKRBEENTERXIST, BETRSIEE
MEE. EE. AFRZHRERET. #REARBRTSEEEUUTRESREASTXKH
FZERR. ARARAEREAXRGREXERIHBNEXIESTH.

G. Notice of Proceedings. Franchisee will notify Franchisor in writing within five (5)
days after the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding, or of the issuance of any inquiry,
subpoena, order, writ, injunction, award, or decree of any court, agency, or other governmental
instrumentality in connection with the operation or financial condition of the Development
Franchisee Business, including without limitation any criminal action or proceeding brought by
Franchisee against any employee or other person.

C. AEEFBA EEEETE. FRSUEREFMRR, SUEEAR. H#E
S H BRI B IR EAEB AR FHAARR, BREETHAE. FR. 2.
SR BES . MERFIRE, HIREARBKDL (5) BUNETEBMREAN. NMEKE
RERRREREAY B THEMARREZ HEFRRSEERREF.

H. Insurance. During the Term, Franchisee must maintain in force at Franchisee’s sole
expense the insurance coverage for the Development Franchisee Business in the amounts, covering
the risks, and containing only the exceptions and exclusions that Franchisor periodically specify
in the Development Franchisee Business Manual for all similarly situated Development Franchisee
Businesses. All insurance policies must name Franchisor and any affiliates Franchisor designate
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as an additional insured and provide for 30 days’ prior written notice to Franchisor of a policy’s
material modification or cancellation. Franchisee agree to send Franchisor annually and any other
time that Franchisor request a valid certificate of insurance or duplicate insurance policy
evidencing that Franchisee has maintained the required coverage and paid the applicable
premiums. If Franchisee fail to obtain or maintain (or to prove that Franchisee has obtained or
maintained) the insurance Franchisor specify, in addition to Franchisor’s other remedies,
Franchisor may (but need not) obtain such insurance for Franchisee and the Development
Franchisee Business on Franchisee’s behalf, in which event Franchisee shall cooperate with
Franchisor and reimburse Franchisor for all premiums, costs, and expenses Franchisor incur in
obtaining and maintaining the insurance.

H R EAROHE, $#REARBESHEAEREAZBEREINR
b, REEEFE. RARERIERRBISMNLBRIMERR, BT AREARBEURREARTT
M B BURBRRRIREAXT IR ENRE, IEREBRKREARIRIEAIEENEH
BRI A MERIRA, TRAREZEFASENEULR 30 X, UEMBMZTEA,
WHREARNSSERERBAZKROEMEE, REREARROENEHIREERX,
MZE BRI AR AR E RN R A HEBERE. BEHREARERGHERT
(BEEEACREGIMES) REAFRENREE, RIBREEA THRE A H A wRE s,
KIEAG (BERT) KREREARHARMBRUREREAELFTREZRE. FHERLT,
WIREABREREAN, TEEREASRSRERZRRIXNNFERERERN.

6. Development Obligations. Franchisee must use Franchisee’s reasonable commercial
efforts to: (i) actively and diligently promote and grow the TPTEA brand in the Area and (ii) assist
in the successful development of the TPTEA brand in the Area. Franchisee must actively market
franchises for the TPTEA brand to qualified Prospects in the Area in accordance with
Franchisor’s TPTEA System standards. Franchisee is responsible for ensuring that Stores are
developed and opened in Franchisee’s Area in accordance with, and by the deadlines specified in,
the development schedule set out in Exhibit A to this Agreement (the “Development Schedule”).
For each Store that Franchisee is responsible for overseeing the development of, each Prospect
must sign the applicable Franchise Agreement by the signing deadline specified in the
Development Schedule (the “Signing Deadline”) and must open the Store by the development
deadline specified in the Development Schedule (the “Development Deadline”). In addition, at
each Development Deadline, the cumulative number of Stores listed in the Development Schedule
must be open and operating in the Area.

N, RER® #REABRERXLSENSEN () ReEHEREREREHNEREIL IR
REFmami®; I B() BER5EmMAERERNMNATIER. BIREALRKERE
ARNKZERGRE, BROESNERNBEEMERTHER S RMOMARS . HI%
BAGEEHRAREXEHNEREFARRTaRBRM T A (UTH [RIEFE] ) .
HRBEEARRRERENEHE RGN, SUWEEMRRLARRESTENENRA
BIEES (MUTHE [ZA8EEH] ) xBERNMARNE, TARRETENEN
RIEHR (UTHE [REHR] ) NEREXER. N, ESEAREHRN, RETS
MRFHEBLAERESNARILAEFEE.
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7. Franchise Sales.

t. MEBHEE:

A. Compliance with Franchise Sales Laws. Franchisee must comply with all
Applicable Laws related to the marketing and sale of franchises. Franchisee and Franchisee’s
owners, officers, and employees may not solicit Prospects until Franchisee and they have obtained
all required licenses and registrations necessary to do so in Franchisee’s jurisdiction, which may
include obtaining registrations or licenses as a franchise broker, real estate broker, business broker
or otherwise. Franchisee must maintain such registrations or licenses throughout the Term, at
Franchisee’s cost and expense, and Franchisee must provide evidence of Franchisee’s and their
compliance with such Applicable Laws upon Franchisor’s request. If Franchisee’s Area is in a
state that requires the registration of franchise offerings, Franchisee may not solicit Prospects in
any period in which (i) the Franchisor does not have an active franchise registration for the sale of
Stores in such jurisdiction or (ii) Franchisor must suspend sales while an amendment or renewal
application is pending. Franchisee must immediately cease or suspend offering franchises for
Stores upon written notice from Franchisor.

A EBMBHEZEN WREARETRAEBEREE, HEREINEXEBNTH
HEHENEZER. HEEARERAEA. EEAREIRNGHEREAEZS ZEEES
FRERNELERREZME, BRERNRRMEBLLA. TEBELLA. BREL
AR HEMARNR, FNSEEEENES. EZ2OHE, EREAREEENZFHR
AR AR, WRIREAZKE, EREANRHEIREARAEBERA BN SEAEEN
B, ARBREANREESVRFIMINBEHENMN, AENTELT, #EEATT
BB EMEAR: () REAEZSZEEREFNRFEARNNVIMBHETM, () XiE
ARMBHEIMIEHIREFFNETLMALENEFE. HREARHERBH,
WA AMZ U fEH S KBV INBHE .

B. Franchise Screening Process.
B. ISR ERIERTE

@) Franchisee’s Review. Franchisee must screen Prospects according to
Franchisor’s TPTEA System standards and must keep an accurate log of all inquiries that
Franchisee receives from Prospects, including their contact information. Franchisee must
recommend promptly to Franchisor those Prospects whom Franchisee deem qualified
under Franchisor’s TPTEA System standards, by submitting to Franchisor reports,
applications, and other documentation in the form Franchisor prescribes. Franchisee must
perform a background check on all Prospects that meet Franchisor’s TPTEA System
standards. Franchisee may only reject Prospects if Franchisee reasonably believes they do
not meet Franchisor’s TPTEA System standards.

@) HBREAZEES HEREABKEBREAZRSSRARTEREEE
mER, WHETHRMMABEMARNAEREN, SRARET. WIREARK
BRSERGIRE, KEOREARBRIANAERNEBEMER, LeFEA
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RIXFEANRERKNZEEHRE. Hins LHMBMXT. BIREARBTERS
ERASREZMFEAEMBARET S RHE. WIREAERETAEERIETEE
MEBFATERBERGRENBELT T RS

(b) Franchisor’s Approval. Franchisor will approve or disapprove Prospects
that Franchisee submits to Franchisor in writing. Franchisor will use Franchisor’s
reasonable efforts to deliver such notices to Franchisee within 30 days after Franchisor
receives the materials that Franchisor requests from the Prospect. Franchisor may
condition approval by requiring an acceptable personal interview of a Prospect, which
Franchisor may conduct or may require Franchisee to conduct. Franchisor’s decision to
grant a franchise will be evidenced by Franchisor’s signing and delivery of a Franchise
Agreement, after Franchisor has received it signed by the Prospect and payment of the
appropriate fees.

(b) HEAZZAE BEABNEESR, ZESSREREARZZE
AMMER. WEEEMEFRINMEREAZRNERE, REAFEDR 30
RNBHEREAARS, FEAGSBERRSEEMEARARREAEH,
AZER T HEAEST, SREATRRWHREAEST. REARTNERRE,
RAREAZBERIMMEZAOZLR, REREACKIEENERRZZM
HROERMERERZX AT,

(© Disclosure Document and Agreements.

(© XHHEHEFE

1. Forms. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with the standard form
of Franchise Disclosure Document for the Stores (the “Disclosure Document”)
and the standard forms of Franchise Agreement (the, “Store Agreement”), which
Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates will prepare and provide to Franchisee at
Franchisor’s or their own expense and may modify periodically. Franchisor or
Franchisor’s affiliates may modify or amend any of these documents at any time,
in Franchisor’s or their sole discretion.

1 BB REARMMEERANS EXIEFHMBBEXMG (U
TR [BEXH] ) UMREERKXNMBROE (UTHE [ EEHEN
Z])  ZEXHEEEASHBARCEREY B ERBETHIREAN, BT
REEHHME . RN EBRLXAET R DR S EITIERT .

2. Information in Disclosure Documents. Franchisee must furnish to
Franchisor any information about Franchisee or Franchisee’s affiliates which are
required to be included in the Disclosure Document. Before Franchisee solicits any
Prospects, Franchisee must confirm that the information contained in the
Disclosure Document related to Franchisee is accurate and not misleading.
Franchisee must notify Franchisor of any material information or changes that
Franchisee is aware of that may require disclosure in the Disclosure Document.
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Franchisee may not make any changes or additions to the Disclosure Document
other than those expressly authorized by Franchisor in writing.

2. BEEAHM SIREABRERENEERMNBE XHHRER
WAL HBARLXNEN. ARREABBTMEEMER 2, #®R
BALAERBE XM REARRNEMSERER, RIREALFEBIR
WAHFTH, TRERBEXMATBENTMERENIEE. HREAR
SHB\EXHETEAEESIEE, RIFESREANSHRERE.

3. Use of Disclosure Documents and Store Agreements. Franchisee
must use the then-current form of Disclosure Document and Store Agreement
without modification in connection with Franchisee’s solicitation of Prospects,
unless Franchisor otherwise agrees in writing. If required by Applicable Laws,
Franchisee must deliver a Disclosure Document to each Prospect, in accordance
with all legal requirements related to the delivery of such Disclosure Document.
Franchisee must collect and provide Franchisor with signed receipts confirming a
Prospects’ receipt of the Disclosure Document.

3. RBEX{HZEXERRE ﬁZﬁ%'Wﬁ%A%Eﬁ%*ﬁ?%
FRARIREE X LA X IEFHRY, ERNSEAEN, WETHEEMEARN
%, BRIEREBEAZNUEERR. sBREEEREKR, %&%Aﬁﬁwm
P BB XM RRIREEME, B EMBERRMEBE X . WiE

AARELRABEMBBHZZNBETREN, DEREEMERCKE
1BEE M.

4. Representations.  All information that Franchisee provides to
Prospects must not be inconsistent with the information included in the Disclosure
Document that Franchisor provides to Franchisee and must be accurate to the best
of Franchisee’s knowledge. Franchisee may not make any financial performance
representations, earnings claims, or financial projections relating to any Stores to
Prospects other than those that Franchisor authorizes, and Franchisee may not
review or comment on any prepared or submitted by Prospects.

4. Rk HFIREANEBEENBEFRENIE EANGHEIREAR
AR ARIBE X8 E ML —E, H%mﬁA¥%hEA%% W
RIEANTEEAENBEFRA RIS HRERIR. SPCRRSEEE X EHE
%MW%ﬁﬂ BRAFEFIREANRE., L, HIREARSEENFHE

BN B B P E B IR M T AR E R

(d) Executing Agreements. If Franchisor approves a Prospect, Franchisee must
use reasonable commercial efforts to have the Prospect promptly execute the then-current
Store Agreement and deliver an original signed copy to Franchisor. Franchisee is not
authorized to enter into any agreements on Franchisor’s behalf or to agree to any changes,
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additions or deletions in the Store Agreement of any kind. Any agreements are not binding
on Franchisor until Franchisor signs them, which Franchisor can refuse to do at any time.

d) ZEHE AFREACEREENRR, AEREABENREEAE
MEFEERBESRIRANSEXEHLZNE, IRRBENEAINTHREA,
WIREAERRRBREAZZETRY, hWEERSHEXEHZAOS MBI
E. RSN, EEURAEREAZZEZNHEREATRORS, BEREATE

rEERE.

(e) Opening Franchised Stores. Franchisee may not permit an Area Franchisee
to open a Franchised Store until Franchisee has received Franchisor’s written approval,
which will not be unreasonably withheld.

() FRRIEEH: BEFEANSAZEZR, WREANSAFER
BRI MBET. MXEARNSANEENERZAE.

8. Services and Support to Area Franchisees.

J\. BN B A AR T IR

A. Training of Area Franchisees and Support Services.

A BEEHNE B E SRR IR R

@ Area Franchisee Training. Franchisor may require Franchisee to provide to
Area Franchisees initial and additional training programs at one of Franchisee’s TPTEA
Stores or at an Area Franchisee’s TPTEA Store that Franchisor requires from time to time
in the Development Franchisee Business Manual or otherwise in writing in accordance
with the TPTEA System standards that Franchisor establishes.

@ HEIEMAFNEFIR REASEREREARREEE ZEHN
EEMBWNEXRER TREMABRUEREAXBTRIREAREZRSER
RIRHE, [ESINERRHESZEIMNIBEIRRE.

(b) Training Expenses. Franchisee is responsible for all expenses related to
conducting training programs for the Area Franchisees. Franchisee is responsible for any
travel and living expenses (including meals, transportation, and accommodations), wages,
and other expenses incurred by Franchisee’s trainers relating to any training programs.

(b) HBEIRER: WIREABREGEESMEFUTIRREZ THHEM
R AREARAGEXNHBEABRAGIGRERMEENZEREETEEN
(BRRER. BHEGEE) . HFERHMEMER.

(© Ongoing Support Services. Franchisor may require Franchisee to provide
to Area Franchisees certain ongoing support services (the “Support Services”), on
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Franchisor’s behalf. Franchisee must provide such Support Services in the manner,
frequency, and in the time periods that Franchisor prescribes and in accordance with the
TPTEA System standards, as set forth in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. Franchisor
may modify the Support Services that Franchisee must provide from time to time. The
Support Services that Franchisor may require Franchisee to provide to Area Franchisees in
accordance with Franchisor’s TPTEA System standards may include:

(© FHEMERE REASEREREARKREADREMERE
HEEREN SRR (UTH8 (&R ) - SIREABRRRBRREARENTT
. AR RPERUZEIIERS, I FHSEMERXXHTRHEPENESS
RGHARE, RENSAFRAEREEABRENERBNE. REAFERER
BARZTR S E R AR %R EENEMRANIEREEA:

1) Conducting the training programs and services described in Section
8.A(a) (Area Franchise Training);

(1)  HMATE/NE AR a BRRZHBIFEEE (BEMNEHFI
&)

@) Creating and maintaining relationships with landlords, local
vendors, real estate brokers, architects, lenders and financing institutions,
contractors, payroll vendors, marketing and public relations firms, and equipment
maintenance service providers in the Area which can be shared with your Area
Franchisees;

() HKREENEITEFRER. EMHHER. FTBESLCA. B
KEN. EFXHEHESREE. TEREH. HEEERBE. THEREL
5, UERREEERTENEER, MARMERTEEMER,

3) Familiarizing itself with Applicable Laws in the Area relating to the
operation of a TP Tea Store, including laws relating to beverage and food service,
and the operation and development of businesses;

(3) ATZAFKSFELEEMEEHEMMBERER, SREHRRS
X, CELLRBRMAREE

4) Advising Area Franchisees on site selection and lease negotiation
issues, provided that Franchisee shall not have the right to approve any sites or any
lease terms;

(4) WHEXEFBRUHBAEHRFZEESMBRFRMEER HHK
AN EREROE TR SIS SR AR

(5) Assisting Area Franchisees in properly designing, building out, and
equipping their TPTEA Stores;
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(5) HBYEHNERZEREZFESEEHZRET. BB URE
%,

(6) Providing Area Franchisees with supervisory assistance and
guidance in connection with the opening and initial operations of their Area
Franchisee TPTEA Stores;

6) HEREMAFHRZZZESXKEHMARRMPSERER, =2
HEREWMREE,

(7) Providing ongoing technical, managerial, and administrative advice
and assistance by telephone, email, other forms of communication, or in-person, as
the Area Franchisees or Franchisor may periodically reasonably request or require;

(7) RBEEFSMEFHFEAREHNEGEZREFTR, BBEA.
ETEM. Ht@AT SR B R EENEN. BERTRERE R,

(8) Advising Area Franchisees in developing and implementing
marketing strategies;

(8)  HBHEEINE B E K ATITIH RS,

9) Working with Area Franchisees to assist them in avoiding and
curing any defaults under their franchise agreement; and

©) HEEEMER, FHERZYEHNEZOZTNENTS,

(10)  Satisfying all of Franchisor’s other obligations that Franchisor
delegates to Franchisee from time to time.

(10) EBITREANEREREREANEMATE R,

B. Supervision _and Monitoring of Area Franchisees. Franchisor may require
Franchisee to provide to Area Franchisees certain ongoing supervisory services (the “Supervisory
Services”), on Franchisor’s behalf. As part of the Supervisory Services, Franchisor may require
Franchisee to actively monitor on Franchisor’s behalf and report to Franchisor the compliance of
each Area Franchisee with all applicable TPTEA System standards and Applicable Laws.
Supervisory Service may include:

B. HEHMBANNEEHRER REASEREEREARKREAN, @EZN
HERHARESEMEERS (UTHE [BERS] ) . FARERBN D, KEA
JEREHFEARTREARBEEEREHMERS, ToREARRESVNESNERHISSE
BEHBAZ RS ERGRERMBMESR. BERF IR

@ Conducting inspections prior to the opening of an Area Franchisee’s
TPTEA Store to confirm that it is being built in accordance with approved plans and
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specifications and Applicable Laws and provide to Franchisor progress reports in the form
Franchisor specifies;

() EERHNEFNXSGEEELEHFBEINETHRE, MHEREHIES
BERCEZRETE. RIEERER, TREBREAIEENEREREARTEE
]

(b) Visit Area Franchisee TPTEA Stores following a Store’s opening and to
provide continuing support and advice;

(b) HEEREMAFNRZESXKERFAFRETDHE, WRHFEMENX
REE

(c) Inspect the management and operations of each Area Franchisee TPTEA
Store and furnish to Franchisor related reports on such forms, and containing such
information, as Franchisor may reasonably request, concerning Franchisee’s findings
during each visit or any follow-up visits necessary to verify the correction of deficiencies;

€ HEEEEENEFNRSEEXEHERREERN, TARE
AZBEER, RHMEMRE NAEREREARSXNEILENREIET
ZREAEBEERERBELNE,

(d) Participate in and implement any quality assurance programs that
Franchisor may develop at the times and in the manner that Franchisor specifies;

d) EEEAEENSERTNSELATREAMENRRAE

(e) Monitor the sales performance and other key performance indicators of the
Area Franchisees and advise Franchisor of any issues that Franchisee identifies;

() EEEEMEROEERELZHMERENIEE, HEREANBRK
RIENBRNERERE,

()] Collect and provide to us copies of any business registrations, licenses, or
permits or insurance policies that Area Franchisees are required to obtain;

f  BEIREESMNBEFOIEBRENERETL. SXAR. FJE
REZRBATHREAN

(9) Collect Franchise Fees and Royalties from Area Franchisees, deduct the
Franchise Compensation and Royalty Compensation, and then remit to Franchisor the
balance in such manner and at such time as Franchisor designates;

(0) REKESNEHXMNHNRESRENE MREFREABSNFES
HARHAE R SRR, RIREATEE R TT RS AT R AR EE SR THRAEN
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(h) Assist Franchisor in the enforcement of all provisions of the applicable
franchise agreements;

(h)  BENRIEAMITINR AT NETRESK

() Advise Franchisor of any Applicable Laws governing the Area Franchisee
TPTEA Stores in your Area and alert Franchisor as to legal developments as they arise
from time to time;

() EEEARRESNFSEEXEHMEMOEEEN, LTERBE
eSS SSERIEL N

() Notify Franchisor in writing within five days after the commencement of
any action, suit, arbitration, proceeding, or investigation, or the issuance of any order, writ,
injunction, award, or decree, by any court, agency or other governmental instrumentality,
or arbitration agency, which names or relates to an Area Franchisee; and

() ETEETE. Fa. BE. FEEFIPERKRE. SUTEER.
HerE . HhBUFERS BN G S . k. #BHS . RESHR SR EEME
B, EREEHNUEmEFIREA,

(k) Upon Franchisor’s request, provide periodic written reports of additional
reasonable information concerning the Area Franchisees in your Area.

k) FIREAZER, NEAEHRESEARESNMEAREMEEE .

9. Subfranchising Rights. This Rider does not give Franchisee any right to franchise, license,
subfranchise, or sublicense others to develop and operate TPTEA Stores.

Ju. B KinR AR THRIRENTEER, EFEE. RE. 2RFEE3FERE
MABRREEERGEEXE.

10. Term.

+. 15aREARR :

A. Start Date. All of Franchisee’s rights and obligations under this Rider begin on the
date Franchisor signs this Rider (the “Start Date”).

A EIEH: BIREAZHEHENREET, HEREBEARSAHEZBREN
(AT [EmE] )

B. Recruitment Rights End Date. Franchisee’s right to solicit and recruit Prospects in
its Area under this Rider ends on the date when (a) the final TPTEA Store under the Development
Schedule opens for business, or (b) this Rider otherwise is terminated, but in any event
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Franchisee’s rights to solicit and recruit Prospects in its Area will end no later than <insert date>
(the “Recruitment Rights End Date”).

B. BHEEEIIH FREAMRADERERSNEEREBSEEMAR %
A, FRTRE-BHLZIL: () REAERE-—ERSSEXEHMAHBEXZE, 3 (D)
AR HMRELZ L, BERNE, SREARREENBERIESEAENRERZERN
REARH - F_ R Bk (UTHE [ExHEZLER] ) .

C. Services and Support Obligations End Date. Franchisee’s obligation to provide
services and support to Area Franchisees under this Rider ends on the date when (a) when the
Franchise Agreement (including any Initial Term, Extended Term and Renewal Term) is
terminated or expires, or (b) this Rider otherwise is terminated (the “Services and Support
Obligations End Date”).

C. IRBEEZHZIEE: #WREAMRAKGZREY EENEFRARSGEER
2 &, HRTIE—BHZL (2 MARNE (BREEVRAR. KEHREZELD
HARR) #1t=HEHIZ A, 2 (b) ApZEHMRELLE (UTHE [RFBEIIERHLZLE
Bl) .

11. Termination. Franchisor may at any time terminate this Rider and all of Franchisee’s right
under this Rider to operate Franchisee’s Development Franchisee Business, such termination to be
effective upon Franchisor’s delivery to Franchisee of written notice of termination:

+—. Bt BRENTERL REAGERSZLERDRE MUREREARKGREEH
REBIREAXBOMMAES . 2R ULBREARBREANREZTERZ LBAEER.

@ if Franchisee fails to satisfy either Franchisee’s development obligations under the
Schedule or any other obligation under this Rider, which defaults Franchisee has no right to cure;
or

@ EEREARERRETEZEERTRESRT SUREBTARZE THEEEM
75, BERBAHRZEQEWESN,

(b) if the Franchise Agreement, or another franchise agreement between Franchisor
and Franchisee (or Franchisee’s affiliate), is terminated by Franchisor in compliance with its terms
or by Franchisee (or Franchisee’s affiliate) for any (or no) reason; or

(b) EMBRNEIHREALFREN (SHIREANRRESE) ZBErNH—
BENE, FREAMROLZLE, EREEAN (SRREANBRLE) EREEES
(B EEH) &1k =

(©) if Franchisor has delivered a formal written notice of default to Franchisee (or

Franchisee’s affiliate) under the Franchise Agreement, or another franchise agreement between
Franchisor and Franchisee (or Franchisee’s affiliate), whether or not Franchisee (or Franchisee’s
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affiliate) cures that default and whether or not Franchisor subsequently terminates the Franchise
Agreement or any other franchise agreement.

© EREACREBENBEROZTIIREARPIREN (FHREANBEERDLX)
< BENHEMMBRZAE, BEFEN (FHREANRRLSR) BHEXEMEBA,
AR AN (BHBIREANRMRLR) BEWHZEN, TERREASOBERRZL
MBBZNESAAMEMINBROZE.

Termination of this Rider under clause (a), (b), or (c) above is not deemed to be the
termination of any franchise rights (even though this Rider is attached to the Franchise Agreement)
because this Rider grants Franchisee no separate rights. Franchise rights arise only under franchise
agreements signed directly with Franchisor. Termination of this Rider does not affect any franchise
rights granted under any then-effective individual franchise agreements.

RIE LR @), O)F(C)FRBIUERGE, TELHBZEERRERET (RMEAR G
IRINBRNE) | RABRERARR TR BN IR BRI R
RIEABEFENMEAROE, BUEAGEAZENBERZOEERFNRE RO EAIREE
Ao

12.  Assignment. Franchisee’s rights under this Rider are not assignable at all. This means
Franchisor will not under any circumstances allow the rights to operate a Development Franchisee
Business to be transferred. A transfer of these rights would be deemed to occur (and would be
prohibited) if there is an assignment of the Franchise Agreement, a transfer of a controlling
ownership interest in Franchisee, a transfer of this Rider separate and apart from the Franchise
Agreement, or any other event attempting to assign the rights under this Rider. An assignment of
only a non-controlling ownership interest in Franchisee is permitted (and would not be deemed to
be a transfer of Franchisee’s development rights) to the extent permitted by the terms and
conditions of the Franchise Agreement.

T B SREANSEZRABREOTEEN. B, REAEEEABELT, 912
AR REBIRIEAXRT 2 ER. FRAMUTER HEAEFZER (EFUELE) @
BRNBZEZR. HIREALRFIREZER. N2 NEZOERNEZR S ETHM
A EERAGREN TR, 1 EEREEEAZFEFRETE AT (BN RRSHE
RENREEMNZEER) | BRTEMEROE GG,

13. Effect. This Rider constitutes the entire, full, and complete agreement between the parties
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior agreements. Except as provided in
this Rider, the Franchise Agreement remains in full force and effect as originally written. If there
is any inconsistency between the Franchise Agreement and this Rider, this Rider’s terms will
control. This Rider is to be executed in both English and Chinese language, both of which are with
the same legal validity. In case of any discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions,
the Chinese version shall prevail.

T=. Bh: KipHERAETZETBEAEENBE SERRAB LT ZR28. RE
mEABAEN, REMBRNENATEEN. WNBEROTRA R BEFEEETR—
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Bz, RBINABHRFRAE. KAipgzP. RXBBFHEERSFZERN, M.
KX HERERE, UPXAHE,

Dated this dayof 20 .

KNiBeRe TSI 20 A H.
TPTEA USA INC. [FRANCHISEE/##%# A]
By SEERIEA By FERIEA___
Title/BkFH:_ Title/BkF8:
Date/ 5 £5: Date/ H £:
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EXHIBIT A: SCHEDULE

TO DEVELOPMENT FRANCHISEE RIGHTS RIDER

PRI BIRISIE A lih:-RIGETE

New
TPTEA
Stores
to be
Developed
in Area

ZEINATE
ATRRIEZH
BHEMER

[

Signing Deadline
(Date by which
Franchise Agreement
Must Be Signed)

neazRNaE
H=EHLH

Development Deadline
(Date by which TPTEA
Store Must be Opened)

FESELLR

Minimum Cumulative
Number of TPTEA Stores
to Be Open and Operating
in Area No Later than the

Development Deadline

BEREEILLR,
ZEN AT R EE
ZHRRERERTEE

TPTEA USA INC.

ByhEEREA:

Title/B#s:

By EERIEA:

[FRANCHISEE/#SHEA]

Date/ HER:

Title/BAs:

Date/ HER:
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EXHIBIT B: AREA

TO DEVELOPMENT FRANCHISEE RIGHTS RIDER

The Area:

FETRBIRISIE A tihis-[E1

(=15

The Area is identified on the attached map.

BRI BT b,

TPTEA USA INC.

ByiEEREA:

Title/BEFE:

Date/ HER:

[FRANCHISEE/#1SHEA]

By/iZEEA:

Title/BFE:

Date/HER:

1602186779.10
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Exhibit B-2

Multi-Unit Franchise Rider to Franchise Agreement

TPTEA USA

March 2025 FDD
1619321197.3



MULTI-UNIT FRANCHISE RIDER
TO THE TPTEA USA INC. UNIT FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Fimg (KE) RINAIRASMBROE
ZIEHTEE

1. Background. This Multi-Unit Franchise Rider (the “Rider”) dated (the “Effective
Date”) is made between TPTEA USA INC. (“Franchisor”) and
(“Franchisee”). This Rider is attached to, and intended to be
a part of, the __ (__ ) Franchise Agreements that Franchisor and Franchisee are signing
concurrently with signing this Rider (the “Franchise Agreements”) for the development and
operation of TPTEA Stores at locations within the area specified in Exhibit A (the “Development
Area”). This Rider specifies the terms that apply to Franchisee as a multi-unit developer of
TPTEA Stores. This Rider does not confer upon Franchisee any license to use, in any manner
whatsoever, the TPTEA Trademarks or the TPTEA System. To the extent that Franchisor is
licensing those rights to Franchisee, that license is set out under the Franchise Agreements. All
capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the definitions given to them in the
Franchise Agreements.

—. BERX AZEHRmRST (UTHER ] ) FEEx5E (KE) ROBRAS

(AT [HHEA]) & (AT [HIREA] ) B (X
T8 [£B8] ) Rs]. KRR BRILEEMN MERNEZ -,

ZMBLNERREARFREARZELARZFARRE (UTEE [MARNE]
SR A MEEZEE (UTHE [RERE] ) WREREEFSEME. KipE
NERREANERRZE ZIEMEFT G KpEAUEETTNREGIREAERASR
BEREINRSE RS, REARBEREAZRECECEMBEZNOEPNE. Kk
PRERERRERZMBEERRE BREMBERGETZER.

2. Development Obligations. Franchisee agrees to establish each of the TPTEA Stores
according to the development schedule that is specified in Exhibit A (the “Development
Schedule”). In any event, Franchisee shall, within sixty (60) calendar days from the Effective
Date, identify and propose the Store site(s) to be opened and operating in the first year for
Franchisor’s review and approval, otherwise Franchisor shall be entitled to terminate all of the
Franchise Agreements immediately upon written notice to Franchisee.

—. RESR® HIREARSKRRIMG A PREENREE (UTHEA [RIEtE] ) |
IR E—ERGEME. BERNE, sREARBLENEENT (60) EREEM,
HERTRREFNRRREEZFIUEHE, MHMBAAMEZEAE SRIREAGHEE
BEEBIMEIREAN, SR IEFRERERS.

3. Term. The term of this Rider starts on the Effective Date, and ends on the last date
specified in the Development Schedule, unless this Rider is sooner terminated (the “Term”).

1609109170.4



=. ROHE: ARz ROBEEENARE, UREREEFES & B HE S
I, BRIEARmFEALE (UTHE [ZAO8E] ) .

4, Amendments to the Franchise Agreements. In order to implement the terms of this

Rider, certain provisions of the Franchise Agreements are amended as follows:

M. MBEROE B HATAGRFR, MBAROSHBMERIETET,

4.1

Paragraph 1 of Article 6 of each Franchise Agreement, addressing the Initial

Franchise Fee to be paid by Franchisee, shall be amended to read as follows:

SMNMBZNERANEE —REARBIRIEAR A ZIRESETHT!

4.2
follows:

Franchisee shall pay a total amount of % ) in United States
Dollars, which includes Franchise Fee for the first two (2) TPTEA Shops to be
located in the Development Area; an amount of Fifty Thousand ($50,000) in United
States Dollars as Technology Transfer Fee; and an amount of _ ($) in United States
Dollars per Store as Expansion Fee after the second TPTEA Shop within the
designated region (Franchise Fee, Technology Transfer Fee and Expansion Fee
are hereinafter refer as the *“Area Franchise Fee”) to the bank account designated
by Franchisor. During the Term, Franchisee may not claim any refund on the Area
Franchise Fee on a pro rata basis based on duration of Term or number of Stores,
no matter whether sole license according to Paragraph 1 of Article 3 is terminated
or not. If Franchisor terminates this Agreement because Franchisee breaches this
Agreement, Franchisee does not have any right to demand refund of the Area
Franchise Fee in whole or in part.

BIRBA BT EEEE (US$ ) ERBAIEEZIRIT
kP, RPBREREEHENE = (2) @ XEEFIEZRES. [KifiZE
&/ £2{aEr (US$50,000) , NRKRIEEEANFRE=BX5EFIE
E, BEFIEFEXNZRERESES (US$ ) (REZ.
RITBBERRERETXTEE [EERES] ). REOHERN, #im
MBEZRIE =MFFE — TR S IRER B, RIRBEA T AR IEAIH
EREHFIEHEZE, ZILOIBELRBEELRES. WEAERENELM
ERBEANAURNE, BIRBATFEKIBIE ERES 2 HE—Eb.

Paragraph 2 of Article 3 of each Franchise Agreement shall be amended to read as

SMMBZNEE=GE_FKETHAT:

1609109170.4

Franchisee must only propose a site for its Store within the Development Area
specified in the Multi-unit Franchise Rider. Once Franchisee becomes aware of
an available site during the Term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall submit the



site for Franchisor’s consideration immediately and provide Franchisor with all
required information about the site. Franchisee shall also meanwhile provide a
copy of the lease or purchase agreement for Franchisor’s review and record.
Franchisor will provide Franchisee with written notice of approval or disapproval
of the site within ten (10) business days upon receiving all documentation and
information related to the site. Franchisee may not begin any construction on the
site until Franchisor has approved such site in writing. In any event, Franchisee
shall, within sixty (60) calendar days from the execution of this Agreement, identify
and propose the site for the Store, and open the Store for business to the public in
accordance with the Development Schedule as set forth in the Multi-unit Franchise
Rider. If Franchisee fails to comply with either requirement, Franchisor shall be
entitled to terminate this Agreement immediately without further notice.

BIRENERE T ZIE ik & TIEEZ RIEE SN IR FIEHE . HKARZZIE
IR, BRIEA A TR G Z 18, B BT 2 AR A X R,
WIRHITE B R Z LB Bill. BIRBARFFERH—HEEE
HHZHARREANERR B 7. REANSTREITEBRZIHE X R
&M 1E .2 +(10) 18 T EH X E B AR ENE B R R %S . #
RIEAN R XEE IR EET, HIRBEAN TR Z AR IE(T LR IE,
AT, BIRTEN FBS IR 3% 2 K Widk 12 75 +1(60) 181 H B H P 12 5 IE R TR IR
BAFRRER, WHIEEZIE 5 E N2 RIEaEERFRIL 2\ FIEEZ
EXEH, ERILTEZE, REANFELRIUEARZHITESITEA.

5. Development Franchisee Rights. Franchisee expressly agrees that only if Franchisee
meets all the three (3) requirements stated below shall it be qualified and eligible to discuss with
Franchisor about the opportunity of conducting the development franchisee business by entering
into the Development Franchisee Rider: (1) Franchisor confirms that within __ years following
the Effective Date, Franchisee has consistently obtained equal or more than 75 points per annual
evaluation of the Renewal Assessment Report as listed in Appendix 2 of the Franchise
Agreements; (2) Franchisor confirms that Franchisee has complied with the Development
Schedule and all Stores opened remain open; and (3) Franchisor confirms that Franchisee has
possessed sufficient operational capacity as a headquarter (including, but not limited to,
operational management, training, and logistics management, etc.) to manage the number of Stores
as required in the Area Development Plan. If Franchisee meets all the conditions stated above,
Franchisee will be required to sign Franchisor’s then-current form of Development Franchisee
Rider.

T, FERBEIREAER: U EARERR, ERTEUT= 3) BEREEXE, T&
BEREREARBARE (RRUEIREAMRTTZR)  SRRNARBRREGREAZ
#e (1) CREAER BENHE __ 0, #REAREBFEFEZEHESAEMF
% GFRMBRQOSHMAZ) | FEE SN LEE, (2 EREAER, PREANEST
RIEETE, BEFFAERRZMIENIFESE, Q) EREAER, WREARBIESES
ZRDEERN (BREFRKEEETE. ABRIRYREES)  NUEEESRER
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ETMANEREZ G, ERREATE LRMBHRG, MAZSRENRHZERSEX
z (FBRBEGEIREANBRE) -

6. Transfer Restrictions. Franchisee understands and agrees that Franchisor has entered into
this Agreement in reliance on Franchisee’s promise and commitment to establish and operate the
required number of Stores, and that as a result, Franchisee agrees that it would not be unreasonable
for Franchisor to withhold its consent to a transfer of some, but not all, of the Franchise
Agreements separate from one another, and in any case, separate from the rights set forth under
this Rider (if this Rider has not at the time of a proposed transfer either expired or terminated).

N EGRRRE): pOREANERYER, REARERERENAKEBETHREEENER
B2 MR, MBEHEFEARTAGR. Fit, #FEARR, SERENRZRERBTE
FeMzBERBGE NAEABERH RN —BEZ ARBAERLIRF
WEHEZR, BZFAAHFLEARABRAGENTS (BAMRNERRERSEARIARILL) .

7. Default and Termination. Franchisee be in default under this Rider if Franchisee does
not meet its obligations under the Development Schedule or in Section 2 above, or if any other
agreement between Franchisee (and/or any of Franchisee’s affiliates) and Franchisor (and/or any
of Franchisor’s affiliates) is terminated. If Franchisee is in default under this Rider, Franchisor
will have the right to terminate this Rider by giving Franchisee written notice of termination, which
will take effect immediately (unless otherwise required under applicable law), or otherwise
terminate all of the Franchise Agreements in accordance with the terms of the Franchise
Agreements.

+. ERERZIL ERBREAREBRTREF SN LR _MAIIZ R, SHIREA
(RIFBPIREAZRRDLRK) HREN (REREAZMELSE) BREFTEMTEZE
WHZE, RIEAWREARN., EHIRENEYN, REAGHBBEERBMEIREALLE
Kk, &EABMBELZHEZIEN (RIFERBRZERFEK) |, SUREMER
RNERRREZ LA MNE A,

8. Effect. This Rider constitutes the entire, full, and complete agreement between the parties
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior agreements. This Rider is an integral
part of the Franchise Agreements. Except as provided in this Rider, the Franchise Agreements
remain in full force and effect as originally written. If there is any inconsistency between the
Franchise Agreements and this Rider, this Rider’s terms will control. This Rider is to be executed
in both English and Chinese language, both of which are with the same legal validity. In case of
any discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.

N BN KB T 2B EBRENGE, TIARE LRI R0, KinE
SMBAZNEATRO—ID . RABZEABLOES, RMBZAZTNATEER. M
BENZHRA R BHFEERTA—BZE, BNARBEZIGERSE. Kip@zh. EX
RABEHEARFZEARENS, . IRXAFRERE, NPXAE,
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Dated this

FISHE 20 F

day of
H

EO

, 20

TPTEA USA INC.

ByiZERIEA:

Title/BEFE:

Date/ HER:

[FRANCHISEE/#1SHEA]

ByAERIEA:

Title/BEFE:

Date/HER:

1609109170.4




Exhibit A/BfiE A

Development Area/BIEELE:

Development Schedule/EB[EFTEE:

Store Number/PSE455E Opening Deadline/Fa[EHAR
TPTEA USA INC. [FRANCHISEE/#1SHEA]
By/iZEIEA: By/iZERIEA:

Title/BRE: Title/BEFS:

Date/ HH: Date/ HH:

Exhibit A
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Exhibit C

Directory of Administrative Agencies

TPTEA USA

March 2025 FDD
1619321197.3



STATE AGENCIES/AGENTS
FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

Listed here are the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the state agencies having
responsibility for the franchising disclosure/registration laws. We may not yet be registered to
sell franchises in any or all of these states.

If a state is not listed, we have not appointed an agent for service of process in that state in
connection with the requirements of the franchise laws. There may be states in addition to those
listed below in which we have appointed an agent for service of process.

There also may be additional agents appointed in some of the states listed.

CALIFORNIA

Website: www.dfpi.ca.gov
Email: ask.DFPl@dfpi.ca.gov

(for service of process)

Commissioner of Department of Financial

Protection & Innovation

(state franchise administrator)
Department of Financial Protection &
Innovation

Toll Free: 1 (866) 275-2677

Los Angeles
320 West 4" Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, California 90013-2344
(213) 576-7500

Sacramento
651 Bannon Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, California 95811
(916) 576-4941

San Diego
1455 Frazee Road, Suite 315
San Diego, California 92108
(619) 525-4233

San Francisco
One Sansome Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, California 94104-4428
(415) 972-8559

HAWAII
(for service of process)

Commissioner of Securities
Department of Commerce

and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
(808) 586-2722

(for other matters)

Commissioner of Securities
Department of Commerce

and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division
335 Merchant Street, Room 205
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS

Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, 1llinois 62706
(217) 782-4465



INDIANA
(for service of process)

Indiana Secretary of State
201 State House

200 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6531

(state agency)

Indiana Secretary of State
Securities Division

Room E-111

302 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6681

MARYLAND
(for service of process)

Maryland Securities Commissioner
at the Office of Attorney General-
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021
(410) 576-6360

(state agency)

Office of the Attorney General-
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021
(410) 576-6360

MICHIGAN

Michigan Attorney General’s Office
Consumer Protection Division

Attn: Franchise Section

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor
525 West Ottawa Street

Lansing, Michigan 48933

(517) 335-7567

MINNESOTA

Commissioner of Commerce
Department of Commerce
85 7" Place East, Suite 280
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
(651) 539-1500

NEW YORK
(for service of process)

Attention: New York Secretary of State
New York Department of State

One Commerce Plaza,

99 Washington Avenue, 6™ Floor
Albany, New York 12231-0001

(518) 473-2492

(Administrator)

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21 Floor
New York, New York 10005
(212) 416-8236

NORTH DAKOTA

(for service of process)

Securities Commissioner

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol, 14" Floor, Dept. 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712

(state agency)

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue, Suite 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505

(701) 328-2910



OREGON

Oregon Division of Financial Regulation
350 Winter Street NE, Suite 410

Salem, Oregon 97301

(503) 378-4140

RHODE ISLAND

Securities Division

Department of Business Regulations
1511 Pontiac Avenue

John O. Pastore Complex-Building 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

(401) 462-9500

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501
(605) 773-3563

VIRGINIA
(for service of process)

Clerk, State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street

First Floor

Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9733

(for other matters)

State Corporation Commission

Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
Tyler Building, 9th Floor

1300 East Main Street

Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9051

WASHINGTON

(for service of process)

Director Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, Washington 98501

(360) 902-8760

(for other matters)

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

P. O. Box 41200

Olympia, Washington 98504-1200
(360) 902-8760

WISCONSIN
(for service of process)

Administrator, Division of Securities
Department of Financial Institutions
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, Wisconsin 53705

(608) 266-2139

(state administrator)

Division of Securities

Department of Financial Institutions
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, Wisconsin 53705

(608) 266-9555



Exhibit D

State-Specific Addenda to the Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement

NO WAIVER OR DISCLAIMER OF RELIANCE IN CERTAIN STATES

The following provision applies only to franchisees and franchises that are subject to the state franchise
registration/disclosure laws in California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New
York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, or Wisconsin:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by you in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or
(ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by us, any franchise seller, or any other
person acting on our behalf. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.

TPTEA USA

March 2025 FDD
1619321197.3



ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES FOR THE
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT OF
TPTEA USA INC.

The following are additional disclosures for the Franchise Disclosure Document of
TPTEA USA INC. required by various state franchise laws. Each provision of these
additional disclosures will not apply unless, with respect to that provision, the jurisdictional
requirements of the applicable state franchise registration and disclosure law are met
independently without reference to these additional disclosures.

ILLINOIS

1. The following statements are added at the end of Item 17:

Except for the Federal Arbitration Act that applies to arbitration, Illinois law
governs the Franchise Agreement.

In conformance with Section 4 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any
provision in a franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in
a forum outside of the State of lllinois is void. However, a franchise
agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

Franchisees’ rights upon termination and non-renewal are set forth in
Sections 19 and 20 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any
condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring
any franchise to waive compliance with the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act
or any other law of lllinois is void.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by
you in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship
shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by us, any franchise seller, or any other person
acting on our behalf. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.

MARYLAND

1.

The following language is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of

Item 17(c), titled Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend, and Item 17(m), titled
Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer:

TPTEA | 2025 State Addenda
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Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer
will not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.

2. The following language is added to the end of the “Summary” section of
Item 17(h), titled “Cause” defined — non-curable defaults:

Termination upon insolvency might not be enforceable under federal
bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq.), but we will enforce it to the
extent enforceable.

3. The “Summary” section of Item 17(v), titled Choice of forum, is amended to
read as follows:

Subject to your arbitration obligation, and to the extent required by the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, you may bring an
action in Maryland.

4. The “Summary” section of Item 17(w), titled Choice of law, is amended to
read as follows:

Law of the Republic of China (Taiwan) governs except for Federal
Arbitration Act, other federal law, and claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

5. The following paragraphs are added to the end of Item 17:

You must bring any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law within 3 years after the grant of the
franchise.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by
you in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship
shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by us, any franchise seller, or any other person
acting on our behalf. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.

MINNESOTA
1. The following paragraph is added to the end of Item 13:

We will indemnify you against and reimburse you for all damages for which
you are held liable in any proceeding arising out of your use of any Mark

TPTEA | 2025 State Addenda
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pursuant to and in compliance with the Agreement, and for all costs you
reasonably incur in defending any such claim brought against you or in any
such proceeding in which you are named as a party, provided that you have
timely notified us of such claim or proceeding and have otherwise complied
with the Agreement.

2.

The following language is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of

Item 17(c), titled Requirements for franchisee to renew or_extend, and Item 17(m),
titted Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer by franchisee:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer
will not apply to the extent prohibited by the Minnesota Franchises Law.

3. The following paragraphs are added to the end of Item 17:

For franchises governed by the Minnesota Franchises Law, we will comply
with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require, except in
certain specified cases, that you be given 90 days’ notice of termination
(with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the franchise
agreement.

Minnesota law provides that no action may be commenced pursuant to
Minn. Stat. Section 80C.17 more than three (3) years after the cause of
action accrues. Minn. Stat. Section 80C.17, subd. 5.

Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J)
prohibit us from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota,
requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring you to consent to liquidated
damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in
the Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate or reduce any of your
rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or your rights to
any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the
jurisdiction. However, we and you will enforce these provisions in the
Agreement to the extent the law allows.

The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief.
The franchisor may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J.
Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(K) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a
security deposit except for the purpose of securing against damage to
property, equipment, inventory, or leaseholds.

TPTEA | 2025 State Addenda
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No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by
you in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship
shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by us, any franchise seller, or any other person
acting on our behalf. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.

NEW YORK

1.

The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise

Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL
THE STATE ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT C OR YOUR
PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR RESOURCES OR INFORMATION.
REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES
NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS
VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN ANYTHING IN THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL
TRADE COMMISSION AND THE APPROPRIATE STATE OR
PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY.

THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU
ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE
NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS THAT ARE LESS FAVORABLE
THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT.

2. The following language is added to the end of Item 3 of the Franchise
Disclosure Document:

Except as provided above, the following applies to the franchisor, its
predecessor, a person identified in Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises
under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending
against that person alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise,
antitrust or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent
conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive
practices, or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

4
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B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation
incidental to the business that is significant in the context of the
number of franchisees and the size, nature or financial condition of
the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo
contendere to a felony charge or, within the 10-years immediately
preceding the application for registration, has been convicted of or
pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the
subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or
securities law; fraud; embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or
misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or
comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or
restrictive order or decree relating to the franchise, or under a
Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade
regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or
pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is
subject to any currently effective order of any national securities
association or national securities exchange, as defined in the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such
person from membership in such association or exchange; or is
subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating
to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a
public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions
affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.

3. The following is added to the end of Item 5:

The initial franchise fee constitutes part of our general operating funds and
will be used as such in our discretion.

4. The following language is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of
Item 17(c), titled Requirements for a franchisee to renew or extend, and Item 17(m), titled
Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and
any causes of action arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33
of the General Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations
issued thereunder shall remain in force; this proviso intends that the
non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687(4) and 687(5)
be satisfied.
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5. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of ltem 17(d) of the
Franchise Disclosure Document, titled Termination by franchisee:

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

6. The following language is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of
Item 17(v), titled Choice of forum, and Item 17(w), titled Choice of law:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right
conferred the franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General
Business Law of the State of New York.

7. Franchise Questionnaires and Acknowledgements. No statement,
guestionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of
any document executed in connection with the franchise.

8. Receipts. Any sale made must be in compliance with 8 683(8) of the
Franchise Sale Act (N.Y. Gen. Bus. L. 8 680 et seq.), which describes the time period a
Franchise Disclosure Document (offering prospectus) must be provided to a prospective
franchisee before a sale may be made. New York law requires a franchisor to provide the
Franchise Disclosure Document at the earliest of the first personal meeting, ten (10)
business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement, or the payment
of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

VIRGINIA

1. The following language is added to the end of the “Summary” section of
Item 17(h), titled “Cause” defined — non-curable defaults:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is
unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If
any grounds for default or termination stated in the Franchise Agreement
do not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the
Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision might
not be enforceable.

2. The following paragraph is added to the end of Item 17:
No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by

you in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship
shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state
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franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by us, any franchise seller, or any other person
acting on our behalf. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.
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THE FOLLOWING PAGES IN THIS EXHIBIT ARE
STATE-SPECIFIC RIDERS TO THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

UTEES (MBZAE) 8IS M45E M I0ER
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RIDER TO THE TPTEA USA INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
STATE OF ILLINOIS

iRy IS A ESE ez ED)

THIS RIDER is made between TPTEA USA INC., a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of Delaware with a principal place of business at 919 North Market
Street, Suite 950 Wilmington, DE 19801 (we, our, “TPTEA USA” or the “Franchisor”) and
, @ company organized and existing under the laws of ___ with
a principal place of business at (you, your, or the
“Franchisee”).

M ONMRFRER TPTEA USA INC. ( BUR# "TPTEA USA, B8 "#REA L ) - BR
BEBERNANEZRERUTFEZ AT - FEZFMEAMUMR 919 North Market Street,

Suite 950, Wilmington, DE 19801 - £4 (BUhHE THIEEEAL ) - &
R 1Z FERRBUNLGFEZAT  TEEEMBMN
N - HEETIL -

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise
Agreement dated (the “Franchise Agreement”).
This Rider is being signed because (a) any of the franchise offer or sales activity relating
to the Franchise Agreement occurred, and the TPTEA Tea Shop you will operate under
the Franchise Agreement will be located, in lllinois, or (b) you are a resident of Illinois.

1B RMERS (MBROF) (MUME "TMAEAZKNE, ) 2/ - ZH
EAmp LY » KMFERZZZBGERUTNRA : (a) BRE (NEZHE)
FRASERY TPTEA REUER R IR FREEN | = (b) TP K (MBRNE) WEFFEE

BRNHE R B EFPREEMNREE -

2. The following language is added to the end of the Franchise Agreement:
2. PUMERGRHIER (MBRHE) 2

GOVERNING LAW. Except for the Federal Arbitration Act that applies to
arbitration, Illinois law governs this Agreement.

BRLERR. BRPEA (BFHER) BEIN - TENRPENEFNEEEE -

CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a franchise agreement that
designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois
is void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take
place outside of lllinois.
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SEEBREZRAE. KB (FAEFMNEFEERER) % 4 1% - EUEFAEE
arhiEE R EFMNIMEEFR T ABE s F AR IR BER - M -
R 25N AER PR FMNUINETTMPE, -

WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES AND JURY TRIAL. No waiver shall
apply to the extent prohibited by Section 705/41 of the Illinois Franchise
Disclosure Act of 1987 or lllinois Regulations At Section 260.609.

BOMBEAREREAZES. KB (1987 ERFNEFMNFBHFEEREZL) 5
705/41 R R PRGEFMNERS 260.609 RRE - HAERRL - AIEHIREUREE
FEEEEHNRRIRTIOATER -

3. ILLINOIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE ACT. The following language is
added as a new Article 35 of the Franchise Agreement:

3. FHEFNEFFESREXREEER. ME2REE5485 35 R

o

Article 35.  ILLINOIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE ACT

In conformance with Section 41 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any
condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring
any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Act or any other
law of lllinois is void. However, that Section shall not prevent any person
from entering into a settlement agreement or executing a general release
regarding a potential or actual lawsuit filed under any provision of the Act,
nor shall it prevent the arbitration of any claim pursuant to the provisions of
Title 9 of the United States Code.

% 35 1% : (FRFEFNIFFESHEE)

g (PRREPMNEFLZREZE) 5 41 F - HUEENREIAKERE
ANEZEE B RS FINEM AR RERR - IREAEIBEX - KM -
RERELAZEES AR NN (FRHEEREZR) HErE
ERERERRARE—RERERZ ; W - AMRINARZERE (ZEDA
E) 5 9 RATARERNMHER -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider, to
be effective as of the date set forth next to our signature below.

747800 - EHERBWRNAMIER - BARAXHPRHMBZ[ZhE HHREEN -
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B8 75 /Franchisor: TPTEA USA INC.
& 30 #m 5K /Unified Business Number :

=B A /Authorized Representative: £]|Z 33/ Yen-Pang Liu

B ECPTE M /Registered Address: 919 North Market Street, Suite 950
Wilmington, DE 19801

BFH#H ( LERIRIE ) /Official Email:
HER/Date:

Z, 73 /Franchisee:
830 45K /Unified Business Number :

7ETE IR A /Authorized Representative::

& RO P #E 3 /Registered Address:
B EH ( NFERMRSR ) /Official Email:
HHf/Date:
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RIDER TO THE TPTEA USA INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
STATE OF MARYLAND

INEESLEF AR (GEEUBARRID

THIS RIDER is made between TPTEA USA INC., a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of Delaware with a principal place of business at 919 North Market
Street, Suite 950 Wilmington, DE 19801 (we, our, “TPTEA USA” or the “Franchisor”) and
, @ company organized and existing under the laws of ___ with
a principal place of business at (you, your, or the
“Franchisee”).

M ONMRFRER TPTEA USA INC. ( BUR# "TPTEA USA, B8 "#REA L ) - BR
BEBERNANEZRERUTFEZ AT - FEZFMEAMUMR 919 North Market Street,

Suite 950, Wilmington, DE 19801 - £4 (BUhHE THIEEEAL ) - &
R 1Z FERRBUNLGFEZAT  TEEEMBMN
N - HEETIL -

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise
Agreement dated (the “Franchise Agreement”).
This Rider is being signed because (a) you are a resident of Maryland; or (b) the TPTEA
Tea Shop you will operate under the Franchise Agreement will be located in Maryland.

18R BMPEGS (NEZKE) (MUME "INEZHE. ) 2G0T - 2
= HES » RIFMMIRRZZZBGRERLTNRA : (a) BRE (MMBERZLHE)
FRECERY TPTEA SREVER BRI R BEBIMN ; 2 (b) T8 & (MMBERLYE) HRERFEE
BHNHETHBEFTERMEE -

2. The following language is added to the end of the Franchise Agreement:
2. PUMERGREFIER (MBRLYE) 2

RELEASES. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, such general release
required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall
not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.

REIFR. RE (FEFMNER) (COMAR) 5 02.02.08.16L FZRE -

FRER ~ HER/NERIRGFIERNEM—MURERNR - B9RERR
(RERMMNEAEE0HEREL) IRSBNETIEME -
GOVERNING LAW. To the extent required by applicable law, Maryland law

will apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.
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PRUTERN RS RE A B EREINERE -

CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. Subject to your arbitration obligations, you
may bring an action in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

SZEREZAR. EE8THHEFOARY - Ao EFERENRESR (B
ERMFERHEEEREKTES) MERRERA -

LIMITATION OF CLAIMS. Any and all claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three (3)
years after the grant of the Franchise.

REEVORE. EERE (SEFNGHEESCHEKTEL) RENRE -
HARFBHEERTE= (3) FRREE -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider, to
be effective as of the date set forth next to our signature below.

747800 - EHERBWRNAMIER - BARAXHPRHMBZ[ZhE HBHEEN -

B8 75 /Franchisor: TPTEA USA INC.

8 30 4R 5K /Unified Business Number :
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7EE I A /Authorized Representative: £]|Z 33/ Yen-Pang Liu

B ECPTE I /Registered Address: 919 North Market Street, Suite 950
Wilmington, DE 19801

B #H4 (LRIRSR ) /Official Email:
HER/Date:

Z, 73 /Franchisee:
830 45K /Unified Business Number :

7ETE IR A /Authorized Representative::

& RCFT#E 3 /Registered Address:
B EHF ( NERMRSR ) /Official Email:
HHi/Date:
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RIDER TO THE TPTEA USA INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
STATE OF MINNESOTA

MBEZLAEMIER ( ZEREFEM )

THIS RIDER is made between TPTEA USA INC., a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of Delaware with a principal place of business at 919 North Market
Street, Suite 950 Wilmington, DE 19801 (we, our, “TPTEA USA” or the “Franchisor”) and
, @ company organized and existing under the laws of __ with
a principal place of business at (you, your, or the
“Franchisee”).

M INRFRER TPTEA USA INC. ( LURHE "TPTEA USA, 8¢ "##EA L ) - &R
BEBERAUANEZRERUTFEZ AT - EEZEFMFAMUR 919 North Market Street,

Suite 950, Wilmington, DE 19801 - £2 (UM THIEAL ) - &
e FRERULGFEZAT  TEEEMENU
N - HEETAL -

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise
Agreement dated (the “Franchise Agreement”).
This Rider is being signed because (a) the TPTEA Tea Shop you will operate under the
Franchise Agreement will be located in Minnesota, or (b) any of the franchise offer or
sales activity relating to the Franchise Agreement occurred in Minnesota.

1. BE: RMARASE (NERWE) (LUNE "TNERNE, ) /A7
2z g H S c AR ZZEGERLTNRA : (a) BRE (IIBEEZL
£) PTEER TPTEA REUERSRIRBBEFHFEM ; 3 (b) HEH K (MBRLNE) BF

MRERNNHE R B EREREMNRE -

2. The following language is added to the end of the Franchise Agreement:
2. PUMERGRHIER (MBRIE) %

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any general release shall not apply to the
extent prohibited by the Minnesota Franchises Law.

REE DIRE - REEEERERSEAR (BREENEE
23%) IR ER -

The Franchisor agrees to indemnify you against and to reimburse you for
all damages for which it is held liable in any proceeding arising out of its
authorized use of any Mark pursuant to and in compliance with this
Agreement, and for all costs reasonably incurred by you in the defense of
any such claim brought against him or in any such proceeding in which he
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is named as a party, provided that you has timely notified the Franchisor of
such claim or proceeding and has otherwise complied with this Agreement.

REABBHLETEEIHERNEKBEABZZREERITUBERMES
WEARBEFPHRHBCERAENAARERE LHECRSEHETEHH
BHNRBAESRCNEEEFTAEEEENEER - IIRELZE X
RBMREAZREIERER  WEBIT A HENHEBRE

Minnesota law provides you with certain termination and non-renewal
rights. Minn. Stat. Section 80C.14, subd. 3, 4 and 5 require, except in
certain specified cases, that you be given ninety (90) days’ notice of
termination (with sixty (60) days to cure) and one hundred eighty (180) days’
notice for non-renewal of this Agreement.

HREHENZER FEREENRILEABNER - (HEHFENZEZE) 3
80C.14 1% 34 & 5 PR E - RELERFEBE NI - LLEKRBZERBIRRN
T (90) XEBHE (BRREMEN+ (60 ) RIBMEAR ) - MABLRIAE
RAI—8/\+ (180 ) XRBEHMA -

Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J)
prohibit the Franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside
Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring you to consent to
liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition,
nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate
or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter

80C or your rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the
laws of the jurisdiction.

(ARFERRZEMIEAR) 55 80C.21 &K (BR/EEFZEMARRI) 2860.4400()) ™
ZIEEEANZKFRERERREMMINETT  BIEERKWEREAWZEREE
BHE WBEAEREADSACEERES  KISRISHRES - IE
Oh - (PR ZEBEXM) 3011775 19 A 15 BUHE 3URL D #IR 8 A MKIE
(AREFZENLZR) 3 80C EMEAMEMIEAN - SR ERETEEAMKIES
FEBRAEMEANTORER - FEBEBERUEE -

Minnesota law provides that no action may be commenced pursuant to

Minn. Stat. Section 80C.17 more than three (3) years after the cause of
action accrues. Minn. Stat. Section 80C.17, subd. 5.

RRERRENARERE - RIB (BERENZER) 55 80C.17 1% - ABHEERE
AR ERBA= (3) FRRENRL - (AEFENER) 5 80C.17 17

BES5H e
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No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by
a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise
seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with
the franchise.

EOURFAFNBEIERZUGHEESEGBRETIRENAENETER - BE
gIERE  AREEMUFUR : () HERBERONGFEEIAEDRVE
WREE - BEEFENFFMEENRE ; = (i) ERBEEAREA - HFFE
SHETUNRREATSHNEMALIERANERE - AMEFBETER
REFFAEMRBENEMUERZI X PROE MR -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider, to
be effective as of the date set forth next to our signature below.

7458 0H - EHERBWRNAMIER - BAXHPRMBZ[ZhE HHREEN -

B8 75 /Franchisor: TPTEA USA INC.
& 30 #m 5K /Unified Business Number :

=B A /Authorized Representative: £]|Z 33/ Yen-Pang Liu

B 5CPTE It /Registered Address: 919 North Market Street, Suite 950
Wilmington, DE 19801

B #H4 (RIRSR ) /Official Email:
HER/Date:

Z, 73 /Franchisee:
830 4R 5IE /Unified Business Number :

7ETE IR A /Authorized Representative::

B ECPT1E ) /Registered Address:
B FH#4 ( LFRMRSE ) /Official Email:
HHf/Date:
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RIDER TO THE TPTEA USA INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
STATE OF NEW YORK

JijikZE2 N E Sy IS ESE i

THIS RIDER is made between TPTEA USA INC., a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of Delaware with a principal place of business at 919 North Market
Street, Suite 950 Wilmington, DE 19801 (we, our, “TPTEA USA” or the “Franchisor”) and
, @ company organized and existing under the laws of ___ with
a principal place of business at (you, your, or the
“Franchisee”).

M AN TPTEA USA INC. ( LAR#E "TPTEA USA L ¢ "#B#EA L ) - &R
BEBENEMNERRUITFE AT - TESHEMEMUR 919 North Market Street,

Suite 950, Wilmington, DE 19801 - £4 (UM THEAL ) -
R 1Z ERRBULGFEZAS - IE**$1m251ﬂ
N - HEETIL -

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise
Agreement dated (the “Franchise Agreement”).
This Rider is being signed because (a) you are a resident of New York and the TPTEA
Tea Shop you will operate under the Franchise Agreement will be located in New York,
and/or (b) any of the franchise offer or sales activity occurred in New York.

1. BR: ZMEEGS (NEROZ) (UME "TNHEZNE, ) 2407
FAGEARE RS c AR ZZEGRERUTNRA : ()EHRAKNMNEER
HRE (NBRHNE) Fr&Er0 TPTEA REUSRERIIRAKIM ; =t (b) Fe% & (N8
LHAE) WREAKEENNHETS S EAIMEE -

2. RELEASES. The following language is added to the end of the Franchise
Agreement:

2. REEX:UMNAEHEZ (NMERYE) & .

Notwithstanding the foregoing, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General
Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued
thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of the proviso that the
non-waiver provisions of GBL 687 and 687.5 be satisfied.

FEAH LR E - GRE (BON—RBE2EEX) F 33 RAEMRIERMN
SERMAERN - DUKRZARREMEEREARAENDESEER ;

TPTEA | 2025 STATE ADDENDA/RIDERS
1619683428.5



AEEERRTE (AAOMN—REFE) 5 687 IR A 687.5 FRPRIIEEA

ZN G
RIRK -

3. TRANSFER BY US. The following language is added to the end of the
Franchise Agreement:

3. EREAREERE DIMIRGREE (MBRZ0E) &

To the extent required by applicable law, no transfer will be made except to
an assignee who, in our good faith judgment, is willing and able to assume
our obligations under this Agreement.

EBERZRERNEEA - RIFZZFJALRMBOFAE - BRI AR JEIE
Kipek FRUERTS - BRIANETETEE -

4, TERMINATION BY YOU. The following language is added to the end of the
Franchise Agreement:

4.  RIREARRIERE . LMESIFEZE (MEBERNE) &

You may terminate this Agreement on any grounds available by law under
the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York.

walicis (RN —REEER) F 33 RNRE - £EAELFFETER
MELEXRHZ -

5. GOVERNING LAW/CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. The following
language is added at the end of the Franchise Agreement:

5. ERZ/EEEERE: UMNMIREEE (MBZVE) &

To the extent required by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the
State of New York, nothing in this Franchise Agreement shall be considered
a waiver of any right conferred upon you by the provisions of Article 33 of
the General Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations
issued thereunder.

£ (4L —fpEsEiL) 38 33 RAMRENEREER - K& (MBEZKHZE)
PHREMTATEIABRARNE (AAOM—RBEZHEZEX) F 33 KREOREMU
FARBZOERMBE R IR F R E R -

6. LIMITATION OF CLAIMS. The following sentence is added to the end of
the Franchise Agreement:
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6. REERIPRE : LUNMERFTIEE (MBRLNE) & -

To the extent required by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the
State of New York, all rights and any causes of action arising in your favor
from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State
of New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it
being the intent of this provision that the non-waiver provisions of GBL
Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

£ (RO —MBEFEZE) F 33 RFIRERNERSER - SHKkE (ALZM
—REFEER) % 33 RREMEZRFAEBRFAAEREN - DIREZERR
EMEENEURKEIBREFBEN - TMEREERERTS (AN —KE
¥E) % 6874 18K 687.5 PR AT REIRM -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider, to
be effective as of the date set forth next to our signature below.

ZZFER - EHERBURNAMIMNER - BERAXHPRMZLZ RS HREEN -

B8 75 /Franchisor: TPTEA USA INC.
830 45K /Unified Business Number :

A& TE G E2 A /Authorized Representative: 2IZ#/ Yen-Pang Liu

& 0P 1E it /Registered Address: 919 North Market Street, Suite 950
Wilmington, DE 19801

BE#H4 (RIRSE ) /Official Email:
HHA/Date:

7,73 /Franchisee:
& 30 #m 5K /Unified Business Number :

SETE I A /Authorized Representative::

& RCFT#E 3 /Registered Address:
B EHF ( NEFERMRSR ) /Official Email:
HHj/Date:
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND ALL RELATED AGREEMENTS

(ISRHEEREXH) - (MBREAE) KFATHHEE 795 I0ERR
( =BIZEREIANM )

The provisions of this Addendum form an integral part of, are incorporated into, and
modify the Franchise Disclosure Document, the franchise agreement, and all related
agreements regardless of anything to the contrary contained therein. This Addendum
applies if: (a) the offer to sell a franchise is accepted in Washington; (b) the purchaser
of the franchise is a resident of Washington; and/or (c) the franchised business that is
the subject of the sale is to be located or operated, wholly or partly, in Washington.

i

N

EEFEMERAE - AWMERBRARUNER : (a) BAAAEHEZENEERBEMK
%%, (b) A EEREARERBIMNER | K/ (o) FRABEERNNAEFEEREE
ERSER D IR B R IEINEE -

it

AMIMEFTORE (BRFEEBEXH) - (NBRKE) KFEHERE  BEwmERNE

HA

1. Conflict of Laws. In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, chapter 19.100 RCW will
prevail.

1. BHRHZER: EREFEER A (ZRENEFEEREREE) ( (EEBEM
BRl)A#) 5 19.100 & ) ZIREEELER -

2. Franchisee Bill of Rights. RCW 19.100.180 may supersede provisions in the
franchise agreement or related agreements concerning your relationship with
the franchisor, including in the areas of termination and renewal of your
franchise. There may also be court decisions that supersede the franchise
agreement or related agreements concerning your relationship with the
franchisor. Franchise agreement provisions, including those summarized in
Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document, are subject to state law.

2. HEEFMBEZEN. (FERBEMBFDEE) 5 19.100.180 K oJse@ e (A
ZHE) NAEHRPRBEEREARGRORR  SEFHEENKIEREEY -
UE45h - INaEEF AR FOR - BRBEAR (MBZNE) S HE mHH QR R E
NGRS - MBZWERN ( BF (BHEEB\EXH) 5 17 BB
B ) BERTENERRE -

3. Site _of Arbitration, Mediation, and/or_Litigation. In any arbitration or
mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually
agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the
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arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if
litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a_franchisee may bring
an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises,
or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in
Washington.

3. (PE - ARK/HEFAEEM: NS REERBRNEE ZRIFEERMEER
B hHNGERINFRESEREMN  NMHNBARERES KRR E ZME -
AP EEEEN MR ARSIEE Zith e - U5 - W (MBRNZE) K%
LEERFA - IR A D EERBMNM G EEHENER (EREMNGFEER
BERER) FrsliEZaRahs AR R IR EEARAL -

4. General Release. A release or waiver of rights in the franchise agreement or
related agreements purporting to bind the franchisee to waive compliance with
any provision under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or
any rules or orders thereunder is void except when executed pursuant to a
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties
are represented by independent counsel, in accordance with RCW
19.100.220(2). In addition, any such release or waiver executed in connection
with a renewal or transfer of a franchise is likewise void except as provided
for in RCW 19.100.220(2).

4. —BRE: 7 (MEBEZHE) AEBRE PP LA IR SRR NERR
MEBARBREANREST (ZRBENFHLEREREE) NEARRFRA A
MR TE - RIREREY  RIFZERIAMNEBLRERRENE - KBHEER
MA@ S ETBEEHFIIRBINAEBENRNBER T - TS (FEAEM
B5]AH) 5 19.100.220(2) HRHIRE - b - EOIESFHKE B EEHERE
RREREVAE - TMEREN - [RIFFT (EXBEMEFTARE) 5 19.100.220(2)
IRAIBIINRTE -

5. Statute of Limitations and Waiver of Jury Trial. Provisions contained in the
franchise agreement or related agreements that unreasonably restrict or limit the
statute of limitations period for claims under the Washington Franchise Investment

Protection Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial,
may not be enforceable.

5. FrEARSHEBEFHEZHE:. (MHEZOE) SEEBRPIER - OAGHE
i PRFI S AR IR B (ERBEMNFIIEERERER) MR DREARARIERE -
S IRFIRIBZZZBNENERE (HINEEEHE ) - RIZRROBERNY -
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6. Transfer Fees. Transfer fees are collectable only to the extent that they reflect the
franchisor’'s reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

6. BEEREER: BEEENWEERRREAEETERBEPSENBRMUBERAR

BEA -

7. Termination by Franchisee. The franchisee may terminate the franchise
agreement under any grounds permitted under state law.

7. HIEEARINE. ®WEREAKBMNEAZAFNEMEBZL (NERZNE)

8. Certain_Buy-Back Provisions. Provisions in franchise agreements or related
agreements that permit the franchisor to repurchase the franchisee’s business for
any reason during the term of the franchise agreement without the franchisee’s
consent are unlawful pursuant to RCW 19.100.180(2)(j), unless the franchise is
terminated for good cause.

8. WREMOBER: AN (MBRXNZ) HEBHZER PR EEAEHREIARA -
REWEEARE - IO EREBEREBREEARNER - BIZERKE (E
BIENEEAE) 5 19.100.180(2)() ERERIEE - BRIEZFHLEGRELE
HHELIL -

9. Fair and Reasonable Pricing. Any provision in the franchise agreement or related

agreements that requires the franchisee to purchase or rent any product or service
for more than a fair and reasonable price is unlawful under RCW 19.100.180(2)(d).

9. RATHESHEMNEE: N (MBROZ) SBEBRHZEPIKRS - BXRERBEALUS
RAFEGEERNANBEENHEHTEMIRT - BIKE (ERBMEFDA
Bi) 55 19.100.180(2)(d) IR RE - ZIERBIFE -

10. Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages. RCW 19.100.190 permits
franchisees to seek treble damages under certain circumstances. Accordingly,
provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere requiring
franchisees to waive exemplary, punitive, or similar damages are void, except
when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect
and where the parties are represented by independent counsel, in accordance with
RCW 19.100.220(2).

10. REMBEEEHBIOMBEZNE. (FABMNEBEDAE) 5 19.100.190 Fo5F
WRBAERERBR N RK=EBEE - Bt - (MBERHE) EMBEERED

[

R

i

3
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11.

11.

12.

12.

13.

13.

14.

4

VARRY

RIGRRR - MNEBRFEIREAREEAM - BEMBENBCUESEEE - AIZER
- BRIEMKIE (ZERREMIEE]AE) 2 19.100.220(2) EWRE - ZBETER
MR RIBHBE D & IDARREENE R FIT -

Franchisor’'s Business Judgement. Provisions in the franchise agreement or
related agreements stating that the franchisor may exercise its discretion on the

basis of its reasonable business judgment may be limited or superseded by RCW
19.100.180(1), which requires the parties to deal with each other in good faith.

BREANERAG. (MEROZ) SHEBHZRPIRR - NREREACKE
HeBNBRAETEERRERE  RZERTERE (ERBMEFAHR) 5
19.100.180(1) 1RRVBRMBISLENRY - BOARBERE S ALERANETEE -

Indemnification. Any provision in the franchise agreement or related agreements
requiring the franchisee to indemnify, reimburse, defend, or hold harmless the
franchisor or other parties is hereby modified such that the franchisee has no
obligation to indemnify, reimburse, defend, or hold harmless the franchisor or any
other indemnified party for losses or liabilities to the extent that they are caused by
the indemnified party’s negligence, willful misconduct, strict liability, or fraud.

REBR: (MBROE) NHRAHETRERZENRE ZEANEMTET

BEE @B MR BTN - ERERARFHREANEAEME
BREZHMMEENERISEETHE  ®HE NRE%RE  HZEXAEE
BHEZEELDNRAR - MEAETA - BREEELNEEER -

Attorneys’ Fees. If the franchise agreement or related agreements require a
franchisee to reimburse the franchisor for court costs or expenses, including
attorneys’ fees, such provision applies only if the franchisor is the prevailing
party in any judicial or arbitration proceeding.

BEE: = (NMBZNE) IHEEHRRENZEARBEREANFRERN
HEX L ( B2REEME )  AZEREEBAREEAGRTOIZAMHEFTH
BER7TRVIEN -

Noncompetition Covenants. Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition
covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, including an employee
of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be
adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and
unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW
49.62.030 unless the independent contractor's earnings from the party seeking

4
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14.

15.

15.

16.

16.

enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be
adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provision contained in the franchise
agreement or elsewhere that conflicts with these limitations is void and
unenforceable in Washington.

BREEIRF: RB (FERBMEFDEE) 5 49.62.020 1% - FERILHEEET
(BEEREANEDL ) EUEATRIT  BRIFELHESKAITHN—HESHNK
AREETE#EE 100,000 =7t ( Z BB RBREERRSEETRE ) - I
RIB (ZERREMEREH) 5 49.62.020 1% - FREZR I HZE B WEEARNBEILIX
BEEMNEATNIT  RIEBUREBUESKATH—HESHNIRARETER
18 250,000 =7t (2= BERRBEBESEWIRSFEETHAZE ) - BIL - MBEEZNE
Hthith 75 R T B S LL PRI B RAVIF R ZE R IR A 2 BN B AT AT -

Nonsolicitation Agreements. RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from
restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any
employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any

employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the
franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RiIEZAHE: (EREWEFDAE) 5 49.62.060 FRELEREARS - KR
RIEHERBEA © () BENEAER - EEANEMBREANET - 5 (i) AHE
SEAEBEARNET - ALt - N (MMBEZYE) B MHEE B ESUHERR
EERBNIBRUEATANT -

Questionnaires _and Acknowledgments. No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor.
This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

EEEERER: IEEARGHEERGHEEBKARZXRENWEMUER - B
SRER XY - ABEBLUTIHT () HERBERANMNGFFEEEMMELNE
MR BERFENRFMELENZRR ; 3 (i) GREHRREAN - HFKEHE
HEEMARERBATSZAMEEQRILAERE - RMIFRIBETE R RS E
SMHENENUESREZ XX PROE MR -
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17.

17.

18.

18.

19.

19.

Prohibitions on_Communicating with Regulators. Any provision in the
franchise agreement or related agreements that prohibits the franchisee from
communicating with or complaining to regulators is inconsistent with the
express instructions in the Franchise Disclosure Document and is unlawful
under RCW 19.100.180(2)(h).

RIEAEERERE: N (NBRHOE) SHRHR PR - WRIERRRE
BEERERENOEERBIRDRES  AIZERE (FHEEBEXH) i
ERERERART - WikE (EREMNESETEE) 5 19.100.180(2)(h) IREIFE

Advisory Regarding Franchise Brokers. Under the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act, a “franchise broker” is defined as a person that
engages in the business of the offer or sale of franchises. A franchise broker
represents the franchisor and is paid a fee for referring prospects to the
franchisor and/or selling the franchise. If a franchisee is working with a franchise
broker, franchisees are advised to carefully evaluate any information provided
by the franchise broker about a franchise.

SR ESEALANEESE: RE (ERENEAFECERERES) - "HIAE=E
e HERRBUSHIAEEZOAFEEFRBHEA - HRIEEELCARNETRE
A UEBEREANBEEEPA/AEERFEERBEIGRM - SRR
BALARGHEEELCASIE  AEZSEHRBAFAREEr EELLCAPRHRR
R EHEER -

Development Franchisees. Development Franchisees may be required to
register as franchise brokers under the laws of Washington.

FRSBRREAN: REBEEXRBNERE HREGEEACUEFTEMARFFLEL
A -

The undersigned parties do hereby acknowledge receipt of this Addendum.

<=1

RRE
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B8 75 /Franchisor: TPTEA USA INC.
& 30 #m 5K /Unified Business Number :

7EE I A /Authorized Representative: £IZ#3/ Yen-Pang Liu

B 5CPTE It /Registered Address: 919 North Market Street, Suite 950
Wilmington, DE 19801

B FH#4 (SRR ) /Official Email:
HH/Date:

Z, 73 /Franchisee:
8 30 45K /Unified Business Number :

7ETE IR A /Authorized Representative::

B ECPT1E ) /Registered Address:
BE#H4 (RIESE ) /Official Email:
HEHi/Date:
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Exhibit E

ACKNOWLEDGMENT ADDENDUM TO
TPTEA FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

DO NOT SIGN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE IF THE FRANCHISE IS
TO BE OPERATED IN, OR YOU ARE A RESIDENT OF, CALIFORNIA, HAWAIIL, ILLINOIS,
INDIANA, MARYLAND, MICHIGAN, MINNESOTA, NEW YORK, NORTH DAKOTA, RHODE
ISLAND, SOUTH DAKOTA, VIRGINIA, WASHINGTON, OR WISCONSIN.

As you know, you and we are entering into a Franchise Agreement for the operation of a TPTEA
franchise. The purpose of this Acknowledgment Addendum is to determine whether any
statements or promises were made to you that we have not authorized or that may be untrue,
inaccurate or misleading, and to be certain that you understand the limitations on claims that may
be made by you by reason of the offer and sale of the franchise and operation of your business.
Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide honest responses to each
question.

All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of
liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred
under the applicable law.

Acknowledgments and Representations.

1. Did you receive a copy of our Franchise Disclosure Document (and all exhibits and
attachments) at least fourteen calendar days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement? Check
one: () Yes () No. If no, please comment:

2. Have you studied and reviewed carefully our Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise
Agreement? Check one: () Yes () No. If no, please comment:

3. Did you understand all the information contained in both the Franchise Disclosure Document
and Franchise Agreement? Check one () Yes () No. If no, please comment:

TPTEA USA
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4. Was any oral, written or visual claim or representation made to you which contradicted the
disclosures in the Franchise Disclosure Document? Check one: () No () Yes. If yes, please
state in detail the oral, written or visual claim or representation:

5. Except as stated in Item 19 of the Franchise Disclosure Document, did any employee or other
person speaking on behalf of TPTEA USA Inc. make any oral, written or visual claim,
statement, promise or representation to you that stated, suggested, predicted or projected sales,
revenues, expenses, earnings, income or profit levels at any TPTEA tea shop location or
business, or the likelihood of success at your franchised business? Check one: () No () Yes.
If yes, please state in detail the oral, written or visual claim or representation:

6. Didany employee or other person speaking on behalf of TPTEA USA Inc. make any statement
or promise regarding the costs involved in operating a franchise that is not contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document or that is contrary to, or different from, the information
contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document? Check one: (__) Yes (__) No. If yes, please
comment:

7. Do you understand that that the franchise granted is for the right to operate a TPTEA tea shop
at the approved site only and that we and our affiliates have the right to issue franchises or
operate competing businesses for or at locations, as we determine, other than the approved site?
Check one: (__) Yes (__) No. If no, please comment:

8. Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement and Franchise Disclosure Document contain
the entire agreement between you and us concerning the franchise for the TPTEA system,
meaning that any prior oral or written statements not set out in the Franchise Agreement or
Franchise Disclosure Document will not be binding? Check one: (__) Yes (__) No. If no, please
comment:

TPTEA USA
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9.

10.

11.

Do you understand that the success or failure of your TPTEA tea shop will depend in large
part upon your skills and experience, your business acumen, your location, the local market
for products under the TPTEA trademarks, interest rates, the economy, inflation, the number
of employees you hire and their compensation, competition and other economic and business
factors? Further, do you understand that the economic and business factors that exist at the
time you open your TPTEA tea shop may change? Check one (__) Yes (__) No. If no, please
comment:

Do you understand that you are bound by the non-compete covenants (both in-term and post-
term) listed in the Franchise Agreement and that an injunction is an appropriate remedy to
protect the interest of the TPTEA system if you violate the covenant(s)? Further, do you
understand that the term “you” for purposes of the non-compete covenants is defined broadly
in the Franchise Agreement, such that any actions in violation of the covenants by those
holding any interest in the franchisee entity may result in an injunction, default and termination
of the Franchise Agreement? Check one (__) Yes (__) No. If no, please comment:

On the receipt pages of your Franchise Disclosure Document you identified

as the franchise sellers involved in this franchise sales process. Are the franchise sellers
identified above the only franchise sellers involved with this transaction? Check one (__) Yes
(_) No. If no, please identify any additional franchise sellers involved with this transaction:

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT
WE WILL RELY ON THEM. BY SIGNING THIS ADDENDUM, YOU ARE
REPRESENTING THAT YOU HAVE CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY
AND RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS. IF MORE SPACE IS
NEEDED FOR ANY ANSWER, CONTINUE ON A SEPARATE SHEET AND ATTACH.

NOTE: IF THE RECIPIENT IS A CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY OROTHER ENTITY, EACH OF ITS PRINCIPAL OWNERS
MUST EXECUTE THIS ACKNOWLEDGMENT.

TPTEA USA
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Exhibit F

Form of General Release
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TPTEA USA INC.

GRANT OF FRANCHISOR CONSENT AND RELEASE BY FRANCHISEE

TPTEA USA INC. (“Franchisor”) and the undersigned franchisee, [insert
name of franchisee entity] (“Franchisee™), currently are parties to a Franchise Agreement dated
(the “Franchise Agreement”) for the operation of a TPTEA Tea Shop at
Franchisee has asked Franchisor to
[insert relevant detail]. Franchisor currently has no obligation under the Franchise Agreement or

otherwise to [repeat relevant detail], or Franchisor has the right under the
Franchise Agreement to condition its approval on Franchisee’s and its owners signing a release of claims.
Franchisor is willing to [repeat relevant detail] if Franchisee and its owners give

Franchisor the release and covenant not to sue provided below in this document. Franchisee and its
owners are willing to give Franchisor the release and covenant not to sue provided below in consideration
for Franchisor’s willingness to [repeat relevant detail].

Consistent with the previous introduction, Franchisee, on behalf of itself and its successors, heirs,
executors, administrators, personal representatives, agents, assigns, partners, owners, directors, officers,
principals, employees, and affiliated entities (collectively, the “Releasing Parties”), hereby forever release
and discharge Franchisor and its past and present, direct or indirect, parent and other affiliated entities,
and its and their respective current and former officers, directors, members, managers, owners, principals,
employees, agents, representatives, successors, and assigns (collectively, the “TPTEA Parties”) from any
and all claims, damages, demands, debts, causes of action, suits, duties, liabilities, costs, and expenses of
any nature and kind, whether presently known or unknown, vested or contingent, suspected or
unsuspected (all such matters, collectively, “Claims™), that Franchisee and any other Releasing Party now
has, ever had, or, but for this document, hereafter would or could have against any TPTEA Party
(1) arising out of or related in any way to the TPTEA Parties’ performance of or failure to perform their
obligations under the Franchise Agreement before the date of Franchisee’s signature below, (2) arising
out of or related in any way to Franchisor’s offer and grant to Franchisee of its TPTEA Tea Shop
franchise, or (3) otherwise arising out of or related in any way to Franchisee and the other Releasing
Parties’ relationship, from the beginning of time to the date of Franchisee’s signature below, with any of
the TPTEA Parties.

The released Claims include, but are not limited to, any Claim alleging violation of any deceptive
or unfair trade practices laws, franchise laws, or other local, municipal, state, federal, or other laws,
statutes, rules, or regulations. Franchisee and the other Releasing Parties acknowledge that Franchisee
and they may after the date of the signatures below discover facts different from, or in addition to, those
facts currently known to Franchisee and them, or which Franchisee and they now believe to be true, with
respect to the Claims released by this document. Franchisee and the other Releasing Parties nevertheless
agree that the release set forth in this document has been negotiated and agreed on despite such
acknowledgment and despite any federal or state statute or common law principle which may provide that
a general release does not extend to claims which are not known to exist at the time of execution.

Franchisee, on behalf of itself and the other Releasing Parties, further covenants not to sue any
TPTEA Party on any Claim released by this paragraph and represents that Franchisee has not assigned
any Claim released by this paragraph to any individual or entity that is not bound by this paragraph.

Franchisor also is entitled to a release and covenant not to sue from Franchisee’s owners. By his,
her, or their separate signatures below, Franchisee’s owners likewise grant to Franchisor the release and
covenant not to sue provided above.

TPTEA USA - 2025 General Release
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The following lanquage applies only to transactions governed by the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act

This general release does not apply with respect to claims arising under the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted thereunder.

[Signature Page Follows]

TPTEA - 2025 General Release
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FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:

TPTEA USA INC. NAME
Signature: Signature:
Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Attest:

[Name of Owner]

[Signature and Date]
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Exhibit G

List of Franchisees as of December 31, 2024

Franchisee | Representative | Address City State | ZIP Phone Number

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 2383  Telegraph | Berkeley CA | 94704 | 510.228.4421
Avenue

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 10787 S. Blaney | Cupertino | CA | 95014 | 408.320.1890
Avenue

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 2540 Main Street, | Irvine CA 92614 | 949.886.2103
Suite B Irvine

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 1987 Santa Rita | Pleasanton | CA 94566 | 510.816.8128
Road B

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 925 Blossom Hill | San Jose CA 95123 | 408.622.8658
Rd, Space No. F5

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 650 E 4™ Avenue San Mateo | CA 94401 | 650.513.1754

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 567-B E EI Camino | Sunnyvale | CA | 94087 | 669.348.4563
Real

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 2761 S Diamond Diamond CA 91765 | 909.655.6042
Bar Blvd, Bar
Diamond Bar

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 400 Broadway, Millbrae CA 94030 | 1.510.936.2626
Millbrae

TPLIN Inc. | Juo Lin Chen 1152 N Capitol Berryessa | CA | 95132 | 669.263.6293
Ave, San Jose

NY TEA & | HILL TSE 36-41 Prince St, | Queens NY 11354 | 929.200.7021

MORE INC. Flushing

Taiwan Tea | Warren Liao 9188 Prestmont | Frisco X 75035 | 682.600.8081

House LLC Place

Taiwan Tea | Warren Liao 400 N. Greenville | Richardson | TX 75081 | 972.685.6902

House LLC Avenue Suite 14

Taiwan Tea | Warren Liao 2451 Old Denton Carrollton | TX 75006 | 214.883.8813

House LLC Rd Ste 130,
Carrollton

HARMONY | Katie-Feiyu Su | 679 King Street Seattle WA | 98104 | 206.485.7481

TEA INC.

HARMONY | Katie-Feiyu Su | 1312 NE 45th St Seattle WA | 98105 | 206.327.9811

TEA INC.
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NEW YORK REPRESENTATIONS PAGE

FRANCHISOR REPRESENTS THAT THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
DOES NOT KNOWINGLY OMIT ANY MATERIAL FACT OR CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE
STATEMENT OF A MATERIAL FACT.

BRILE (44T )
REABH XN (FHAEEBENH) AUBERTUERSE  UAGSEUEKRSE
BERABRAL -
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State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated
below:

State Effective Date
Illinois Pending
Indiana [Date]
Maryland Pending
Michigan June 4, 2025
Minnesota Pending
New York July 23, 2025, as amended [pending], 2025
Virginia Pending
Washington Pending
Wisconsin [Date]

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other
laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-
assisted marketing plans.

TPTEA USA
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Exhibit H
Receipt (1)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully. If TPTEA USA Inc. offers you a franchise,
it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make
a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

If TPTEA USA Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days before
you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the
proposed franchise sale.

[Michigan requires that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any
binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. New York
requires that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days
before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the
franchise relationship.]

If TPTEA USA Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement,
or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the
Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency identified in Exhibit D.

The franchisor is TPTEA USA Inc. located is 919 North Market Street, Suite 950, Wilmington, Delaware 19801
and the telephone number is 886-4-2389-6909#524.

The principal business address and telephone number of the franchise seller offering the franchise is Yu-Chi Chang,
No. 36, Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist., Taichung City 408, Taiwan (R.O.C.), 886-4-2389--6909 Ext. 524, intl@tp-tea.com.

Development Franchisee (if any):

Issuance Date: March 21, 2025
I received a disclosure document dated March 21, 2025, that included the following exhibits:

Exhibit A Financial Statements

Exhibit B Franchise Agreement

Exhibit B-1 Development Franchisee Rights Rider to Franchise Agreement
Exhibit B-2 Multi-Unit Franchise Rider to Franchise Agreement

Exhibit C Directory of Administrative Agencies
Exhibit D State-Specific Addenda to the Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement
Exhibit E Acknowledgment Addendum to Franchise Agreement
Exhibit F Form of General Release
Exhibit G List of Franchisees as of December 31, 2024
Date: ,20___ (enter date here)
Signed:
Name: (Please print)

You should return one copy of the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to TPTEA USA Inc. at
No. 36, Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist.,Taichung City 408, Taiwan (R.O.C.) or by faxing a copy of the signed receipt back
to TPTEA USA Inc. at 886-4-2380-7610. You may keep the second copy for your records.
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Exhibit H
Receipt (2)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully. If TPTEA USA Inc. offers you a franchise,
it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make
a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

If TPTEA USA Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days before
you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the
proposed franchise sale.

[Michigan requires that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any
binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. New York
requires that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days
before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the
franchise relationship.]

If TPTEA USA Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement,
or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the
Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency identified in Exhibit D.

The franchisor is TPTEA USA Inc. located is 919 North Market Street, Suite 950, Wilmington, Delaware 19801
and the telephone number is 886-4-2389-6909#524.

The principal business address and telephone number of the franchise seller offering the franchise is Yu-Chi Chang,
No. 36, Xinfu Rd. Nantun Dist., Taichung City 408, Taiwan (R.O.C.), 886-4-2389--6909 Ext. 524, intl@tp-tea.com.

Development Franchisee (if any):

Issuance Date: March 21, 2025
I received a disclosure document dated March 21, 2025, that included the following exhibits:

Exhibit A Financial Statements

Exhibit B Franchise Agreement

Exhibit B-1 Development Franchisee Rights Rider to Franchise Agreement
Exhibit B-2 Multi-Unit Franchise Rider to Franchise Agreement

Exhibit C Directory of Administrative Agencies
Exhibit D State-Specific Addenda to the Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement
Exhibit E Acknowledgment Addendum to Franchise Agreement
Exhibit F Form of General Release
Exhibit G List of Franchisees as of December 31, 2024
Date: , 20___ (enter date here)
Signed:
Name: (Please print)
TPTEA USA
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